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NOTICE OF 12'" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE Is hereby given that 12~ Annual General Mee~ng of Tata Value Homes Limited will be
held on Monday, 27'" day of September, 2021 at 2 p.m. at Registered office of the Company
I.e. "E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbal 400033 to transact the
following business at shorter notice:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt:

a. the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2021 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the
Auditors thereon; and

b. the Audited Consolidated Rnandal Statements of the Company for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2021 together with the Report of Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. 5anjay Dull (DIN: 05251670), who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. Ratification of Cost Auditor's Remuneration:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the follOWing resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re­
enactment thereof for the time being in force) and the Companies (Audit and Audito rs) Rules,
2014, as amended from time to time, the Company hereby ratifies the remuneration of
~ 1,50,000/ - (One Lakh Rfty Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes, travel and actual out-of­
pocket expenses incurred in connection with the audit, payable to MIs. Vinod C. Subramaniam
& Co, Cost Accountants (Rrm reqlstration No.: 102395), who are appointed by the Board of
Directors as the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of cost records maintained by the Company
for the Financial Year 2021-22."

TATA VALUE HOMES liMITED
ON: U45400MH2009PLC195605

Regd. Dffice:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in
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4. Approve the issue of Non-Convertible Debentures on Private Placement Basis:

TO consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution
as Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in supersession of earlier Resolution passed at the 11~ Annual General
Meeting of the Members of the Company held on December 31, 2020 and pursuant to the
provisions of sections 23, 42 and 71 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force) (hereinafter to be referred as the "Act") and the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment
of Securities) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, both
as amended frem time to time, and subject to all other applicable Regulations, Rules,
Notifications, Circulars and Guidelines prescribed by the 5ecurities and Exchange Board of India
r SEBI"), as amended, including the SEBI (Issue and Usting of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021, as amended, the SEBI (Usting Obligations and Disclosure ReqUirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended, SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018, as amended if applicable and the enabling provisions of the listing
agreements entered I to be entered into with the Stock Exchanges where the securities of the
Company be listed (the "Stock Exchanges''), and subject to the applicable Regulations, Rules,
Notifications, Circula rs and Guidelines prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI''), the
Memorandum of Association and the Articlesof Association of the Company, and subjectto such
approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions as may be requlred from the Government of
India, SEBI, RBI, the Stock Exchanges or any regulatory or statutory authority as may be
required (the "Appropriate Authority ") and subject to such conditions and/or modifications as
may be prescribed or imposed by the Appropriate Authority while granting such approvals,
consents, permissions and sanctions, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the
Company (hereinafter referred to as the 'Board' which term shall be deemed to include any
Committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board to exercise its powers including the
powers conferred by this Resolution), subject to the total borrowings of the Company not
exceeding the borrowing powers approved by the Members from time to time under Section
180(1)(c) of the Act, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the
Board of Directors for making offer(s) or invitations to subscribe to rated, redeemable,
cumulative/non-cumulative, listed/unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures/Bonds (hereinafter
collectively referred as "NCDs'') up to an amount of Rs.500 Crore (Rupees Five Hundred Crere
only) on private placement basis to eligible entities, bodies corporate, companies, banks,
financial institutionsand any other categories of investors (eligible Investors) permittedto invest
in the NCDs under applicable laws, in one or more series/tranches, during a period of one year
from the date of passing of this Resolution on such terms and conditions as the Board or any
Committee authorized by the Board or any person(s) authorized by the Board, may, from time
to time, determine and consider proper and most benefidal to the Company including as to
when the said NCDs be issued, the consideration for the issue, utilization of issue proceeds and
all matters connected with or incidental thereto and that the said borrowing is within the overall
borrowing limits of the Company.

TATA VALUE HOMES liMITED
O N: U45400MH2009PLCI95605

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, ChinchpokJi, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail : thdcsec@tatarealty.in

Website: www.tatarealtv.in
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution, the Board be
and is hereby authorized, on behalf of the Company, to determine the terms of issue including
the class of investors to whom the NCDs are to be issued, t ime, the number of NCDs, tranches,
issue price, tenor, interest rate , premium/discount, listing (in I ndia or overseas) and do all such
acts, deeds, matters and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper, or
desirable and to settle any question, doubt that may arise in respect of the borrowings aforesaid
and to execute all documents and writing as may be necessary, proper, desirab le or expedient ."

By order of the Board
For Tata Value Homes Limited

~
Mrunal Shukla

Company Secretary
ACS:31734

Registered Office: E Block, Valtas Premises,
T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli,
Mumbai: 400033

Date: sept ember 24, 2021
Place: Mumbai

CI N: U45400MH2009PLC19S605

TATA VALUE HOMES U MlTED
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605

Regd. Office: - E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokl i, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in

Website : www.tatarealtv.in
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Notes:

1. The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
('the Act') in respect of the business under item nos. 3 and 4 set out above and the
relevant details of the Director seeking appointment at this Annual General Meeting
('AGM'/ 'the meeting') in respect of business under item nos. 2 as required under the
Act and Secretaria l Standard on General Meetings issued by The Inst itute of Compan y
secretaries of India ('Secretarial Standard') are annexed hereto .

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND THE
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. The duly completed and signed instrument
appointi ng proxy as per the format included in the Annual Report should be
returned t o the Registered Office of the Company not less than forty-eight
(48) hours before the time for holding the AGM. Proxies submitted on behalf
of limited companies must be supported by appropriate resolution/authority,
as applicable. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding 50 and
holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company
carrying vot ing rights. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a member holding
more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying vot ing rights, then
such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or Member.

3. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the
AGM are requested to send to the Company, a certified copy of the Board Resolution
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the AGM. Members,
Proxies and Authorized Representatives are requested to bring the duly completed
Attendance Slip enclosed herewith to attend the AGM.

4. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding as
maintained under Section 170 of the Act, the Register of Contracts or Arrangement in
which the Directors are interested as maintained under Sect ion 189 of the Act and
relevant documents referred to in the Notice and the Explanatory Statement are open
for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working
days between Monday to Friday except public holidays, between 10:00 a.m, (1ST) to
1:00 p.m. (151) up to the date of the meet ing and also at the AGM venue during the
meeting .

5. The Members may avail the facility of nominat ion in terms of Section 72 pf the Act read
with Rule 19 (1) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Ru les, 2014, by
nominating in the Form SH 13, any person to whom hisj their shares in the Company
shall vest in the event of death of shareholder(s) . SH-13 to be submitted in the duplicate
with the Company.

TATA VALUE HOMES llMITED Il.§"(
CIN: U4S400MH2009PLC195505 ~_ /Q

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai ~ '!£.O 039
Tel. 022-5551 4444 Fax: 022-5551 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty .in

Website: www.tatarealty .in
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The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
['MCA'') under the Act requires the Company/Registrars and Share Transfer Agents
("RTA'l to record additional details of Members, including their PAN details, e-mail
address, bank details for payment of dividend etc. Members holding shares in the
Company are requested to submit the details to their respective Depository Participant.

6. Members desiring any information as regards the Accounts are requested to write to the
Company at an early date so as to enable the management to keep the information
ready at the meeting. Further, the Members who would like to express their views or
ask questions during the AGM may raise the same at the meeting or send them in
advance (mentioning their name and follo no. IDP ID - Client 10), at least 3 working
days prior to the date of AGM at mrunalshukla@tatarealtv.in.

7. To support the 'Green Initiative', the Members who have not yet registered their email
addresses or updated their email addresses, are requested to register the same with
their Depository Participants (\lDPs"). The members who are desirous of receiving the
Annual Report may write to the Company's RTA for a copy of the same.

Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2020-21 is being sent by electronic
mode to those Members whoseemailaddresses are registered with the Company, unless
any Member has requested for a physical copy of the same.

8. Attendance Slip, Proxy Form and the Route Map showing directions to reach the venue
of the AGM are annexed hereto.

9. The Members may note that the Annual Report for FY 2020-21 would be made available
on the Company's website viz. www.tatarealty.in and on the website of SSE Limited at
WlNW.bseindia .com.

By order of the Board
For Tala Value Homes Limited

#,ft
Mrunal Shukla

Company secretary
ACS:31734

Registered Office : E Block, Voltas Premises,
T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli,
Mumbai : 400033
CIN : U45400MH2009PLC195605

Date : september 24, 2021
Place: Mumbai

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC19560S

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty,in

Website: www.tatarealtv.in
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 20 13 ("THE
ACT" )

Item No, 2;

The brief profi le of Mr. Sanjay Out! (DIN; 05251670) in terms of Secretarial Standard- 2 on
General Meetings (55-2) issued by the Inst itute of Company Secretaries of India, is provided in
Annexure A.

Item No, 3

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meet ing held on June 28, 2021, approved the
remuneration of MIs. Vinod C. Subramaniam & Co, Cost Accountants (Firm registratio n No.:
102395), as Cost Auditors for auditing the cost records of the Company for the financial year
2021-22 at a remunerat ion not exceeding U ,50,000/ - (Rupees One Lakh Fifty Thousand Only)
plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses subject to the approval of shareholders.

In accordance with the provisions of Sect ion 148 of the Act read with th e Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the ratifi cation for the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the
Financial Year 2021 - 22 by way of an Ordinary Resoluti on is being sought from the members
as set out at Item No.3 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No.3 of the Not ice for approval
of the Members.

None of the Directo rs and the key managerial personnel(s) or their relat ives is deemed to be
concerned or interested in the aforesaid resolution.

Item No.4:

To meet the funding requirements of the Company, the Company has from time to ti me issued
Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs), in one or more series / tranches on private placement
basis in accordance with the provisions of the Act .

In order to augment long term resources for financing, inter alia, refinancing of the exist ing
debt, ongoing working capita l requirement and for general corporate purposes, the Company
may require further offering or inviting subscript ion, fro m time to time, in one or more tran ches
and/or series, whether secured or unsecured, cumulative or non-cumu lative, listed or unlisted,
redeemable NCDs including but not limited to bonds and/o r oth er debt securit ies, denominated

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605

Regd. Office: - E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealtv.i n

Website: www.tatarealty. in l~v)",. .
• l:
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in Indian rupees on private placement basis. The pricing for any instrumentwhich may beissued
by the Company on the basis of the Resolution set out at the Notice will be done by the Board
(which term includes a duly const ituted Committee of the Board of Directors) in accordance
with applicable laws including the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
Debt securities) Regulations, 2008 and other applicable statutory requirements, if any.

The provisions of Sect ions 23, 42 and 71 of the Act, read with Rule 14 of the Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securit ies) Rules, 2014 (the 'PAS Rules'), provide that a company
shall not make a private placement of its securities unless the proposed offer of securities or
invitation to subscribe to the securit ies has been previously approved by the Members of the
company by a Special Resolution. The th ird proviso to Rule 14(1) of the PAS Rules provides that
in case of an offer or invitation to subscribe to NCDs on private placement basis, the company
can obta in prior approval by means of a Special Resolution once in a year for all offers or
invitations for such NCDs during the year, subject to certain conditions. Further/ fourth proviso
to Rule 14(1) of PAS Rules provides that in case of offe r or invitation of any securit ies to qualified
institutional buyers/ it shall be sufficient if the company passes a previous special resolut ion
only in a year for all the allotments to such buyers during the year.

In terms of the provisions of Rule 14(1) of the PAS rules, disclosures pertaining to NCDs are as

follows:

a) Particular s of the offer incl ud ing the date of passing of the Board Resolution:

The Board resolut ion passed on March 14, 2019, whi ch inter-alia provides for issuance
of NCDs on a private placement basis.

b) Kinds of securit ies offered and the price at which security is being offered:
Non-Convertible Debentures at such price as may be determined by the Board from time
to time.

c) Basis of justification for the price (including premium, if any) at which the
offer or invitat ion is being made:
The NCDs would be issued at price as may be determined by the Board from t ime to
tim e.

d) Name and address of valuer who performed valuation:
Not Applicable

e) Amount which the company intends to raise by way of such securities:

Up to ~ 500 Crore. I{!j
TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED

CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605
Regd, Offi ce:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T, B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033

Tel. 022-666 1 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thd csec@tatarealty .in
Website : www.tatarealty.in
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f) Material terms of raising such securities, proposed time schedule, purposes
or objects of offer, contribution being made by the promoters or directors
either as part of the offer or separately in furtherance of objects; principal
terms of assets charged as securities:
As may be determined by the Board, from time to time

The Shareholders had approved the issuance of NCDs amounting to ~ SOD Crore vide its
resolution passed at the AGM held on December 31, 2020. The said approval shall expire on
December 30, 2021. The limit which was proposed herein is within the overall borrowing limit
of ~ 1000 Crore, approved by the Shareholders, pursuant to the provisions of section 180(1)(c)
and other applicable provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013, at their AGM held onJuly 15, 2014.

The approval of the Members is being sought for issue of NCDs up to an amountof ~ 500 Crore
by way of a Special Resolution in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act, read with
the Rules made thereunder, from time to time, in the manner as set in this Notice.

As on March 31, 2021, the net worth of the Company was Rs. 271.04 crore (standalone) and
the total long term debt, including current maturities of long term debt of the Company was Rs.
312.91 crore (standalone) including outstanding NCOs of ~ 295 crore.

The approval of the Members is being sought for issue of NCDs up to an amount of
Rs. 500 Crore by way of a Special Resolution in compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Act, read with the Rules made thereunder, from timeto time, in the manner as set in this Notice.

The Directors recommend the Resolution of the accompanying Notice, for the approval of the
Members of the Company by way of a Special Resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Persons of the Companyor their respective relatives is
in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution set out in this
Notice.

By order of the Board
For Tata Value Homes Limited

}~
Mru"al Shukla

Company secretary
ACS:31734

Registered Office: E Block, Voltas Premises,
T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli,
Mumbai: 400033
CIN : U45400MH2009PLC195605

Date: september 24, 2021
Place: Mumbai

TATA VALUE HOMES UMITED
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 44S2 E-mail: thd=@tatarealty-in

Website: www.tatarealty.in

8



G
TATA

Annexure A

Information pursuant to the secreta rial Standards/SChedule V in respect of
Appointment/ Re-appointment of Directors:

Agenda Item no. 2 -

Name Mr. samav Dutt
Aae 55 years
DIN DIN: 05251670

I Qualification Post qraduate in marketing and HR from IMI, New Delhi
Exoerience More than 27 years
Terms of eooolntment To be re-appointed as Director, liable to retire bv rotation
Remuneration sought to NIL
be paid

Remuneration last draw NIL
n
Date of First aooointment Mav 4 2018
Shareholding in the Nil
COmoanv
Relationship with other Nil
Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel
No. of Meetingsattended 4 out of4
durina the year
Other Directorship, Directorship:
membershipjchairmans 1- Tala Realty and Infrastructure Limited;
hip of committees of 2- TRIL Infopark Limited;
the other Boards 3- TRIL Constructions Limited;

4- Promont Hilltop Private Umited;
5- Tata Housing Development Company Urnited;
6- Smart Value Homes (Peenya Project) Private Limited;
7- Apex Realty Private Limited, Maldives;
8- World-one Development Company Ple. ttd.;
9- World-one (Sri Lanka) Projects Ple. Ltd.

Chairmansh ip/ Mem bers h ip of Committees of the Board:

1- Tala Realty and I nfrastructure Umited:

Ci- Member of Securities Allotment Committee :: .
ii- Committee of Directors I. ~

2- TRIL Infooark limited: ~ ~
TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED

CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605
Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbal- 400 033

Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thd csec@til tarealty. in
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t- Member of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
ll- Member of Audit Sub Committee
iii- Member of Securities Allotment Committee

By order of the Board
For Tata Value Homes limited

~
Mrunal Shukla

Company Secretary
ACS:31734

Registered Office: E Block, Valtas Premises,
T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli,
Mumbai: 400033
CIN : U4S400MH2009PLC19S60S

Date: September 24, 2021
Place: Mumbai

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
CI N: U45400MH2009PLC195605

Regd. Office :- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli , Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thd csec@tatarealty .in

Website: www.tatarealty.in
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

PLEASE FILL TH E ATTENDANCE SUP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF
THE MEETING VENUE

Joint Shareholders may obtain additional Attendance Slip in request

IRegd. Folio No,f DP ID-Client ID

NAME AND ADDRESS OF SHAREHOLDER:

NO. OF SHARES HELD: _

I fWe hereby record my presence at the 12th Annual General Meeting of Tata Value Homes
Umited held on Monday, 27'" day of September, 2021 at

2 p.m. at Registered office of the Company l.e, "E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg,

Chinchpokli, Mumbai 400033.

Signature of the Shareholder or Proxy

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
CIN: U4S400MH2009PLC195605

Regd. Offi ce:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-maii: thd csec@tatarealty.in

Website: www.tatarealtv.in
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Form No. MGT·l1

Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) ofthe Companies Act; 2013 and rule 19(3) ofthe Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014J

CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605

Name of the company: TATA Value Homes Limited

Registered office: E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai 400 033

Name of the member (s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id:
Folio No/ Oient Id :
DP !D:

I /We, being the member (s) of shares of the above named company, hereby appoint

1. Name:
Address:
E-mail id:
Signature:

2. Name:
Address:
E-mail id:
Signature:

3. Name:
Address:
E-mail id:
Signature:

or failing him

or failing him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the
12~ Annual General Meebng of Tala Value Homes Limited to be held on Monday, 27'" day of
September, 2021 at 2 p.rn. at Registered office of the Company i.e. "E Block, Voltas Premises,

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC19560S

Regd. Office :- E Block, Valtas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in

Website: www,tatarealty.ln
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T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai 400033 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of
such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No.

1. To receive, consider and adopt:

a. the Audited Standalone Rnandal Statement of theCompany for the financial year ended
March 31, 2021 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors
thereon; and

b. the Audited Consoiidated Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2021 together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in piace of Mr. sanjay Dutt (DIN: 05251670), who retires by
rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. Ratification of Cost Auditor's Remuneration.

4. To Approve the issue of Non-Convertible Debentures on Private Placement Basis.

Signed this day of 2021

Signature of the shareholder

Signature of the proxy holder(s)

Affix
Revenue

Note: This fonn of proxy in order t o be effective should be duly complet ed and
deposited at the Regist ered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before
the commencement of the Meeting.
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DIRECTORS'REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS,

The Directors present the Annual Report of Tata Value Homes Limited (the "Company" or
"TVHL") along with the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2021. The consolidated performance of the Company and its subsidiaries has been
referred to wherever required.

1. Financial Results
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Standalone Consolidated

2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20

Revenue 7,095.49 9,955.27 14,331.22 18,242.77

other income 1,993.30 1,932.38 1,029.44 2,904.18

Total income 9,088.79 11,887.65 15,360.66 21,146.95
Expenses

Operating expenditure 16,064.31 12,822.21 27,150.95 21,738.47

Depreciation and amortization
16.09 11.14 17.87 13.72

exoenses

Total Expenses 16,080.40 12,833.35 27,168.82 21,752.19

Loss before finance cost and
-6,991.61 -945.7 -11,808.16 -605.24

tax

Financecost 7,181.80 6,900.95 8,726.59 7,760.18

Lossbefore Impairment of
equity investment in and loans
given to subsidiaries and joint -14,173.41 -7,846.65 -20,534.75 -8,365.42
ventures
Impairment of equity investment in
and loans given to subsidiaries and - 1,158.00 5,820.31 -
ioint ventures

Loss before tax (PBn -14,173.41 -9,004.65 -26,355.06 -8,365.42

Tax expense 32.3 1,854.65 232 1,874.39

Loss after tax -14,205.71 -10,859.30 -26,587.06 -10,239.81

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
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Share of loss of joint ventures - - -4,519.10 -8,419.94

Loss for the year -14.205.71 -10,859.30 -31,106.16 -18,659.75

Attributable to:

Shareholders of the comeanv -14.205.71 -10,859.30 -31,106.16 -18,659.75
Non-Controlling Interest - -
Opening Balance of retained

-39,845.46 -28,975.32 -51,593.47 -32,924.54earning

On adoption of IND AS 115 (net of - - - -taxes)

Loss for the Year -14,205.71 -10,859.30 -31,106.16 -18,659.75

Other comprehensive income / 43.53 -10.84 38.57 -9.18
(losses)

Total comprehenslve income -54,007.64 -39.845.46 -82,661.06 -51,593.47
Dividend (including tax on - - - -dividend)

Buy-back of equity shares - - - -
Expenses for buy-back of equity - - - -shares
Issue of Bonus shares - - - -
Realized loss on equity shares - - - -
carried at fair value through OCI

Transfer to Special Economic Zone - - - -re-investment reserve

Transfer from Special Economic - - - -
Zone re-investment reserve

Transferred from Debenture
1,111.96 1,111.96Redemption reserve

- -

Transfer to reserve - - - -

Closing balance of retained
earnings -52,895.68 -39,845.46 -81,549.10 -51,593.47

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605
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2. Dividend

In view of the loss incurred during the year under review the Directors do not recommend

any dividend for the year 2020-21.

3. Transfer to Reserves

Your Directors do not recommend transferring any funds to reserves of the Company.

4. Company's Performance I Financial Summary or highlights

On a standalone basis, the revenue for FY 2020-21 was Rs. 7,095.49 lakhs, lower by 29 %
over the previous year's revenue of Rs.9,955.27 lakhs in FY 2019-20. The loss after tax

attributable to shareholders for FY2020-21 was Rs, 14,205.71lakhs, higher by 31 % over the

loss of Rs. 10,859.30 lakhs for FY 2019-20.

Consolidated revenue for FY 2020-21 was Rs. 14,331.22 lakhs, lower by 21 % over the
previous year's revenue of Rs. 18,242.77 lakhs in FY 2019-20.

The loss after tax attributable to shareholders for FY2020-21 was Rs. 31,106.16 lakhs, higher
by 67 % over the loss of Rs. 18,659.75 lakhs for FY 2019-20.

State of the Company's Affairs:

Your Company is in the business of residential property development with 12 projects spread

across major cities. It has delivered 6.30 million sq. ft. or 7,944 units since inception and has
another 10.68 million sq. ft. area, which is under various stages of development and planning.

As a comprehensive real estate developer of choice, TVHL straddles value housing. During FY
2020-21 the Company has achieved sales growth of 1.20 times y-o-y and delivered 531

residential units.

5. Subsidiary Companies

The Company has 7 Subsidiaries/LLP and 2 Associate Companies/ LLP. (Relationship of
Subsidiary has been considered basis the equity holding in each of the entities. From Indian
Accounting Standard perspectives, some of the entities may be considered as the Joint
Ventures).

There has been no material change in the nature of the business of the

Subsidiaries/LLPs/Associates.

The summary of the performance of subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies and

their contribution to the overall performance of the Company during the financial year was
provided in AOC-1, which forms part of the audited accounts of the Company.

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605
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Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"), the

financial statements of the Company, consolidated financial statements along with relevant
documents and separate audited financial statements in respect of subsidiaries, shall be made

available on the website of the Company l.e, www.tatarealty.in.

6. Covid 19

The ongoing COVID-19 along with associated restrictions and lockdowns have posed

challenges to different aspects of the business during the year. After severe disruptions in first

half of the year, economic situations and sentiments showed some signs of recovery, but the
situation again remains unpredictable and dynamic. Your Company has kept the focus sharply

on employee safety and well-being of the customers, implementing various measures

leveraging technology to keep offices and sites safe, complying with all Government directives
and shifting internally to a work-from-home model as much as possible. Through proactive

decisions, your Company has managed the business risks and impact, demonstrating
resilience in these difficult times.

7. Share Capital and other Securities:

A. Share Capital:

During the year under review, the Company has increased the Authorised Share Capital of the
Company from existing Rs. 400 Crore to Rs. 1000 Crore. Further, the paid up equity capital of
the Company has also been increased from existing Rs. 400 Crore to Rs. 800 Crore by way of
rights issue.

B. Debt Management

As on March 31, 2021, the Company had outstanding debt of Rs.517Crore, decrease of Rs.321
Crore over the outstanding debt as at March 31, 2020, mainly through equity infusion received
from Tata Housing Development Company Limited.

About 43 % of the outstanding debt at year end is through working capital lines/short term
loans from banks that are renewable from time to time and 57% by way of Non-Convertible
Debentures with tenor 36 months at the time of issuance.

The debt raised during the year was utilized for various ongoing projects of the Company and
its SPY's, refinancing, working capital requirements & general corporate purposes.

The weighted average interest rate for the outstanding debt as at March 31, 2021 was
7.49% p.a. as against 8.88 % p.a. as at March 31, 2020, lower by about 139 bps.

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605
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c. Credit Ratings
Your Company has been offering itself to be rated by rating agencies as per following:

':'.,...~ .""-~~ ....... ~.,.<f~~~ .....:;~-~ ••'"'~5-.:i-:1~~~... ........, --""$-"'// ~~ u;...;:X,;>,~.:;~~x~ - ",.,..,~_~r?'''~

t.<j ,.;_~~~~~~<~,~~~~~~~~j~~-~tf~~~:._~ ~. ~~tA~:I. _,~(_'-~!~.;i~~_T~:~::;.

Commercial Paper Credit Analysis & CAREA1+ 'l' 200 Crore Re-affirmed
(Short term) Research Limited

Non-Convertible Credit Analysis &
CAREAA 'l' 300 Crare Re-affirmed

Debenture Research Limited

Short Term / Long
Term Bank Credit Analysis &

CARE AA/ 'l' 391 Crore Re-affirmed
Facilities (Fund and Research Limited
Non Fund Based)

CARE Al+

8. Depository System

Your Company's Equity Shares are available for dematerialization (Demat) through National
Securities Depository Limited. The ISIN as allotted by NSDL is INE069P01015. In case of any
query, you may please get in touch with the Company or the Registrar & Transfer Agent i.e.
Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. Add: C-101, 247 Park, L. B. S. Marg, Vikhroli (W), Mumbai 400 083
Phone: +91 22 4918 6270. As on March 31, 2021 - 80,00,00,000 (100%) of the Ordinary
Shares of your Company were held in dematerialized form.

9. Directors' ResponsibilityStatement

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and
maintained by the Company, the work performed by the Internal, Statutory and Secretarial
auditors and external consultants, including the audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting by the statutory auditors and the reviews performed by management and
the relevant Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion
that the Company's internal financial controls were adequate and effective during
FY 2020-21.

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of its knowledge and
ability, confirm that:

(I) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have
been followed and there are no material departures;

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605
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(ii) They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
loss of the Company for that period;

(iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(v) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and

(vi) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

10. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Directors:

The Company's composition of Board is an adequate blend of Non-executive and Independent
Directors including a Woman Director. In addition to provisions of the Act, the Board
governance guidelines adopted by the Board, set out the role and responsibility of the Board,
composition of the Board and code of conduct.

Presently, Board of your Company consists of following Members:

• Mr. Sanjay Dutt
• Mr. Nipun Aggarwal
• Ms. Renu Basu
• Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar
• Mr. Kamlesh Parekh

- Director
- Director
- Director
- Independent Director
- Independent Director

During the year under review, Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar and
Mr. Kamlesh Parekh were appointed as an Independent Director on the Board of the Company
w.eJ. November 10, 2020, whose appointments were regularized/confirmed by the
Shareholders at its Annual General Meeting held on December 31, 2021, for a period of 3
years commencing from November 10, 2020 whose offices shall not be liable to retire by
rotation.

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, the independent directors have submitted
declarations that each of them meetthe criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6)
of the Act, along with Rules framed thereunder.

Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Director of the Company retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment.

During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary
relationship or transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees and reimbursement of
expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Board of the
Company.

Key Managerial personnel:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company as on March 31, 2021 are Mr. Bhavesh Madeka, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (appointed with effect from November 29, 2018), Mr. Khiroda Jena, Chief Financial
Officer of the Company (appointed with effect from August 07, 2019) and Ms. Mrunal Shukla,
Company Secretary of the Company (appointed with effect from November 10, 2017).

11. Number of Meetings of the Board and its committees:

There were four meetings of the Board, held during the year under review. The said meetings
were held on July 3, 2020, October 26, 2020, December 30, 2020 and March 4, 2021. The
details the presence of Directors are given herein below:

Name of the Board Member Board Meeting Attendance

Mr. Sanjay Dutt (SD) 4 out of 4

Mr. Nipun Aggarwal (NA) 4 out of 4

Mrs. Renu Basu 4 out of 4

Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar 2 out of 2
1------- --

Mr. Kamlesh Parekh 2 out of 2

12. Board Evaluation

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board
committees, and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act.

The performance of the board was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from all the

directors on the basis of criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness
of board processes, information and functioning, etc.

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
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The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the

committee members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees,
effectiveness of committee meetings, etc.

The above criteria are broadly based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the

Securities and Exchange Board of India on January 5, 2017.

A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held to review the performance of Non­
Independent Directors; performance of the Board as a whole and performance of the

Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of Non-Executive Directors. This

was followed by a Board meeting that discussed the performance of the Board, its Committees
and individual Directors.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of

individual directors on the basis of criteria such as the contribution of the individual director

to the board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed,
meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Director

of the Company had one on one meeting with the Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee discussing the performance of the Board.

In the board meeting and meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the

performance of the board, its committees, and individual directors was also discussed.
Performance evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire board, excluding the
independent director being evaluated.

13. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

During the year under review, the Board of Directors has constituted the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee ('NRC") by passing a circular resolution on November 2, 2020.

Accordingly, the Members of the NRC are as under:

Sr. No. Name of Person Category
1 Mr. Kamlesh Parekh Chairman

2 Ms. Sandhya Kudtarkar Member

3 Mr. Sanjay Dutt Member

The Committee met Once during the year under review. The said meeting was held on

December 3D, 2020. The details of the presence of Members are given herein below:

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
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Name of the Member NRC Meeting Attendance

Mr. Kamlesh Parekh lout of 1
Ms. Sandhya Kudtarkar lout of 1
Mr. Sanjay Dutt lout of 1

The Company's policy on directors' appointment and remuneration and other matters
provided in Section 178(3) of the Act has been annexed to this report at "Annexure A"
and is also available on www.tatarealtv.in

14. Internal Financial Control Systems and their Adequacy

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and
maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial
auditors and external consultants and the reviews performed by management and the relevant
Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the
Company's internal financial controls were adequate and effective.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness
in the design or operation was observed. In the opinion of the Auditors of the Company, there
exists an adequate internal control procedure commensurate with the size of the Company.

15. Audit Committee

During the year under review, the Board of Directors has constituted the Audit Committee

by passing a circular resolution on November 2, 2020. Accordingly, the Members of the
Audit Committee are as under:

Sr. No. Name of Person Category
1 Ms. Sandhya Kudtarkar Chairperson

2 Mr. Kamlesh Parekh Member

3 Mr. Sanjay Dutt Member

The Committee met Once during the year under review. The said meeting was held on
December 30, 2020. The details of the presence of Members are given herein below:

Name of the Member Audit Meeting Attendance

Ms. Sandhya Kudtarkar lout of 1
Mr. Kamlesh Parekh lout of 1
Mr. Sanjay Dutt lout of 1
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16. Auditors

The Shareholders of the Company at their Annual General Meeting held on September 23,
2019 appointed M/s. B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm's Registration No:
101248W/W-100022) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 years
commencing from FY 2019-20.

The requirement to place the matter relating to appointment of auditors for ratification by
Members at every AGM has been done away by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 with
effect from May 7, 2018. Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for ratification of
appointment of statutory auditors at the ensuing AGM.

17. Statutory Auditor's Report and Secretarial Audit Report

The standalone statutory auditor's report and the secretarial audit report do not contain any
qualifications, reservations, or adverse remarks or disclaimer. Secretarial audit report is
attached to this report as Annexure B.

As regard to consolidated statutory auditor's report, the Auditor has put certain qualification
in their report to which management has put forward the following below mentioned reply:

Oualification as is mentioned in the consolidated auditor's report:

The consolidated financial statements include the Group's investment in two joint venture
accounted for by the equity method which is carried at Rs (56.01) crore on the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 March 2021 and the Group's share of the joint venture's net loss (and
other comprehensive income) of Rs 20,21 crore which is included in the Group's consolidated
loss for the year ended 31 March 2021, which is based on the unaudited financial statements
of such joint venture. Consequently, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence and were unable to determine whether any adjustments to these amounts were
necessary.

Management's Response:

In case of two Joint Venture entities the audit got delayed due to COVID-19 related reasons
and the same is expected to be completed in next couple of days.

18. Risk Management

The Company is governed by the Risk Management Charter and Policy Documents. An
integrated Enterprise Risk Management ("ERM") Charter & Policy has been developed with
the objective of establishing a common understanding & methodology for identifying,
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assessing, responding, monitoring & reporting to provide management, the board of directors
with the assurance that key risks are being effectively managed. As per the said Policy, a Risk
Management Steering Committee ('RMSC') comprising of Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Director of the
Company and Functional Heads has been formed. The charter and policies provide the overall
framework for Risk Management process which includes risk identification, assessment,
evolution, treatment and other related process. The RMSC is the Apex Committee in the RM
Organization structure comprising of key decision makers within the Organization. It is
responsible for adopting and implementing the ERM Framework across the Organization. They
are charged with the responsibility of taking decisions to manage the risks and also report
about various initiatives to the Board / Audit Committee and other stakeholders on a regular
basis.

Based on said ERM framework, the risks identified by the Company are reviewed by the
executive team comprising of employees of the Company including the top management. Risk
identification is a continual process and appropriate mitigation plans are deployed as required.
All the risks are evaluated on the count of occurrence and impact. Based on the risk ranking,
high risk areas are identified and presented to the Audit Committee.

19. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

Your Company falls within the scope of the definition "infrastructure company" as provided by
the Act. Accordingly, the Company is exempt from the provisions of Section 186 of the Act
(except Section 186(1) of the Act) with regards to Loans, Guarantees and Investments.

20. Related Party Transactions

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into by the Company during the financial
year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis
and did not attract the provisions of Section 188 (1) of the Act, . These contracts /
arrangements / transactions were reviewed/approved by the Audit Committee from time to
time.

The Company has approved the policy on Related Party Transactions CPolicy'') at its Board
Meeting held on May 18, 2015, to ensure due and proper compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Act. The said Policy also provides guidance for entering into transactions
with related parties to ensure that a proper procedure is defined and followed for approval /
ratification and reporting of transactions as applicable, between the Company and its Related
Parties.

During the financial year, the Company had not entered into any contract / arrangement /
transaction with related parties which could be considered material. In absence of any
prescribed limit for determination of the materiality of a transaction, a contract / arrangement
/ transaction, which meet the respective threshold limit of an amount exceeding 10% of the
Turnover / Net Worth of the Company as per applicable provisions of the Act, shall be
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considered material, considering wholly owned subsidiaries are exempt for the purpose of
Section 188(1) of the Act. In view of the same, the requirement of giving particulars of
contracts / arrangements made with related parties, in Form AOC-2 are not applicable for the
year under review. Nevertheless, the Company has made disclosures of all related party
transactions as per notes to accounts of the standalone audited financial statements for the
FY 2020-21.

21. Corporate Social Responsibility

Presently, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company consists of following
Directors as Its Members:

Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Chairman
Mr. Nipun Aggarwal, Member
Mr. Kamlesh Parekh, Member

However, since the Company is not meeting with the requirements of Section 135of the Act,
the CSR committee is dissolved with effect from June 28, 2021.

22. Extract of Annual Return

As per the requirements of Section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Act and Rules framed
thereunder, the annual return for FY 2020-21 in the prescribed Form No. MGT-7 shall also be
placed on the website of the Company at www.tatarealtv.in.

23. Particulars of Employees

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of
the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed to the Report as Part A of "Annexure C".

The statement containing names of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and
the particulars of employees as required underSection 197(12)ofthe Act, read with Rule 5(2)
and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, is provided in Part B of Annexure C. In terms of proviso to Section 136(1)of the Act,
the Report andAccounts are being sent to the shareholders excluding Part B of "Annexure
C". The said Statement is also open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company.
Any member interested in obtaining a copy of the same maywrite to the Company Secretary.
None of the employees listed in the said Annexure are related to any Director of the Company.

24. Disclosure Requirements

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.
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25. Deposits from Public

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as such, no amount on account

of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of the balance

sheet.

26. Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The particulars relating to the Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign

Exchange Earnings and Outgo as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with

the Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in the "Annexure D" to
this report.

27. CostAuditors

During the year under review, your Board had appointed Mis. Vlnod C. Subramaniam & Co.,
Practicing Cost Accountant having their address at B-504, Mauli Chhaya CHS, Kurar Village,

Kokni Pada, Malad (East), Mumbai 400 097 as Cost Auditors of the Company for conducting
cost audit for the FY 2020-21. Further, during the Financial Year 2021-22, your Board had

reappointed the said Cost Auditor for conducting the cost audit of the Company for the FY
2021-22 and accordingly, a resolution seeking approval of the members for ratifying the

remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for FY 2021-22 is provided in the Notice to the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

As required under Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company confirms
that it has prepared and maintained cost records as specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

28. Details of significant and material orders passed by the Regulator or Courts
or Tribunals impacting the Going Concern Status and Company'sOperations
in Future

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by any
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company's operation
in future.
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29. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position
of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year
of the Company and to which the financial statements relate and the date
of the report

Except as stated above, there are no material changes and commitments affecting the
financial position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year
of the Company to which the financial statements relates and the date of this report.

30. Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy
on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the
provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder for prevention and redressal of complaints of
sexual harassment at workplace.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment Committee (POSH) (Tnternal Committee") is in place asper
the policy and provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Committee has not received any complaints on
alleged harassment, during the year under review.

31. Vigil Mechanism

The Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism Policy ("the Policy"), under Section 177 of
the Act, with a view to provtde a mechanism for employees and Directors of the Company to
approach the Ethics Counsellor to ensure adequate safeguards against victimisation. This
policy is also placed on the website of the Company at www.tatarealty.in and would help to
create an environment where individuals feel free and secure to raise an alarm where they
see a problem. It will also ensure that complainant(s) are protected from retribution, whether
within or outside the organization and makes provision for direct access to the chairperson of
the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. Further, Whistle-blower complaints
are dealt with by a due process of fully investigating the issues and appropriate action being
taken based on the enquiry. The Board believes that there is no material impact of any such
open matter on March 31, 2021, in the financial statements of the company.

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in

Website: www.tatarealty.in



G
TATA

Acknowledgement

The Directors thank the Company's employees, customers, vendors, investors and academic
partners for their continuous support.

The Directors also thank the Government of India, Governments of various states in India,
Governments of various countries and concerned Government departments and agencies for
their co-operation.

On Behalf of the Board of Directors
For Tata Value Homes Limited

Sanjay Dutt
Director
DIN: 05251670

"-' f» ':-1~1s: r,

Nipun Aggarwal
Director
DIN: 08094159

a. Remuneration Policy- Directors, KMP and other employees
b. Advisory note NED remuneration
Secretarial Audit Report (MR-3)
Details of Remuneration of Directors, Employees and comparatives
Conservation of Energy, Tech. Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings
& Outgo

Date: September 1, 2021
Place: Mumbai

End:
Annexure A

Annexure B
Annexure C
Annexure D

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec(cj)tatarealtv.in

Website: www.tatarealty.in



G
TATA

Annexure A (a)

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND
OTHER EMPLOYEES

The philosophy for remuneration of directors, Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP") and all
other employees of Tata Value Homes Limited ("Company") is based on the commitment of
fostering a culture of leadership with trust. The remuneration policy is aligned to this
philosophy.

This remuneration policy has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(3) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") and Clause 49(IV)(B)(1) of the Equity Listing Agreement
("Listing Agreement"). In case of any inconsistency between the provisions of law and
this remuneration policy, the provisions of the law shall prevail and the company shall abide
by the applicable law. While formulating this policy, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee ("NRC") has considered the factors laid down under Section 178(4) of the Act,
which are as under:

"(e) the level and composition ofremuneration Is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain
and motivate directors ofthe quality required to run the company successfully;

(b) relationship ofremuneration to performance Is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

(c) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management Involves a
balance between fixed and Incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance
objectives appropriate to the working ofthe company and Its goals"

Key principles governing this remuneration policy are as follows:

• Remuneration for independent directors and non-independent non-executive
directors

o Independent directors ("IO") and non-independent non-executive directors ("NED") may
be paid sitting fees (for attending the meetings of the Board and of committees of which
they may be members) and commission within regulatory limits.

o Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and commission will
be recommended by the NRC and approved by the Board.

o Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain and motivate directors aligned to the requirements of the company (taking
into consideration the challenges faced by the company and its future growth imperatives).

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
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Annexure A (a)
o Overall remuneration should be reflective of size of the company, complexity of the sector/
industry/ company's operations and the company's capacity to pay the remuneration.

o Overall remuneration practices should be consistent with recognized best practices.

o Quantum of sitting fees may be subject to review on a periodic basis, as required.

o The aggregate commission payable to all the NEDs and IDs will be recommended by the
NRC to the Board based on company performance, profits, return to investors, shareholder
value creation and any other significant qualitative parameters as may be decided by the
Board.

o The NRC will recommend to the Board the quantum of commission for each director based
upon the outcome of the evaluation process which is driven by various factors including
attendance and time spent in the Board and committee meetings, individual contributions at
the meetings and contributions made by directors other than in meetings.

o In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the company may pay to any director such
fair and reasonable expenditure, as may have been incurred by the director while
performing his/ her role as a director of the company. This could include reasonable
expenditure incurred by the director for attending Board/ Board committee meetings,
general meetings, court convened meetings, meetings with shareholders/ creditors/
management, site visits, induction and training (organized by the company for directors)
and in obtaining professional advice from independent advisors in the furtherance of his/ her
duties as a director .

• Remuneration for managing director ("MD")! executive directors ("ED")! KMP/
rest of the employees!

o The extent of overall remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain talented and
qualified individuals suitable for every role. Hence remuneration should be:

• Market competitive (market for every role is defined as companies from which the
company attracts talent or companies to which the company loses talent)

• Driven by the role played by the individual,
• Reflective of size of the company, complexity of the sector/ industry/ company's

operations and the company's capacity to pay,

'Excludes employees covered by any long term settlements or specific term contracts.
The remuneration for these employees would be driven by the respective long term
settlements or contracts.

• Consistent with recognized best practices and
• Aligned to any regulatory requirements.
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o In terms of remuneration mix or composition,

• The remuneration mix for the MD/ EDs is as per the contract approved by the
shareholders. In case of any change, the same would require the approval of the
shareholders.

• Basic/ fixed salary is provided to all employees to ensure that there is a steady income
in line with their skills and experience.

• In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, the company provides employees with certain
perquisites, allowances and benefits to enable a certain level of lifestyle and to offer
scope for savings and tax optimization, where possible. The company also provides all
employees with a social security net (subject to limits) by covering medical expenses
and hospitalization through re-imbursements or insurance cover and accidental death
and dismemberment through personal accident insurance.

• The company provides retirement benefits as applicable.

• [In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances as provided
above, the company provides MD/ EDs such remuneration by way of commission,
calculated with reference to the net profits of the company in a particular financial year,
as may be determined by the Board, subject to the overall ceilings stipulated in Section
197 of the Act. The specific amount payable to the MD/ EDs would be based on
performance as evaluated by the Board or the NRC and approved by the Board.]?

• [In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances as provided
above, the company provides MD/ EDs such remuneration by way of an annual
incentive remuneration/ performance linked bonus subject to the achievement of
certain performance criteria and such other parameters as may be considered
appropriate from time to time by the Board. An indicative list of factors that may be
considered for determination of the extent of this component are:

./ Company performance on certain defined qualitative and quantitative
parameters as may be decided by the Board from time to time,

./ Industry benchmarks of remuneration,

./ Performance of the lndlvldual.]'

2 To be retained if Commission is provided to MD/ EDs
3 To be retained only if Commission is not provided to MD/ EDs
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• The company provides the rest of the employees a performance linked bonus. The

performance linked bonus would be driven by the outcome of the performance
appraisal process and the performance of the company.

• Remuneration payable to Director for services rendered in other capacity

The remuneration payable to the Directors shall be inclusive of any remuneration payable
for services rendered by such director in any other capacity unless:

a) The services rendered are of a professional nature; and
b) The NRC is of the opinion that the director possesses requisite qualification for the
practice of the profession.

• Policy implementation

The NRC is responsible for recommending the remuneration policy to the Board. The Board
is responsible for approving and overseeing implementation of the remuneration policy.

For Tata Value Homes Limited

Sdj-

Sanjay Dutt
Director
DIN: 05251670

For Tata Value Homes Limited

Sanjay Dutt
Director
DIN: 05251670

Date: September 1, 2021
Place: Mumbai

Nipun Aggarwal
Director
DIN: 08094159
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Annexure A (b)

Payment of sitting fees and commission for Non-Executive Directors I

1. Introduction

This document ['Advisory Note") serves as an advisory for payment of sitting fees and
commission to directors based on current and emerging best practices from both within and
outside Tata companies'. The document has been written from an Indian perspective and
prepared keeping in view the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ['Act") and the
corporate governance requirements as prescribed by Securities and Exchange Board of India
['SEBI'') under Clause 49 of the Equity Listing Agreement ['Clause 49''). In case of any
inconsistency between the provisions of law and this Advisory Note, the provisions of the
law shall prevail and the company shall abide by the applicable law. In case there are any
changes in the law, companies will have to comply with the applicable amended provisions.

2. Principles

The principles governing sitting fees and commission are as follows:

• Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and sufficient
to attract, retain and motivate directors aligned to the requirements of the company
(taking into consideration the challenges faced by the company and its future growth
imperatives).

• Overall remuneration should be reflective of size of the company, complexity of the
sector/ industry/ company's operations and the company's capacity to pay.

• Overall remuneration practices should be consistent with recognized best practices.

• The extent of remuneration should be as per the prescribed law.

• Quantum of sitting fees may be subject to review on a periodic basis, as required.

3. Sitting Fees

• The quantum of sitting fees payable per meeting is to be approved by the Board of
directors ['Board"), based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee ['NRC''), and shall remain applicable unless modified in the future by the
Board based on the recommendation of the NRC.

• 1 For the purpose of this document,a 'Tata company"shall mean rata Sons limited and everycompany of whichTata Sons Limited
or Tata Industrieslimited or any company promoted byTata Sons Limited or Tata IndustriesLimited is the promoteror In whichsuch
companies whether singly or collectively hold directly or Indirectly 26% or more of the paid up equity share capital or In which the
shareholding of such companies represents the largest Indian holdingapart from holdings of financial institutions! mutual fundsor a
company whichis permittedby Tata Sons Limited to usethe Tate brand/ name.

1
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• As per the Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, "A company may pay sitting fee to a director for attending
meetings of the Board or committees thereof, of such per meeting of the Board or
committee thereof:

Provided that for independent directors and women directors, the sitting fee shall not be
less than the sitting fee payable to other directors."

• While determining the quantum of sitting fees payable, the Board may consider the
quantum of such fees paid in the past and follow a staggered approach for increasing
the quantum upto the prescribed limit.

• In case of Tata companies that currently and in the foreseeable future do not have
adequate profits to pay commission (in the judgment of their respective Boards), it is
suggested that quantum of sitting fees balance the need to attract the right caliber of
directors and the company's capacity to pay. The Board of such a company (supported
by the NRC) may determine sitting fees such that the total annual remuneration payable
to each director (eligible for sitting fees) amounts to at least Rupees six lakhs and does
not exceed Rupees twelve lakhs. In case the Board (supported by the NRC) is of the
view that the total annual remuneration payable to each director must exceed Rupees
twelve lakhs, the matter would be referred to the NRC of the parent/ holding company
for consideration/ approval. The range of annual remuneration provided herein are
subject to review at least once in every 3 years by the Board (supported by the NRC).

• However, it is recommended that the per meeting sitting fees payable to current
employees of Tata companies who are non-executive directors ("NED") other than
woman directors on Boards of Indian Tata companies not exceed Rs.20,000.

• Sitting fees may vary for Board meetings and various committee meetings. Same
amount of sitting fees per meeting may be considered for Board meetings, Audit
Committee meetings and NRC meetings.

• The Board and committees should meet as often as it is necessary in the best interest of
the company. Normally, we have observed that the frequency of meetings are typically
as follows:

a Board meetings: 4-8 in a year
o Audit Committee: 6-8 in a year
a Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 3-4 in a year
o Committee of the Board: 6-8 in a year
o Other Committees: 1-3 in a year

However, it is the Board/ committee's discretion to have more frequent meetings, if so
required.

2
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• If any Board j committee meeting is held solely for approving a procedural matter, the
directors present may, at their entire discretion, resolve not to take any sitting fee for
that meeting.

4. Commission

• The payment and computation of commission will be governed by gUidelines issued in
the past in this regard.

For Tata Value Homes Limited

Sdj-

Sanjay Dutt
Director
DIN: 05251670

For Tata Value Homes Limited

Sanjay Dutt
Director
DIN: 05251670

Date: September 1, 2021
Place: Mumbai
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Nipun Aggarwal
Director

DIN: 08094159
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BHATT & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES LLP

Form No. MR·3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule IVo. 9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 20141

To,

The Members.

Tata Value Homes Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions

and the adherence to good corporate governance practice by Tata Value Homes Limited

(hereinafter called "the Company'). Secretarial Audit was conoucted in a manner that

provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the ccrporare conducts I statutory

compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books. papers. minutes books, forms and retums

filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of

secretarial aUdit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, dUring the audit

period covering the financial year ended on 31" March, 2021, complied with the statutory

provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and

compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and retums filed and other

records maintained by the Company, for the financial year ended on 31" March, 2021,
according to the provisions of:

L The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

0/101, Lata Annexe, Above Axis Bank, W. E. Highway, Borivali (East), Mumbai - 400 066.
Mob. : 9867151081, 80979 85754. Telefax: 022 28461715

Email: mail@aashishbhatt.in • W. : www.aasntshbhatt.tn
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h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities)

Regulations, 2018 - Not applicable.

vi. Further we report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the

Company and on examination of the relevant documents, records in pursuance

thereof, on test-check basis and on declaration by the officer in charoe. the
Company has complied with The Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act,

2016 and its Rules, regulation, notifications, Orders and Circulars etc., pertaining

to infrastructural Development Companies.

On account of pandemic "COVID 2019" and restrictions imposed by the state government,

the audit process has been modified, wherein certain documents Irecords etc were verified

in electronic mode, and have relied on the representations received from the Company for its

accuracy and authenticity.

We have examined compliances with applicable clauses of:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India for

General Meetings and Board Meetings.

II. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the financial year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the

Act, Rules, Regulations, GUidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. As regard to

appointment of Independent Directors and constitution of requisite Committee(s), it was

informed to us that the Company had made its best efforts to iind them and they have

concluded such appointment on November 10, 2020 and thereafter the Company had

constituted the requisite Committees as required under the Act.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non­

Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes ir the composition of the

Board of Directors that took place during the year under review were carried out in

compliance with the provisions of the Act.



Bhatt &. Assoclatn Company Secretaries LLP

APPENDIX A

To,

The Members

Tata Value Homes Limited

OUf report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the

company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based

on our audit.

2. We navs followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.

The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in

secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We nave not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books

of Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and othe' applicable laws, rules,

requlatlons, standards is the responsibility of management. OLr examination was limited

10 the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to :he future viability of the

company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted

the affairs of the company.

For Bhatt &. Associates Company Secretaries LLP

Mumbai

Date: 26.06.2021

e", -,.,~ .
~t1i~8hatt

~' ,,/

Designated Partner

ACS No: 36181, COP No.: 13376
UDIN: A036181C000511843
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Part A
"Annexure C"

DISCLOSURE OF MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

a- The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the
Company for the financiai year:

*Not Applicable as only slttmg fees IS paid

Sr. Name of Director Ratio of Director's remuneration to the
No, median remuneration ofthe

employees of the Company for the
financial year

1 Mr. Sanjay Dull NIL (receives Annual remuneration from
Designation: Director TRIL and THDC)

2 Mr. Nipun Aggarwal* NA
Designation: Director

3 Ms. Renu Basu* NA
Designation: Director

4 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar* NA
Designation: Independent Director

5 Mr. Kamlesh Parekh* NA
Designation: Independent Director..

b- The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

Sr. Name of Director and Key Managerial Percentage (%) increase in
No. Personnel remuneration in the financial

year
1 Mr. Sanjay Dutt NIL (receives Annual remuneration

Desiqnation: Director from TRIL and THDC)
2 Mr. Nipun Aggarwal Not Applicable, as only sitting fees

Desionation: Director - beino paid
3 Ms. Renu Basu Not Applicable, as only sitting fees

Desionation: Director belnq paid
4 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar* Not Applicable, as only sitting fees

Designation: Independent Director being paid
S Mr. Kamlesh Parekh* Not Applicable, as only sitting fees

Designation: Independent Director being paid
6 Mr. Bhavesh Madeka -

Desiqnation: ChiefExecutive Officer
7 Mr. Khiroda Jena 10%

Desionation: Chief Financial Officer
8 Ms. Mrunal Shukla Not Applicable, as remuneration is

Designation: Company Secretary paid from holding Company (i.e.,
from THDC)

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
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(c) The median remuneration of employees of the Companyduring the financial year 2020-21 was
INR 10,80,996/- per annum & The percentage increase in the median remuneration of
employees in the financial year: 0%

(d) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company: 77
(e) (i) Average percentile increase in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel

was 0%;
(ii) Average increase in remuneration of Managers (defined as MD and ED on the board of the

Company) was NA
Reason: -

(f) It is affirmed that the remuneration is as per the 'Remuneration Policyfor Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other employees, approved by the Board.

For the purposes of the above.-

(i) the expression "median" means the numerical value separating the higher half of a population
from the lower half and the median of a finite list of numbers may be found by arranging all
the observations from lowest value to highest value and picking the middle one.

(iI) if there is an even number of observations, the median shall be the average of the two middle
values.

On Behalf of the Board of Directors
Tata Value Homes limited

Sanjay Dutt
Director
DIN:05251670

Date: September 1, 2021
Place: Mumbai

f ",( r. "r:
Nipun Aggarwal
Director
DIN: 08094159
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Annex- D

THE CONSERVATION OF ENERGY. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

THE CONSERVATION OF ENERGY. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION. FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars relating to the Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as under:

A. Conservation of Energy

Considering the nature of activities undertaken by the Company, the Company has taken certain
feasible initiatives/steps towards sustainability, which include initiatives which has impact on
energy conservation,

Steps taken or Impact on Conservation of Energy

Sustainability is an integral part of the Company's business philosophy. The Board of Directors of
the Company has urged its stakeholders for undertaking appropriate steps for conservation of
energy. The Company has always endeavor to undertake appropriate steps for conservation of
energy. In this regard, the Company has taken the follOWing steps in the project:

a. Energy metering: Energy meters for external lighting, municipal water pumping, grey
water pumping (for flushing) and water pumping for landscaping;

b. Installation of energy efficient equipment: Minimum 60% efficiency for pumps
greater than 3HP and lSI rated pumps for others, minimum 75% efficiency for motors

greater than 3HP and lSI rated motors for others, elevators operating with intelligent

group controls and water level controllers;
c. Electric Charging Facility for Vehicles: Electric Charging Facility shall be provided for

5 % of total parking;
d. Use of maximum daylight: Use of maximum Day light in Apartments and common

areas by providing glazed windows facing South /North Direction;
e. Use of natural ventilation: Useof natural ventilation in Apartments and common areas

by providing big size windows facing South /North Direction;

TATA VALUE HOMES LIMITED
CIN: U45400MH2009PLC195605
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f. Energy efficient light fixtures: Use of Energy efficient fixtures like LED, T5 having low
power consumptions;

g. Low loss transformers: Use of Level 2 Transformers which have low / no load and fuli
load losses;

h. Energy efficient air conditioning: Use of 5 star rated AC having low power
consumption;

i. Lighting Automation: Use of timers and other energy saving devices for common area

lights, in case of day time it will switch off through automation; and
j. Home automation: Home Automation is done to reduce ideal mode power

consumptions of lights, fans, AC and other electrical devices.

Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of Energy

a. Employee awareness: The Company has in its day to day working environment have
urged its employees for usage of electronic gadgets which saves energy, encouraging

carpooling, make them aware about water conservation, climate change, waste
management and energy conservation with a view to encourage water and energy
conservation.

b. Use of Solar Powered Lights in common areas and landscape to reduce power demand of
project.

c. At Corporate Office, Company switch off 50% AC plant during lunch for one hour. The
Company has also kept water taps on low force setting to save water and used signage's
to minimize use of paper and water in washrooms. Further, Lights are switched off in
pockets beyond 6.30 pm as staff leaves. Waste bottled water is being used for cleaning

and plants.

Capital investment on energy conservation equipment's:

During the year under review, the Company has not undertaken any capital investment on energy
conservation equipment.

B. Technology Absorption

(I) Efforts made towards technology absorption:
The Company endeavors to undertake alternatives for technology absorption. However, during
the FY 2020-21, the Company has not undertaken activities relating to technology absorption.
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(ii) Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution:
The Company has not undertaken new technology implementation during the FY 2020-21.
(iii) Imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of
the financial year)-
The Company has not imported any technology during the last three years immediately preceding
the FY 2020-21.
(iv) Expenditure incurred on Research and Development.

The Company has not incurred any expense on Research and Development during the FY 2020­
21.

c. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo

Disclosure of information relating to Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo as required is already
given in Notes, which forms part of the audited financial statements for the year ended March
31, 2021.

On Behalf of the Board of Directors
For Tata Value Homes Limited

Sanjay Dutt
Director
DIN: 05251670

Date: September 1, 2021
Place: Mumbai

/ ,
~'- ,) , ' ~.. / y-
Nipun Aggarwal
Director
DIN: 08094159
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·B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing,
Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco Center,
Western Express Highway,
Goregaon (East), Murnbal - 400 063

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Tata Value Homes Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Telephone: +912262571000
Fax: +91 22 6257 1010

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Tata Value Homes limited ("the Company"), which
comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the standalone statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in equity and standalone statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilitiesfor the
Audit ofthe Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chattered Accountants of India together wi111
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 0111er ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of E111ics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the standalone financial statements ofthe current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Registered Office:

B S R & Co.(apartnershipfirm w"\h Registration No, BA612231 converted into B S R & Co.LLP 14th Floor, Central B WingandNortheWing, NeeceIT Park 4, Nesco
Ia Limited Liability Partnershipwith LlP Aeaistmtion No.MB-8181) witheffect from October 14, 2013 Center, Western Express Highway, ecreaeon {East}, Mumbai .400063
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPOIU(Continued)

Tata Value Homes Limited

Key Audit Matter (continued)

Description ofKcy Audit Matter

Revenue Recognition
See note 22 to the standalone financial statements

The key audit matter
Revenues from sale of residential units represents
the largest portion of the total revenues of the
Company.

In accordance with Ind AS 115 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers, the analysis ofwhether
these contracts comprise one or more performance
obligations, and whether the performance
obligations are satisfied over time or at a point in
time, are areas requiring critical judgement by the
Company. Revenue is recognised upon transfer of
control of residential and commercial units to
customers for an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expects to
receive in exchange for those units and the
customer has the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received! accrued. Revenue is
adjusted for estimated cost pending to be incurred
by the Company for the completion of the project.

Considering the significance of revenue to the
financial statements the same has been considered
as a kev audit matter

NRV of Inventortes
See note 8 to the standalone financial statements
The kev audit matter
The Company's inventories comprise of ongoing
and completed real estate projects, inventory ofthe
projects which have not yet commenced and
development rights. As at 31 March 2021, the
carrying values of inventories amounts to
42,898.58 Lakhs.

Inventories are carried at the lower of the cost and
net realizable valne ('NRV'). The determination of
the NRV involves estimates based on prevailing

How the matter was addressed in our audit
0111' audit procedures on Revenue recognition
included the following:
- Evaluate the Company's revenue recognition

accounting policies, their application to the
customer contracts vis a vis the requirements of
the applicable accounting standards;

- Identification and evaluation of the design and
implementation of key controls over existence
and recording of revenue recognised for the
projects along with the testing of operating
effectiveness thereof;

- Evaluating the criteria applied by the Company
for determining the point in time at which
revenue is recognised;

- agree the amount of revenue recognised with the
underlying agreements with the customers on the
sample basis; and

- Test on a sample basis the discounts granted are
as per Company policies.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our audit procedures included the following:
• Evaluate the Company's accounting policies for
inventory VIS a vis the requirements of the
applicable accounting standards;
- We evaluated the design and implementation of
controls over determination ofNRV of inventories
including the process, methodology and key
assumptions on selling price, estimated cost to
complete the project and tested the operating
effectiveness thereof;

2
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market conditions, current prices and expected date
of commencement and completion of the project,
the estimated future selling price, cost to complete
projects and selling costs.

Considering significance of the carrying value of
inventories to the financial statements and the
involvement of significant estimation and
judgement in such assessment of NRV, the same
has been considered as a kev audit matter.

- Evaluate the Company's judgement with regards
to application of write-down of inventory units by
auditing the key estimates, data inputs and
assumptions adopted in the valuations.
- We have tested the NRV of the inventories to its
carrying value in books on sample basis.

Investment in Subsldiartes and loans to group companies
See note 4 and 5 to the standalone financial statements
The key audit matter
The Company has significant investments in and
loan to its subsidiaries and joint ventures. As at 31
March 2021, the carrying values of Company's
investment in its subsidiaries and joint ventures
amounts to 1l,021.87 Lakhs and loans to
subsidiaries and joint ventures amount to
19,057.76lalchs,

The Company evaluates for any indicators of
impairment of the investments and loans exist by
reference to the requirements under Ind AS 36
"Impairment ofAssets".

For investments and loans where impairment
indicators exist, significant judgments are required
to determine the key assumptions used in the
discounted cash flow models, such as revenue
growth, unit price and discount rates. Considering,
the impairment assessment involves significant
assumptions and judgement, the same has been
considered as a key audit matter.

Othcr Infurmatlen

How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our procedures in assessing the management's
judgement for the impairment assessment
included, inter alia, the following:
- We assessed the Company's valuation
methodology applied in determining the
impairment if any ofthe investments and loans;
-Evalnate the design and implementation and
tested the operating effectiveness of controls over
the Company's process of assessment of
impairment and approval of forecasts.
- We obtained and read the valuations used by the
management (including by external valuer where
available) for determining the fair value
('recoverable amount') of its investments and
loans;
- We tested the fair value of the investment and
loans given as mentioned in the valuation report to
the carrying value in books;
- Made inquiries with management to understand
key drivers of the casb flow forecasts, discount
rates etc
- Involved our valuation specialist to evaluate the
assumptions used by the management specialists.
We read the disclosures made in the financial
statements regarding such investments.

The Company's Board ofDirectors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Company's Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of our
auditor's report.
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements doesnot cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

3
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INDEPEND:ENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continned)

Tata Value Homes Limited

Other Information (continued)

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Management's and Board of Direetors' Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board ofDirectors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or eITOr.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continne as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using tile going concern basis of accounting unless the Board ofDirectors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board ofDirectors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material it: individually or in the aggregate, they conld
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism thronghout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks ofmaterial misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resnlting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

4
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued)

Tata Value Homes Limited

Auditor's Responsibilities fOI' the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures in the standalone financial statements made by the Management and Board of
Directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board ofDirectors use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. Ifwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, ifsuch disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

• Evalnate the overall presentation, structure and content ofthe standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with.relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
ofmost significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements ofthe current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe Order, to the extent applicable.

5
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued)

Tata Value Homes Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books

c) The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 ofthe Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021 taken
on record by the Board ofDirectors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure B".

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule II
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best ofour information
and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2021 on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 37 to the standalone
financial statements;

II. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

IV. The disclosures in the standalone financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings
in specified bank notes dnring the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have
not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the fmancial year ended
31 March 2021.

~
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continned)

Tata Value Homes Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report uuder section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions ofSection
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForB S R & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 101248WfW100022)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 lime 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued)

Tata Value Homes Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report - 31 Mareh 2021

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the
Company on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021, we report the following:

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation offixed assets.

(b) The Company has physically verified its fixed assets during the year. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size ofthe Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
ofthe records ofthe Company, the Company does not have any immovable properties offreehold
or leasehold land and huilding and hence reporting under clause (i) (c) of CARO 2016 is not
applicable.

(ii) The Company's inventory comprises construction materials, construction work-in-progress and
finished goods. The requirements of paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to construction
work in progress. The inventory of construction material and finished goods has been physically
verified by the management during the year. No material discrepancies were noticed on verification
between the physical stocks and the book records. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification
is reasonable.

(iii) The Company has granted unsecured loans to two companies covered in the register maintained nnder
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). Other than the aforesaid loans, the Company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to any firms or limited liability partnerships covered
in the register maintained under Section 189 ofthe Act.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, we are ofthe opinion that the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on
which the unsecured loans have been granted to the companies listed in the register maintained
under Section 189 of the Act are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, principal on one of the aforesaid
unsecured loans is repayable on demand and the principal amount and interest thereon on the
other is repayable after repayment of all external debts of the borrowing company. The loans
repayable on demand was not demanded hy the Company during the year and based on its terms
the second loan is not repayable and accordingly, the provision relating to regularity ofrepayment
ofprincipal is not applicable. Interest on one loan is payable monthly but the same has not been
paid by the company. As indicated earlier interest on the second loan is due only on repayment
of the external debts by the borrowing company.

(c) The amount of interest overdue for more than 90 days at balance sheet date in respect the loan
referred to in b above is Rs 4.16 crores. Management has represented that the loan has been given
to the company to meet its project funding requirements and will be collected once the entity
generates cash inflows.

8
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued)

Tata Value Homes Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2021

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 of the Act is respect of loans covered by the said
section. According to the information and explanation given to us, the provisions of section 186 of
the Act in respect ofthe loan given, guarantee given or securities provided are not applicable to the
Company, since it is covered as a Company engaged in business of providing infrastructural
facilities. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has compiled
with the provisions of Section 186 of the in respect of the investment made during the year.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted deposits as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank ofIndia under the provisions
of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under,
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance ofcost records under Section 148 (1) ofthe
Act and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made
and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the records.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, amounts deducted! accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income tax,
Goods and service tax, Profession tax, Duty of customs, Cess and other material statutory dues
have been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income tax, Goods and service tax,
Professional tax, Duty of customs, Cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at
31 March 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(h) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues ofIncome Tax,
Goods and service tax, Sales tax, Value added tax and Duty of customs as on31 March 2021,
which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment ofloans or debenture hoiders. The Company did not have any outstanding
dues to government and fmancial institutions during the year.

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
and has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the management.

8tft
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued)

Tata Value Homes Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2021

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not paid! provided for managerial remuneration and
accordingly reporting under clause (xi) ofCARO 2016 is not applicable.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rilles, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has entered into transactions with the related parties in
compliance with Sections 177and 188 ofthe Act.The details of such related party transactions have
been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS financials statements as required by Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosure specified under Section 133 ofthe Act, read with rille
3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xiv) of
the order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ForB SR&CoLLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 101248WIWI00022)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 June 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued)

Tata Value Homes Limited
Annexure B to the Independent Auditors' report on the financial statements of Tata Value Homes
Limited for the period euded 31 March 2021.

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph A(g) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section
of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements ofTata Value
Homes Limited ("the Company") as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In om opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021,
based on the internal financial control s with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants ofIndia (the "Guidance Note").

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation ofreIiable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred
to as "the Act").

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on om audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
reqnire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of'the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit ofinternal financial
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating

11
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continned)

Tata Value Homes Limited
Auditors' Responsibility (Continued)

effectivenessof internal controlbased on the assessed risk The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements,whether due to fraud or error.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for om
audit opinionon the Company's internal financial controlswith reference to standalone financial statements.

A company'sinternal financial controlswith referenceto financial statements is a processdesigned to provide
reasonableassuranceregardingthe reliabilityof'financial reportingandthe preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controlswith referenceto financial statementsincludethose policiesand proceduresthat (I) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactionsare recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of managementand directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonableassurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitationsoflnternal Financial controls with Reference to Finaneial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controlswith referenceto financialstatementsto futureperiodsaresubjectto the riskthat the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliancewith the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForB SR& CoLLP
Chartered Accountants

(Finn's RegistrationNo. 101248W/WI00022)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 June 2021
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ASSETS

Particulars

Tata Value Homes Limited

standalone Balance Sheet
as (1/ 3/ March 2021

.1_
TAT"

(it in Lakhs)

Asat As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

28.31 35.43
0.21

11,021.87 10,994.87
19,057.76 17,442.71

113.16 102.75
884.53 826.18

1,342.39 1,361.09
32,448.02 30,763.24

42,898.58 54,059.30

8,062.76 8,157.94
33.66

1,135.90 529.56
7.86 20.77

1,234.72 1,415.15
53,339.82 64,216.38

85.787.84 94.979.62

80,000.00 40,000.00
(52,895.68) (38,733.50)
27,104.32 1,266.50

4
5
6
7
7

3(a)
3(b)

9
10
11
12
13

8

14
15

Note
No.

Current assets
Inventories
Financialassets
i. Tradereceivables
ii. Loans
iii. Cash and cash equivalents
iv. Other financialassets
Othercurrentassets
Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets
Financialassets
i.Investmcnts
ii.Loans
iii.Otherfinancialassets
Income-tax assets (net)
Deferred tax assets (net)
Total Non-Current Assets

2

II EQUITY AND LIAB[LITIES

Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Total Equity

LIABILITIES

2 Non-current Iiablllties
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings
ii. Trade payables

A. Total outstandingdues of micro and smallenterprises
B. Total outstandingdues of creditors other than micro and smallenterprises

iii. Other financial liabilities

Total Non-Current Liabilities

3 Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings
ii. Trade payables

A. Total outstanding dues of micro and smallenterprises
B. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

iii. Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Total current liallDitics

Total liabilities

Total Equity and LiabUities

The accompanying notes I to 39 lirean integral part of the standalone financial statements

/6 19,996.21 52,710.63
18((1)

147.11 56.73
19(a) 22.30 75.21

20.165.62 52,842.57

17 20,365.03 21,036.25
/8 (b)

2,762.93 2,706.29
/9(b) 13,307.10 14,628.28
20 366.99 390.81
2/ 1.715.85 2,108.92

38,517.90 40.87055

58,683.52 93,713.12

85,787.84 94,979.62

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

!!!~
Partner
MembershipNo: 105731

Mumbai
28 June 2021

..

Sanjay Dutt
Director

W I670

Bh""'h~U~G"hiefExecutive Officer --.
DIN: 06604406

28 June 2021

~~:CI59

~~aJena
Chief FinancialOfficer

DIN' 06928529

}~lShUkla
Company Secretary

MembershipNo: A31734



Tata Value Homes Limited

Standalone Statement of profit and loss
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Particulars

INCOME
I. Revenue from Operations
II. Other Income

III. Total Income

IV. EXPENSES
ConstructionCosts
BmploveeBenefitsExpenses
Finance Costs
Depreciationand AmortisationExpense
Other Expenses

Total Expenses

V Loss before Impairment of equity investment in and loans given to subsidiaries and
joint ventures (Ill-IV)

VI Impairment of equity investment in and loans given to subsidiaries and joint ventures

VII Loss before tax (V-VI)

Tax expense:
Current tax
Deferred tax charge

VlIl Income tax expense

IX Loss for the year (VII-VIII)

X Other comprehensive lneome
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurements of oost-emolovment benefit obligations
Income tax on the above

Other Comnrehenstve Income/(Loss) for the year, net of tax

XI Total Comprehensive Loss for the year

Note
No.

22
23

24
25

3{o)
26

7

For the year ended
31 March 2021

7,095.49
1,993.30

9,088.79

6,449.82
1,226.19
7.181,80

16.09
8,388.30

23,262.20

(14,173.41)

(14,173.41)

13.60
18.70
32.30

<14,205.71)

43,53

43.53

(14.162,18)

(l: in Lakhs)
For the year ended

31 March 2020

9.955.27
1,932.38

11,887.65

8.661,01
1,488.50
6.900.95

11.14
2,672.70

19,734.29

(7,846.65)

1,158.00

(9.004.65)

I 854.65
1,854.65

no859.30)

(13.34)
2.50

(10.84)

(10,870.14)

XII Earnfnas per Ordinary share:
Basic and diluted earnings per share (face value on 10/R each) (In t)

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 are an integral part ofthe standalone financial statements

34
12.7ll

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tata Value Homes Limited

C1N : U45400MH2009PLC195605

ForB S R&Co. LLP
Chartered accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248WIW-I00022

H~('
Partner
Membership No: 105731

Mumbai
28 June 2021

~\Itt::
Sanjay Dutt
Director
DIN, 05251670

W~
.Bhavesh Madeka .- •
ChiefExecutive Officer
DIN,06604406

28 June 2021

N~¥iA.fwal
Director

DIN,08094159

Khr handra Jena
ChiefFinancia/ Officer

DIN, 06928529

~
Mrunal Shu Ida

Company Secretary
Membership No: A31734



Tata Value Homes Limited

Standalone statement of changes in equity
for tile vear ended31 March2021

A) Equity Share Capital

(fin Lakh,)

Partlonlnn

Opening balan••

Change,Ineq,,;tyshore capl",1

Closinglnlaneo 14

Ant

31 MOfoh2021

40,1100,00

40,000.00

80,000.00

AUI

31Mar<h202Q

40.000.00

40,000,00

B) Other equity

Pnrll.Qlars

Balance ns atl Aprlll019

Loss for they<~r

Other comprehensi"" Incomo I (I'm) furthe yeIll(oet orloxel;)

A. ot31 March 1010

BnlnnceA!III1 Aprll2/l20

Lossforlheyell'

O1hcr<omp,ehe'l!Il"" Income I (lOis) forthe yell' (netof In"",,)

.... at 31 March 2021

Nnle

(flnLokb.)

R.,.rv~.and Snrplas

Debenture r«temptlon Tolal Comprehons!vo Incnrno Total

reserve Ret1llnod eflrnlng. Other <omprehen.llve Tornl
InoomoI lIoss}

1,111.96 (28.988.31) 12.99 (28,915.32) (27,863.36)

(IO.859.30) (10,859.30) (10.859,30)

(10.84) (Hl,M) (lll,M)

1,111.96 (39,847.61) 2.15 (39,845.46) (38,733.50)

1,111.96 (39,847.m 2.15 (39,845.46) (311,7l3.50)

(14,205.71) (14,205.71) (14,205.11)

43.53 43.53 43.53

1,111.96 (S4,053.31) 45.68 (54,001.64) (52,895.68)

The accompanvingnotes 1 to 39 are lin integralpartofthe standnlonefinancialstatements

ChiefExecl/tive Officer
DIN: 06504406

DIN: 05251670

(j1~fA:

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tata Value Homes Limited

CIN : U4S400MH2009PLCi95605

N~"'I
Director

DIN: 08094159

~d:'",
ChiefFiIlGl1daIO/]Jcer

DIN: 06928529

~
Mrunal Shukla

Company Secretary
MembershipNo:A3l734

28 June 2021

Sanjny Dun
Director

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered accountants
Firm's RegistrationNo: 101248W/W-100022

Mumbai
28 June 2021



Tata Value Homes Limited

Standalone Cash Flow Statement
for the yearended 31 March 2021

Particulars

A. Cash flow from OperatiU1! activities
Lossbefore tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation I Amortisation
Net (Gain)I Losson sale of property,plant and equipment
Interest on income tax refund
Interest income
Finance cost
Impairment of equity investment in and loans given to subsidiaries and joint ventures

ImpactofNRVon inventory
Provision for Customer Compensation
Provision for GST liabilities
Operating Loss before Working Capital Changes

Adjustments for changes in working capital:­
DecreaseI (Increase)in trade receivables
Decrease in inventories
Decreasein other financial assets, other assets (currentand non-current)
(Decrease) in trade payablea, other financialliabilities, other liabilities and provisions

(current and non-current)
Cosh generated from Operating activities
Direct Tuxes paid (net)
Net Cash flows generated from Operating activities A

B. Cash flow from Investing activities
Purchase ofproperty, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant und equipment

Loans granted
Loans repaid
Purchase of investments
Fixeddeposit made
Interest received
Net Cash flows generated from I (used in) Investing activities 8

C. Cash flow from Ptnanctog activities
Share capital issued
Proceeds from borrowings
Repa~ntofborrowmgs

Finance costs paid
Net Cash flows used in Flnallclng activities C

Net increase in Cash and Cash equivalents (A) + (8) + (C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note II)

iI!IT1Il'
TJI'\TII

(~in Lukjis}
For the veer ended For the year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(14.173.41) (9,004.651

16.09 11.14
(0.86) 0.01

(17.93)
(1,625,52) (1,558.81)

7,181.80 6,900.95
1,158.00

6,672.56 211.43

11.96 7.02
97.57

(1,935,31) (2,177.34)

95.18 (209.07)
4,795,65 7,325.48

1!H.44 1,381.69

(203.34) (5,640.70)

2,943.62 680.06
(54.02) (61.24)

2,889.60 618.82

(10.32) (19.38)

2.42 0.05

U13·94) (2.678.13)

30.00
(27.00) (2.79)

(8,43)

127.99 131..64
0.72 (2,568.61)

40,000.00
29,995.00 67,857.55

(62,086.04) (63,529.47)

(10.192,94) (7,232.17)
(2.283.98) (2,904.09)

606.34 (4,853.88)

529.56 5,383.44

1,135.90 529.56

606.34 (4,853.88)



Tala Value Homes Limited

Standalone Cash Flow Statement (Continued)
for theyear elided31 March 2021

Notes:

i. The accorroenvlne notes 1 to 39 are an integralpart of the standalone financialstatements

it. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'IndirectMethod' as set out in the Accounting Standard{IndAS) 7 - "Cash Flow Statements",

Debt reconciliationstatement in accordancewith IND AS 7

OpeningBalances
Long-tern) borrowings
Short-termborrowings

Changesas per Statement of Cash Flow
Lens-term borrowings
Short-term borrowings

NOll cash changes
AccruedInterest

ClosingBalances
Long-term bon-owings
Short-term borrowings

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered accountants
Firm's Registration No: I01248WIW-IO0022

('tIn Lakhs]
31 Marcil 2021 31 March 2020

62,710.63 63,004.63
21,036.25 16,414.17

(31,419.82) (294.00)
(671.22) 4,622,08

(3,011.14) (331.22)

31.290.81 62,710.63
20,365.03 21,036.25

For and on behalfof tile Board ofDirectors of
Tllla Value Homes Limited

eIN : U45400MH2009PLC195605

HfLf:~:~r~
Partner
MembershipNo: 105731

Mumbai
28 JUlie 2021

Sanlav Dult
Director
DIN: 05251670

~h~~
Chief ExecutiveOfficel'
DIN: 06604406

28 June 2021

Director
DIN: 08094159

KI Chandra Jena
ChiefFinancialOfficer

DIN: 06928529

~L;Shukla
CompanySecretary

Membership No: A31734



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(~ in lakhs)

Background

Tata Value Homes Limited (CIN: U45400MH2009PLCI95605) is a Company limited by shares was
incorporated on 8 September 2009 and is a 100% subsidiary of Tata Housing Development Company
Limited. The company is into real estate development and its key activities include project
conceptualizing and designing, development, management and marketing.

1. Basis of Preparation

a. Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

The standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. The accouuting
policies followed in the preparation of these financials statements are the same as those ofthe previous
year except for the adoption of Ind AS 116 Leases, which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS
17 leases, and other interpretations. Ind AS I 16sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure ofleases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet
lease accouuting model for lessees.

All of the Company leases at I April 2019 were either cancellable or short term or had a remaining
period ofless than one year from that date. Accordingly, the transition to Ind AS 116 did not have any
impact on the financial statements of the Company as at that date.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 28
June 2021.

b. Going Concern

As at 31 March 2021, the Company's debts payable within one-year comprising amounts payable on a
term loan and non-convertible debentures aggregate Rs. 11,294.60 lakhs. Further, the cash flow
forecasts prepared by management indicate net outflows of Rs 12,806 lakhs (including outflows on
growth projects).
In assessing the going concern assumption for preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors
have factored in the credit ratings of "AA" on the long term side and "AI +" on the short term side,
which are unchanged during the past 3 years, the cash outflows on growth projects which are
discretionary, the available cash in hand at balance sheet date and undrawn sanctioned working capital
facilities.
The Board of Directors, based on the above factors, believe there is no material uncertainty related to
going concern, and hence, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

c. Historical cost couvention

The standalone financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except
for certain items that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies.



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

('I: in lakhs)

d. Functional and presentation currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Company. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless
otherwise indicated.

2. Significant accounting policies

a. Reveuue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and are net of
cancellations, value added taxes, service tax, GST, other applicable taxes and amount collected on
behalf of third parties.

i, Revenue from real estate development projects

The Company enters into contracts with customers to sell property that are either completed or
under development.
The sale of completed property constitutes a single performance obligation and the Company
recognizes revenue when the same has been satisfied.

Company recognise revenue when the below mentioned conditions get satisfied;

occupancy certificate for the project is received by the Company
possession is either taken by the customer or offer letter for possession along with the
invoice for the full amount of consideration is issued to the customer
substantial consideration has been received and the Company is reasonably certain that
the remaining consideration will flow to the entity.
there are no legal claims/ complains been made by the customer

The Company considers whether there are promises in the contract that are separate performance
obligations or are to be delivered even after completing the aforesaid conditions and to which a
portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated and if so the Company allocates the
attributable transaction price and as control is deemed to have passed to the customer recognizes
revenue over time as the related obligations are satisfied.

For contracts relating to the sale of property under development, the Company is responsible for
the overall management of the project and identifies various goods and services to be provided.
The Company accounts for these items as a single performance obligation because it provides a
significant service of integrating the goods and services (the inputs) into the completed property
(the combined output) which the customer has contracted to buy.

ii. Project ManagementlMarketing fees

Revenue from project management/marketing services is recognised in the accounting period in
which services are rendered in accordance with the substance of the agreement.



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(~ in lakhs)

iii. Other Income from Customers

Other income from customers are accounted on accrual basis in accordance with the terms of
agreement/allotment letters.

b. Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has
been established (if it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount
of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest iocome is accrued on
a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

C. Construction Costs

Construction costs comprise project costs incurred to enable the Company to complete its performance
obligations. These include cost of land and cost of development rights, construction and development
costs, borrowings costs incurred and include cost of development of common facilities and amenities.

These costs are allocated to each unit of sale (residential or commercial) on a systematic basis as
construction progress and are expensed when the related revenue in respect of the unit is recognised.

Pending recognition of revenue, the costs are accumulated and disclosed as construction work in
progresslFinished goods within inventory.

d. h,come tax

Current tax:
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable profit for the year.

Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the standalone statement of profit and loss
because of items of income or expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax:
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of the assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profits. Deterred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available, against
which they can be used. The existence of nnnsed tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit
may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history ofrecent losses, the Company recognises a deferred
tax asset only to the extent that is has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing
other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can
be realized.



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

('l' in lakhs)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in standalone Statement ofProfit and Loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
current tax and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment to the future current tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is
reasonable certainty of it being set off against regular tax payable within the stipulated statutory period.
MAT credit is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit is written
down to the extent there is no longer reasonable certainty to the effect that the Company will pay regular
tax during such specified period.

e. Leases - as a lessee

Policy applicable before I April 2019

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's
inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or
other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the
Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases.

Policy applicable after I April 2019

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 effective from April I 2019 using modified retrospective
approach. For the purpose of preparation of Financial Information, management has evaluated the
impact of change in accounting policies required due to adoption of Ind AS 116 for year ended March
31 2020.



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(~ in lakhs)

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception ofa contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified assets, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contact involves the use ofan identified asset
(ii) the Company has substantially all ofthe economic benefits from use ofthe asset through the period
of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

As a lessee, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, pins any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate ofcosts to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subseqnently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier ofthe end of the useful life of the right-of- use asset or the end of the
lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those
of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments,
including in substance fixed payments; The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The Company has used number of practical expedients when applying Ind
AS 116: - Short-term leases, leases of low-value assets and single discount rate.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases oflow-value assets. The Company recognises the
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.
The Company applied a single discount rate to a portfolio ofleases ofsimilar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar end date

f. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, Cash comprises cash on hand and
demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of
three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdraft and cash credit are disclosed under current borrowings in financial liability
in the balance sheet.

g. Inventories

Construction costs comprise project costs incurred to enable the Company to complete its performance
obligations. These include cost ofland and cost of development rights, construction and development
costs, borrowings costs incurred and also include cost of development of common facilities and
amenities.
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Inventories comprises of cost of construction material, finished residential or commercial properties
and costs of projects under construction/development (construction work-in-progress). Inventories are
valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost ofconstruction material is determined on
a weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course ofbusiness less estimated costs
of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

h. Financial Assets

Classiflcation
The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics ofthe financial asset.

Initial recognition and measnrement
The Company recognises financial assets when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the financial assets are classified in three categories:

• Debt instruments at amortised cost
• Debt instruments at fair valne through profit or loss
• Equity investments

Debt iustruments at amortised cost
A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b. Contractual terms ofthe asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance income in the Standalone statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the Standalone statement ofprofit and loss.

Debt instruments at Fair Value throngh Profit or Loss
Debt instruments included in the fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) category are measured at
fair value with all changes recognised in the Standalone statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments
All equity investments other than investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate are measured
at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other
equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by­
instmrnent basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.
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If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to the Standalone statement of profit and loss, even on sale of such
investments.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Standalone statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognised when:

a. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
b. the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
c. the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company applies 'simplified approach' measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the
following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, and bank balance.

b. Trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit loss at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification
The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Initial recognition and measurement
All tinancialliabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case ofloans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Standalone
statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are dereeognised.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
transactions costs. The EIR amortisation is inclnded as finance costs in the Standalone statement of
profit and loss.

Dereeognition
A financial liability is dcrccognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in thc respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Standalone
statement of profit and loss.
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Offsetting of linancial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Eqnity Instruments
Equity instruments are recognised at the value of the proceeds, net of direct costs of the capital issue.

i. Property, plant and equipment

Recognition & Measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises:

its purchase price, includes non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and
rebates.
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) ofproperty, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss
on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Capital work-in-progress in respect of assets which arc not ready for their intended use are carried at
costs, comprising of direct costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefit associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Disposals or retirement
Any gains or losses arising on the disposals or retirement ofan item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

j. Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided using the written down value method using the useful life as follows:
Assets Useful life
Buildings 60 years
Office Equipment 5 years
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Computers
Furniture and Fixtures
Electrical Fittings
Motor Vehicles
Cellular Phones

3 years
10 years
10 years
8 years

2.5 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised over lease ofthe estimated useful life ofthe asset or the lease period.
The Lease period where the Company is lessee includes the periods where the Company has the unilateral
right to renew the lease and intends to do.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

k. Capital Work-in Progress

Capital expenditure on assets not owned by the Company is reflected as a distinct item in Capital Work­
in Progress till the period of completion and thereafter iu the Property, plant and equipment.

I. Intangible assets

Intangible assets purchased is stated at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Amortisation methods and periods
The Company amortises cost of software over a period of 3 years on a straight-line basis.

m. Impairment of propertv, plant & equipment and intangible assets

The carrying amounts of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indications exist, the recover able amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

An impairment loss is recognised in the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss wherever the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of the asset's fair
value less costs ofdisposal and value in nse. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using appropriate discount factor. When there is an indication that an
impairment loss recognised for the asset in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have
decreased such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

n. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest, other costs incurred and exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Borrowing costs,
allocated to and utilised for qualifying construction project / assets, pertaining to the period from
commencement of activities relating to construction / development of the qualifying construction project /
assets up to the date of substantial completion ofproject / capitalisation of such asset are added to the cost
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ofconstruction project I assets. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement
ofProfit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity on the qualifying construction
project I assets is interrupted. A qualifying construction project I asset is an asset that necessarily takes
substantial time or more to get ready for its intended use or sale and includes the real estate properties
developed by the Company.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their expenditure on
qualifying construction project I assets is deducted from the bon-owing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

o. Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount ofthe receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not require an outflow ofresources embodying economic benefits or the amount
of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
in respect ofwhich likelihood ofoutflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision
or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are not disclosed in the financial statements unless an inflow ofeconomic benefits is
probable.

p. Employee benefits

i. Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

(a) Defined benefit plan

The Company's obligation towards gratuity to employees, post-retirement medical benefits and
ex-directors pension obligations is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling and the return on plan asset,
is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in the retained earnings and not reclassified to
profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in the standalone Statement of Profit or Loss in the
period of a plan amendment. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is
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recognised as employee benefit expense in the standalone statement ofprofit and loss.

(b) Defined contribution plan

The Company's contributions to Provident fund, Superannuation Fund and employee's state
insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans. The Company is liable for
contributions and any deficiency compared to interest computed based on the rate of interest
declared by the Central Government under the Employees' Provident Fund Scheme, 1952 and
recognises, if any, as an expense in the year it is determined. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

ii. Other Long-term employee benefit obligations
The Company's obligation towards other long-term employee benefits in the form of compensated
absences and long service awards are based on actuary valuation. The valuation is carried out using the
Project Unit Credit Method as per Ind AS 19 to determine the Present Value of Benefit Obligations and
the related Current Service Cost and, where applicable, Past Service Cost.

iii. Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service
are recognized in respect ofemployees' services up to the end ofthe reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

q. Dividends to equity shareholders
Dividend to equity shareholders is recognised as a liability and deducted from shareholders' equity, in the
period in which the shareholders have the right to receive the dividend which in the case of interim
dividends are when these are declared by the Board of Directors of the Company and when these are
approved in the Annual General Meeting of the Company in any other case.

r. Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of the Company. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Managing
Director & CEO of the Company.

s. Foreign CUlTency Transactions
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation ofmonetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year-end exchange rates are generally recognised in standalone Statement ofProfit and Loss.

t. Operating cycle
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current based on operating cycle
determined in accordance with the guidance as set out in the Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.
The operating cycle of the Company is determined to be 12 months.

u. Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of the standalone financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures as at date of the financial
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statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses for the years presented. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

a) Critical Judgements

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

i. Discount rate used to determine the carrying amount of the Company's defmed benefit
obligation:
In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management
considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of
the post-employment benefit obligation.

n. Contingences and commitments:
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigations and other
claims against the Company. Where the potential liabilities have a low probability of
crystallising or are very difficult to qnantify reliably, the Company treats them as contingent
liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the financial
statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the outcome of the legal proceedings,
the Company does not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on financial position or
profitability.

iii. Classification of entities as joint ventures:

The below entities are limited liability entities whose legal form confers separation between the
parties to the joint arrangement and the Company itself. Furthermore, there is no contractual
arrangement or any other facts and circumstances that indicate that the parties to the joint
arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities ofthe joint arrangement.
Accordingly, these entities are classified as joint ventures of the Company.
I. Smart Value Homes (Peenya project) Private Limited
2. Smart Value Homes (New Project) LLP
3. Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP
4. Land Kart Builders Private Limited

The assessment of control is made since the remaining share in the respective entities is held by
one unrelated partner. Also, that in case of these entities, neither of the parties have the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities unilaterally as relevant activities require consent of both
parties. Hence the management has concluded that the Company does not have unilateral control
over these entities.

b) Key sources of estimatiou uucertainty
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The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

I. Impairment for doubtful recoverable, advances and financial assets (Refer note 4, 5, 12 and
13):
The Company makes impairment for doubtful recoverable, advances and financial assets based
on an assessment of the recoverability. The identification of doubtful debts requires use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the other receivables and advances and impairment
expenses in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

ii. Valuation of deferred tax assets (refer note 7)
The Company review the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting
period.

iii. Provision for customer compensation (refer note 20)
Provision is made for estimated compensation claims to be paid to customers in respect ofdelay
in handing over possession of flats. These claims are expected to be settled in the next financial
year. Management makes an estimate of the provision based on expected time of delivery and
taking into consideration past experiences.

iv. Net realisable value of inventory (refer note 8)
Management makes an estimate of the net realisable valne of inventory based on expected
realisation from inventory taking into consideration past experiences/valuation reports.
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3 (a) Property, plant and equipment

(t in Lakjis)

Particulars Office Equipments Furniture & Computers Electrical Fittings Total
Fittings

Year ended 31 March 2021

Gross carrying amount

Balanceas at 1 Apri12020 51.45 21.76 58.89 0.68 132.78

Additions - - 10.32 10.32

Disposals (13.57) (5.54) (14.21) (33.32)

Balance as at 31 March lO2tlC] 37.88 16.22 55.00 0.68 109.78

Accumulated depreciation

Balanceas at 1April 2020 40.20 17.07 39.54 0.54 97.35

Depreciation charge during the year 2.32 1.10 12,42 0.04 15.88

Disposals (12.84) (5.19) (13.73) (31.76)

Balance as at 31 March 20211Dj 29.68 12.98 38.23 0.58 81.47

Net carrying amount as at 31 Mnrcll2021 (C-D) 8.20 3.24 16.77 0.10 28.31

Year ended 31 March 2020

Gross carrying amount

Balance as at I April 2019 49.&5 21.76 41.62 0.6& 113.91

Additions 1.60 - 17.7& 19.38

Disposals - - (0.51) (0.51)

Balance as at 31 March 2020 [A) 51.45 21.76 58.89 0.6& 132.7&

Accumulated depreclatlen and impairment

Balance as at I April 2019 36.56 15.33 34.27 0.50 86.66

Depreciation charge during the year 3.64 1.74 5.72 0.04 11.14

Disposals - (0.45) (0.45)

Balance as at 31 March 2020 (8) 40.20 17.07 39.54 0.54 97.35

Net carrying amount as at31 March 2020 (AMB) 11.25 4.69 19.35 0.14 35.43

3 (b) Intangible assets

(l'inL khs}a

Particulars Computer software Total

Year ended 31 March 2021

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 0.21 0.21

Closing gross carrying emoent 0.21 0.21

Accumulated amortisation

amortisation charge during the year 0.21 -
Closing accumulated amortisation 0.21 0.21

Net carryiug amount as at 31 March 2021 - -

Year cnded 31 March 2020

Gross carrying amount

Balance as at 1 Apri12019 0.21 0.21

Closing gross carrying amount 0.21 0.21

Accumulated amortisation

amortisation charge during the year -
Closing accumulated amortisation - -
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2020 0.21 0.21
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Particulars

4 Investments - Non-current

(A) Fully paid-up unquoted equity instruments

As at
31 March 2021

(t InLakhs)
As at

31 March 2020

(I) In subsldlary companies measured at cost less impairment

Smart Vallie Homes(Buisar) Private Limited
10,000 (As 0131 March 2020: 10,000) equity shares oft 10 each

HLTResidencyPrivateLimited
10,000 (As at 31 March 2020: 10,000) equity shares on: 10 each
Less: Provision fer impairment

North Bombay Real Estate Private Limited
10,000 (As lit 31 March 2020 : 10,000) equity shares on: 10 each
Less: Provision for impairment

(il) In joint ventures measured at cost less Impairment

Smart Value Homes (Peenya Project) Private Limited
1,275,000 (As at 31 March 2020: 1,275,000) equity shares of~ 10 each
(refer note 38 )

Land Kart Builders Private Limited
10,410 (As at 31 March 2020: 10,410) equity shares on 10 each

(ill) In Associate

Svncralzers SustainableFoundation
150 (As at 31 March 2020: 150) equity shares oft 10 each

(B) Investment In Partnership firms

Fixed Capital In Joint Ventures measured at cost less Impairment
Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP
Smart Values Homes (New Prciect) LLP

Current caul tal in Joint Ventures measured at cost less impairment
Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP
Smart Values Homes (New Project) LLP

Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments
Aggregate amount of impairment

5 Loans -Non-eurrent

1,20 1.20

1.00 1.00

(1.00) (1.00)

1.00 1.00

(1.00) (1.00)

1,800.08 1,800.08

1.04 1.04

0.02 0.02

0.50 0.50
0,51 0.51

6,384,07 6.384.07
2,834.45 2.807.45

11,021.87 10,994.87

11,023.87 10,996.87
2,00 2.00

Unsecured, considered good
-Intercorporate deposits with related parties

Unsecured, considered doubtful
-Intcrcorporate deposits with related parties
Less: Provision for impailmcnt of loans

6 Other financial assets -Non-current

Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits

~ from related parties (refer note 27.2)

-Orhers

Balance with bank in fixed deposits, with maturitybeyond 12 months (refer note 6.1 below)

19,057.76

1,157,00
(1,157.00)

19,057,76

0.04

104.61

8.51

113,16

17,442.71

1,157.00
(1,157.00)

17.442.7\

0.04

102.71

10275

Note
6.1 Fixed deposits placed with !DB! Bank are under lien in favour of Assistant Comnassloner of CommercialTaxes, Bangalorc for the disputed amountrelated

to assessment order for VAT (AY 2017~18) on behalf of one of the group company.
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7 Income Tax
(fin Lnkhs)

Particulars As lit Asal
31 Marcil 2021 31 Moreh2020

(a) Income tax expense

Current fax
Adjustments fur ourrenllax ofprior periods 13.60

Tolalcurrcnt tax expense 13.60

Deferred Tax

DecreaseI (Increase)in deferred lax assets 18.70 7,141.75
(Decrease) in deferredlox liabilities - (5,287.10)

Totlll deferred tax charge I (credit) 18.70 1,854.65

Income lax expense I (credit) 32.30 1,854.65

(II) TIle reconciliation of estimated Income tax expense at statutory income tax rare to income tax expense reported in stalement nfprofi! Ilnd loss is as follows:

Lossbeforelax (14,173.41) (\1,01)4.65)

Statutoryincometax rate 26.00% 26.00%
Expectedincometex expense (3,685.09) (2,341.21)
Differences due to:

Notional Income from House Property not provided inbooks 4.89 6.25
Reversal ofDTA created earlier 1,810.61
DTAllllt created on current year )(>S5 carried forward 3,327.54 2,026.13
DTA not created (>n current year impairment provisions - 328.27
Pertllllnent difference (20,05)
Interest cost cnpitnlised to project, included in Cost of sales 384.96 26.63
Others - [8,02

Total Iaeeme tax expense I (credIt) 32.30 1,854.65

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS I (LIABILITlESl (NET) :

(c) Deferred Tax asset (net)

The balance comprises temporary differences aUributnb[eto:

Deferred Income tu assets

MAT credit entitlement 1,318.26 1,318.26
Difference between book balance und tax bahnce of Property, plant and equipment 14.75 15.93

Other Items (on adoption oflndAS 115) 9.38 26.90

Total deferred tax assets 1,342.39 1,361.09

Deferred Income In: liabilities

Prevision fur employee benefit expenses

Total deferred tax 6abilitleli -
Net deferred tax Risch I (liabilltlCll) (net) 1,342.39 1,361.09
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7 Income Tax (Continued)
(f in Lnkhs)

(e) Movements In deferred tax liabilities Difference in Interest included In Total
mctllOd of Inventories

computation of

profit between
books and tax

Atl! MnfCI12019 5,287.10 5,281.10

Charged f (credited)

- to profit or loss (5,287.l0) (5,287,10)

At 31 March 2020

Charged / (credited)

- to profitor loss

Atll Mllrch2021 - -

(f) Movements In lleferred tax assets MAT credit Pmperly, plant Tax losses Defined benefit Impairment Other Tutnl
entitlement and equipment obUgntion Provisions items

At Jl March 2019 1,318.26 18.16 6,203.27 26.6() 865.34 68.71 8,500.34

(Charged) I credited

- to profit or IOS5 (2.23) (6,203.27) (29.10) (865.34) (41.81) (7,141.75)

- to other comprehensive income 2.50 2.50

At 31 March 2020 1,318.26 IS.,}3 - 26.90 1,361.O,}

(Charged) { eredlted

• 10profit or 10BB (1.18) (l7.52) (18.70)

At31March2021 1,318.26 14.75 9.38 1,342.39
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Particulars

8 Inventories

Constructionmaterial
Construction work-in-progress

Finished goods

Asat
31 March 2021

121.22
34,249.17
8,528.19

42.898.58

(t in Lakhs)
As at

31 March 2020

467.84
38,981.40
14,610.06

54.059.30

Notes:

8.1 Disclosure with respect to inventories which are expected to be recovered after more than twelve months are not provided as it is practically not
feasible to disclose the same considering the nature of the industry in which the Company operates.

8.2 The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the period in respect of continuing operations was ~ 6,449.82 lakhs (for the year ended 31
March 2020 : ~ 8,661.011akhs).

8.3 During the period, company has written down inventories to the extent on' 6,672.56 Lakhs (for the year ended 31 March 2020: ~ 211.43 Lakhs).

9 Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good
~ from related parties
- Others

Total receivables

10 Loans -Current

Unsecured, considered good
Inter corporate deposits with related party

11 Cash and cash equivalents- current

Cashon hand
Balances with banks - in current accounts #

# Includes balances with banks - in RERA specified accounts, which shall be used only for
specified purposes as defined under Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016.

7.920.43
142.33

8.062.76

1.135.90

1.135.90

597.22

7,920.04
237.90

8,157.94

33.66

33.66

0,15
529.41

529.56

216.94
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Particulars

12 Other financial assets -Current

As at
31 March 2021

(~in Lnkhs)
As at

31 March2020

Unsecured, considered good

Deposits withothers
Advances recoverable from employees

Unsecured, considered doubtful

Interest Accrued(refer note 27.2)
Less: Provision for impairment

13 Other current assets

Unsecured, considered good
Deposit with Government Authorities
Balances with government authorities
Prepaid expenses
Advancesto vendors
- related parties(refer note 27,21
- Others

Unsecured, considered doubtful
Advances to vendors

- Others
Less: Provision for impairment of advances

7.86 19.52
1.25

1,005.27 1,005.27

0,005.27) (1.005.27)

7.86 20.77

0.45 0,45
158.24 152.88

36.53 71.24

20.60 46.27
1.018.90 1,144.31

2,615.19 2,615.19
(2.615.19) (2,615.19)

1 234 72 1415.15



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continned)
as at 31 March 2021

14 Equity Share Capital

As lit 31 Mllrc112021Particulars

Authorised

Equity Shares of~ 10each

Issued, Snbscrl~ed anrl fUlly Pald-up
Equity Shares of~ 10 each fully paid-up

Total

No. of Sbares

1,00,00,00,000

80,00,00,000

80,00,00,000

fin Lnkhs

1,00,000,00

80,000.00

80,000.00

As at Sl March 2020

No. of Shares

40,00,00,000

40,00,00,000

40,00,00,000

tin Lakhs

40,O[)O.QO

40,000.00

40,000.00

14.1 ReconcUiationof number of Equlty Shares and amount eutstandtna at the bealanlna and at the end of the Year

Particulars As at 31 Marcil 2021 Aa at Sl March2020

No. arShafes tin Lakhs No. of Shares 'l:inLakhs

At the Beginning cf fhe Year 40,00,00,000 40,000,00 40,00,00,000 40,000.00

Issuedduringthe yearon u rightsbasis 40,00,00,000 40,000.00

Outstanding at the End of the year 80,00,00,000 80,000.00 40,00,00,000 40,000.00

The OrdinaryShares rank pari-passu, havingvoting rights and are subject to preferences and restrictionsas per CompaniesAct, 2013. The shareholdersof Ordinary
shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distributionof all preferentialamounts, in proportion to their shareholdings, in the event of
liquidation. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held.The Dividend proposed by Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholder's in the
ensuing Annual GeneralMeeting.

14.2 Shares held by holding company

Name of slllll'~hoider

Tata HousingDevelopment CompanyLimited(Jointlywith its nominees)

No.of shares held

80,00,00,000

% Holding

100

As at 31 March2020

No. of shares held

40,00,00,000

% Holding

100

14.3 Details ofShareboldcrs holdine: more than 5% Shares in the Company

Numeof slmrcllOlder As at 31 March 2021

No. of shares held % Holding

As at 31 March2020

No. cf'shares held % Holding

Tara HousingDevelopment CompanyLimited(Jointlywith its nominees) 80,00,00,000 100 40,00,00,000 100

14.4 Details of shares issued otherwise than for cash, issues as bonus shares and I or shares bought backduring the immediatelypreceding5 years ~ None.
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021

Particulars As at
31 March 2021

(l' in Lakhs)
As at

31 March2020

15 Other Equity

i Retained Earnings
ii Othercomprehensive income
iii Debenture Redemption Reserve

(52,941.36)
45.68

(52,895,68)

(39,847.61)
2.15

1,111.96
(38,733.50)

i Retained Earnings
Opening balance
Transfer from Debenture redemptionreserve
Loss for the year
Closing balance

(39,847,61)
1,111.96

(14,205.71)
(52,941.36)

(28,988.31)

(10,859.30)
(39,847.61)

ii Other comprehensive Income
Employee benefit obligations
Openingbalance
Add I (Less):
Other comprehensive income/(loss) arisingfromremcasurements of
post-employment benefitobligations, net of tax

Closing balance

2.15
43.53

45.68

12.99
(10.84)

2.15

iii Debenture Redemption Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet
(Less)/Add:
Transfer (to)/from Retained earnings (net)

Closing balance

1,111.96
(1,111.96)

1,111.96

1,111.96

(38,733.50)===..,l;(5~2'<!189~5',gj68~) ==gg,g1;~Closing balance (i+ii+iii)

Nature and Purpose of reserves

t Retained camtngs

Retainedearnings are the profits that the Company has earnedtill date, lessany transfersto debenture redemption reserve.dividends or otherdistributions paid to
shareholders
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021

Particulars

16 Borrowings -Non -Current

As at
31 March 2021

Long-term Current maturities
of long-term debts

(HnLakhs)
As at

31 March 2020
Long-term Current maturities

of long-term debts

Secured - at amortised cost

From Banks

Working- capital term loan from hank (refer note 16.1)

Unsecured:

Debentures - Non-Convertible Redeemable

1,000,8.35% Debentures of~ 1,000,000 each
(Due for redemptionon 15 June 2020)

1,000, 8.40% Debenturesoft 1,000,000 each
(Due for redemptionon 30 Apri12021)

1,950,7.20% Debentureson 1,000,000 eacb
(Due for redemption on 23 September 2022)
(refer note 16.2)

Unsecured - at amortised cost:
9% Inter CorporateDeposit from related party
-Tata Housing DevelopmentCompany Ltd.

496.21

19,500.00

1.294.60

10,000.00

10,000.00

10,000.00

19,500.00

23,210.63

19,996.21 11,294.60 52,710.63 10,000.00

Note

16.1 1stpari passu charge under multiple banking arrangement by way of hypothecation of entire current assets of the company both present and future.
The interest rate is 7.20% p.a. Loan is to be repaid in Equated Monthly Installments (EMI)by 31 July 2022.

16.2 Original rateof interest upto 25 March 2021 was 9.35 % p.a.. It was resetw.e.f 26 March2021 to 7.20%p.a., as per the termsof issue.
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021

Particulars As at
'31 March 2021

(:t'in Lakhs)
As at

31 March 2020

17 Borrowings -Current

Secured - at amortised cost
From Banks
Loan repayableon demand from banks (includingcash credit and workingcapital demand loan)
{refer note 17.1 below}

20,365.03 21,036.25

20,365,03 21,036.25
Note:

17.1 t Sl pari passu charge under multiple banking arrangement by way of hypothecation of entire current assets of the companyboth present and future.The
interest rate is ranging from 8.08% p.a. to 8.36% p.a. (for the year ended 31 March 2020: 7.50% p.a. to 8.60% p.a.)

18 (a) Trade payables -Non Current

Trade pavables due to Micro, Small and MediumEnterprises
Retention money payable 147.11 56.73

147,11 56.73

18 (b) Trade Payables

Trade payables due to Micro, Small and MediumEnterprises
Trade payables other than acceptancesdue to other than Micro, Small and MediumEnterprises

~ from related parties
~ Others

Retention moneypayable

105.54
2,248.36

409.03

100.34
1,994.99

610.96

2J62.93 2706.29

19 (a) Other fmancialliabilities -Non Current

75.21
75.2122.30

====="'22....3!!b0===.d=~

Security and other deposits

19 (b) Other financial liabilities -Curreat

Current maturitiesof long-termdebts
Employees related pavables
Earnest moneydeposits
Security and other deposits
Interest accrued

11,294.60
17.29
6.00

213.43
1,775,78

10,000.00
13.77
6.00

129.08
4,479.43

13.307.10 14.628.28
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continned)
as at 31 March 2021

Particulars As at
31 March 2021

({ in Lakhs)
As at

31 March2020

20 Provisions -Current

Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity
- Compensated absences
Provision for Customer compensation (refer note 20.1)
Provision for GST liabilities (refer note 20.2)

31.04
89.92

148.46
97.57

366.99

52.92
103.82
136.50
97.57

390.81

Provis on for Customer ccmnensatlon
Openlna balance 136.50 129.48
Add: Additions to provisions 11.96 7.02
Less: Utilisation . -
Reversal (withdrawn as no longer required) . .
Closme balance 148.46 136.50

Note
20.1

20.2 Provision has been made towards contingent liability of service tax as per the demand for the period FY 2010-11 to FY 2014-15 Rs. 47.991akhs and from
FY 2015-16 to July-201?, Rs. 49.581akhs

21 Other cnrrentliabilities

Revenuereceived in advance
Advances received pending allotment of flats
Statutory dues payable:

- Provident fund
- Goods and service tax
- Tax deducted at source

1.510.59 1.997.87
27.57 26.53

5.59 3.65
69.77 33.55

102.33 47.32

1.715.85 2.10892
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the yearended 31March202I

Particulars

22 Revenue from Operations

For the year ended
31 March 2021

(t In Lakha]
For the year ended

31 March 2020

Sale of properties

Sale of services
~ Proiect ManagementFees and MarketingCharges

Other operatlnl! revenues
~ Other incomefromcustomers
M Sale ofmaterials

23 Other income

Interest on financial assets at amortised cost
Interest on deposits with bank
Interest on delayedreceipts fromcustomers
Interest from others
Scrap sales
Intereston Income-taxrefund
Miscellaneous income

24 Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries
Contribution to Gratuity, Provident and Other Funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

Less: Apportionment to projects

6,579.95 9,290.88

152.97 396.05

224.83 268.34
137.74

7,09549 9955.27

1,625.44 1,525.11

0.08 33.70
12.03 11.18

309.40 284.13

24.94 1.13
17.93
3.48 77.13

1 993.30 1 932 38

1.258.50 1,563,98
54.17 73.63
10.76 23.82

1,323.43 1,661.43

97.24 172.93

1.226.19 1,488.50
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Particulars

25 Finance costs

For the year ended
31 March 2021

(f in Lokhs)
Fortheyearended

31 March 2020

Interest expense on financial liabilities not at fail' value through profit or loss
~ Interest on Borrowings
- Interest on Others

Less: Apportionment to construction work in progress

Net finance cost expensed to profit and loss

7,451.61 7,079.78
37.68 62.74

7,489.29 7,142:52
307.49 241.57

'.181.80 6,900.95

Note: The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted averageinterest rate applicable
to the Company's generalborrowings which is 8.12%. (for the yearended 31 March 2020: 8.43%)

26 Other expenses

Professional fees 153.06 99.63
Travelling expenses 1.82 [4.92
Electricity expenses 5.53 6.07
Rent expenses 24.76 31.53
Repairs and Maintenance -Otbers 722.24 1,171.50
Business promotionexpenses [4.08
Insurance 52.04 42.15
Rates and taxes 0.01 0.03
Directors'Sitting Fees to independent and non-executive Directors 3.20 1.60
ImpactofNRV on inventory 6.672.56 2[ 1.43
Provision for Customer Compensation 11.96 7.02
Provision for GST liabilities 97.57
Registrationand filling charges 0.09 0.22
Input tax credit written off 5.00 92.04
Other expenses 107.91 40.30
SelUnl! expenses
- Brokerage 197,58 95.45
- Advertisement and others 412.47 732.17
Payable to Sretutcrv Auditors
As auditor:
_Statutory audit fees 16.75 14.75
In Other Capacity
- Others 0.76
- Reimbursement of Expenses 0.56 0.24

838830 2672.70
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended31 March2021

27 Relaled Party Transaclions

As per Indian Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclosures" (Ind AS·24) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act") are as follows:

27.1 List of Related Parties and Relationships

Sr. No. Related Party

Ultimate Holding Company

Tala SOllS PrivateLimited

2 Holding Company

Tata Housing Development CompanyLimited

Subsidiary Companies

Smart Values Homes (Boisur) Private Limited

HLT ResidencyPrivate Limited

North BombayRea! Estate Private Limited

4 Fellow Subsldinry companies with whom transaeucns are entered

Tatu AIG General Insurance CompanyLimited

Tatu Consultancy Services Limited

Infiniti Retail Limited

Bcoflrat Services Limited

Tata Capital Forex Limited

THDe Management Services Limited

Tnta Communications Limited

Tata Tcleservices Limited

Tuta Teleaervices (Mahatushtra) Limited

Associates Company with whom transactions are entered

Titan Company Limited

Trent Limited

Syncrgizcre Sustainable Foundation

Conneqt Business Solutions Limited

6 Joint venture _Companies with WIIOID trllllsnctIons are entered
HL Promoters Private Limited

Smart Values Homes (Peenya Project) Private Limited

Landkart Builders Pvt. Ltd. (w.e.f. 18 Jnly 2019)

7 Fellow Joint Venture ~ Companies with whom transactions arc entered

Ardent Properties Private Limited

8 Joint venture- Limited L.iablllty Partnership wltli wbom transactions are entered

Arvind and Smart value Homes LLP

Smart ValuesHomes (New Project) LLP

9 Key Management Personnel

Bhavesh Madeka-ChiefExecutivc Officer

Nipun Aggarwal,Director

Renu Basil, Director

Knmlesh Mansukhlal Parekh, Director (w.e.f 10November 2020 )

Sandhya Shailesh Kudterkur, Director (w.eJ. to November 2020 )
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27.2 Transactions and balances with related parties:

Kev Manae:ement Personnel
a. Transactions

Partleulars

Others
DlrectcrsSiltingFees

31 March 2021

3.20

(~In Lllkhs)

31 March2(120

1.60

2 Related Partles
The Group's material related party transactions and outstanding balances are with its joint-ventures with whom the Group routinely enters
into transactions in the ordinary course of business.

a. Transactions

Particulars
(I) EXPENSES
Receiving of Services
Fellowsubsidiaries

Certification Fees
Fellow subsldinties

Insurance Premium paid
Fellow subsidiaries

Repairs aud Malntenallce - Others
Fellow subsidiaries

Subsidiaries

Administrative anll Other Expenses
Fellow subsidiaries

FellowAssociates

Selling Expenses
Fellow Associates

(H) INCOME
Sale ofServiees
Joint ventures

(III) REJMBUnSEMENT TRANSACTIONS
I!:xll~nses incurred on Ilehalf IIf Related Party
HoldingCompany
Subsidiaries

Joint ventures

Expenses Incurrell by Related Party on our behalf
HoldingCompany
Subsidiaries

loint ventures

(IV) OTHER INCOME
Interest Income on Louu and Inter Corporate Deposits
Subsidiaries
Fellow subsidiaries

Joint ventures

Interest lin Project Management Pees
Joint ventures

Claim Received
Fellow subsidiaries

M FINANCE COSTS
Interest Expense on Inter Corporate Deposits
HoldingCompany
Associates

(VI) INVESTMENTS AND GUARANTEES
Investment made
Joint ventures
Associates

(it:ill Lnkhs)

31 March 2021 31 Minch 2020

9.19 9.76

6.57 3.85

25.95 2:6.84

78.98 270.30

9.76 5.17
39.25 5.04

32.93 44.35

152,97 396.05

0.93
5.91

67.01 0.13
0.73

25.35 31.64

1,014.Q7 1,014.07
2.63 2.70

608.74 508.34

30'.1.40 284.13

0.78 9.00

2,303.22 2,105.79
278.42

27.00 2.77
0.02
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27.2 Transactions and balances with related parties: (Continued)

2 Related Parties (Contil/lle(l)

b. Outstandtna Balances ads!ne: from sale/purchase of zoeds and services:

Particulars
(A) ASSETS
Outstanding Recefvables
Sllbaidiaric~

Fellowsubsidiaries
Jointventures
Fellow Joint ventures

Associate

Interest accrued

Joint ventures

Investment DII Current Capital Contributbm
Joinl ventures

Dcposll

Fellow subsidiaries

Advances
Subsidiaries
Fellow subsidiaries
Joint ventures

Fellow Joint ventures

(8) PAYABLES
Interest Accrued but notllue
Holding Compnny

Outstanding Payable
Subsidiaries
Follow subsidiaries
Joiut ventures
Fellow Associates
Employee Trusts

3 Loans to I from related parties

(t in Lakhs)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

2,971.61 2,860.42
1.95 1.95

4,946,87 5,057.68

1,005.27 1,005.27

2,834.94 2,807.94

0.04 0.04

18.54 42.06

0.14

2.06 4.07

2,000.50

96.05 49.98

2.24 40.04

7.25 10.33

Partleulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Loans to subsidiaries
Beginning of the year 14,866.00 13,902.64

Loan advanced -
Loan repayment received
Tnterestcharged (net ofTOS) saam 963.36

End of the year 15,804.01 14,866.00

Particulars 31 Man:h 2021 31 Murch 2020

Loans to FeUow subsidiaries

Beglnniug crtue year 33.66 31.10

Loan advanced -
Loan repayment received (36.10)

Interest charged (net ofTOS) 2.44 2.56

End of the year - 33.66--
Partleulnrs 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Loans to Joint venture
Beginning Drlhe year 3,733.70 594.33

Loan advanced 113.94 4,439.97

Loan repayment received (1.761.85)

Interest charged (oelofTOS) 563.09 461.25

End ofllle year 4,410.73 3,733.70

Particulars
Loans from Fellow Associates

Beginning of the year
Loan received
Lonn repayments made
End of tile year

Particulars

Leans fronl Holding Company
Begltllling of the year
L\I~n received
Lean repayments made

Eud of the year

31 March 2021

5,000.00
(5,000.00)

3 I March 2021

23,210.63

22,895.00

(46,105.63)

31 March 2020

31 March 2020

23,004.63
33.906,(10

(33,700.00)

23,210.63



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for/he vear ended31 March 2021

28 Fair value measurements

Financial instruments by category

The following table showsthe carrying amountsand fair valuesof financialassetsand financial liabilities, includingtheir levelsin the fair valuehierarchy.

('t' In Lakhs)

Carrying amount
Fair Value

T.J
as IIt31 MIlrdl2021

FVfPL Amortised cost Total Levell Level2 Level 3

Current Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current

Finnnclni assets

Investments

- in Partnership finn 9,219.53 9,219.53 9,219.53 9,219,53

Trade receivables 8,062.76 8,062.76 8,062.76 8,062.76

Cash and bank balances 1,135.90 1,135.90 1,135.90 1,135.90

Loans 19,057.76 19,057.76 19,057.76 19,057.76

Otherfinancial assets 7.86 113.16 7.86 113.16 121.02 121.02

Total financial assets 9,206.52 28,390.45 9,206.52 28,390.45 28,277.-29 9,319.68 37,596.97

Financiallinbilities

Borrowings 20,365.03 19,996.21 20,365.03 19,996.21 40,361.24 40,361.24

Trade Payables 2,762.93 147.11 2,762.93 147.11 2,910.04 2,910.04

OIMr financialliabilities 13,307.10 22.30 13,307.10 22.30 13,329.40 13,329.40

Total fiuancial liabilities 36,435.06 20,165.62 36,435.06 20,165.62 56,600.68 56,600.68

~ in Lakhs)

Carrying amount
FnirValue

as at 31 March 2020

FVfPL Amortised cost Tolal Levell LcvelZ Level 3 T.W
Current Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current

Flnancl:1I assets

Investments

- In Partnership finn 9,192.53 9,192.53 9,192.53 9,192.53

Trade receivables 8,157.94 8,157.94 8,157.94 8,157.94

Cash and bank balances 529.56 529.56 529.56 529.56

Loans 33.66 17,442.71 33.66 17,442.71 17,476.37 17,476.37

Other financial assets 20.77 102.75 20.77 102.75 123.52 123.52

Total Ilnaneial assets 8,741.93 26,737.99 8,741.93 26,737.99 26,668.90 8,811.02 35,479.92

Fluanciaillabllltics

Borrowings 21,036.25 52,710.63 21,036.25 52,710.63 73,746.88 73,746.88

Trade Payables 2,706.29 56.73 2,706.29 56.73 2,763.02 2,763.02

Other flnancialliabiliries 14,628.28 75.21 14,628.28 75.21 14,703.49 14,703.49

Total fillanciallinbilitics 38,370.82 52,84257 38,370.82 52,84257 91,213.39 91,213.39

~
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28 Fair value measurements (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

This sectionexplainsthe judgementsand estimatesmade in determiningthe fair valuesof the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at
fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the
accountingstandard.An explanationof each levelfollowsunderneaththe table.

The fair valueof financial instruments as referred to in note abovehave been classifiedinto three categories dependingon the inputs used in the valuation
technique. The hierarachy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active market for identicalassets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (level3 measurements). The categoriesused are as follows:

Levell: Levell hierarchy includesfinancial instrumentsmeasuredusing quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-thecounter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates.
Consideringthat all significant inputsrequired to fair valuesuch instrumentsare observable, these are includedin level2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significantinputs is not basedon observablemarket data, the instrumentis includedin level3.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, inter corporate deposits, current investments, contractually reimbursable expenses, cash and cash equivalents
and otherbank balances, current trade payablesand currentborrowingsare consideredto be the same as their fair values,due to their short-termnature.

For financialassets and liabilities that are measuredat fair value,the carrying amountsare equal to the fair values.
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29 Financial risk management
The Company's business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit risk. The Company's senior
managementhas the overall responsibility for the establishmentand oversight of the Company'srisk managementframework. The Companyhas constituted
a Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. The Company's risk
management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks
and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

The Risk Management Committee of the Company is supported by the Finance department that provides assurance that the Company's financial risk
activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company's policies and risk objectives. The Finance department activities are designed to:
~ protect the Company's financial results and position from financial risks
- maintain market risks within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns: and
- protect the Company's financial investments, while maximising returns.

A) Maneaement ofli<Juiditv risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company's approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, management
considers both normal and stressed conditions.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows as at the
Balance sheet date:

As at Carring AmoUDt Less than 1-3 Years
31 March 20fl 1 veal'

Borrowings 51,655.84 33,217.42 20,677.52

Trade payables 2,910.04 2,762.93 147.tl

Other liabilities 3,329.40 3,240.36 22.30

'"" Carting Amount Less than 1-3 Years
31 March 2020 I year

Borrowings 83,746.88 35,960.04 59,115.17

Trade payables 2,763.02 2,706.29 56.73

Other liabilities 4,703.49 4,456.70 75.21

3-5 Years

53,894.94

2,910.04

3,262.66

Total

()5.075.21

2.763.02

4,531.91

B) Manaeement of market risk

The Company's size and operations result in it being exposed to the following market risks that arise from itsusc of financial Instruments:
• interest rate risk
The above risks may affect the Company's income and expenses, or the value of its fmaneial instruments. The objective of the Company's management of
market risk is to maintain this risk within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns. The Company's exposure to, and management of, these risks is
explained below:

Particulars

Fixed rate instruments
Debentures- Non-ConvertibleRedeemable
Inter CorporateDeposits
Tenn Loan frombank
WorkingCapitalDemandloan from Banks
Commercialpapers

Total

Variable-rate Instruments
Loans repayableon demand from banks

Total

(f InLakhs)

Asat As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

29,500.00 39,50~.OO

23,210.63

1,790.81

14.707.04 13,540.84

45,997.85 76,251.48

5,657.99 7,495.41

5,657.99 7,495.41
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29 Financial risk management (Continued)

B) Mana~cment of market risk (ContimlCd)

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY SENSITIVlTY TO RISK

(I) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes ill market
interest roles.
The Companyis mainly exposed to interest
rate risk due to its variable interest rare
borrowings.The interestrate risk arises due
to uncertainties about the futuro market
interest rate ofthese investments.

The Company's fixed rote borrowings are
carried at amortised cost. They are therefore
not subject to interest rate risk as defined in
Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying
amount nor the future cash flows will
fluctuate because of a change in market
interest rates.

As at 31 March 2021, variable rate
borrowings of ~ 5,657.99 Lakhs (31 March
2020: ~ 7,495.41 Lakhs) are exposed to
interest rate risk

C) Mauaaement of credit risk

The Company's strategy is to mitigate interest rate risk by ensuring
a proper mix of bonowingsat
Ilxcdami variableinterestrates.

The Company's interest role risk is monitored by the management
and treasury team on a monthly basis. Management analyses the
Company's interest rote exposure on a dynamic basis. Various
scenarios are simulated, taking into consideration refinancing,
renewal of existing positions lind alternative financing sources.
Based on these scenarios, the Company calculates the impact on
profit and loss of a defincd interest rate shin. The scenarios are run
only for liabilities that represent the major interest-bearing
positions. The simulation is done on a monthly basis to verify that
the maximum potential loss is within the limits set by management.

As an estimation of the approximate impact of the interest rote risk,
with respect to financial instruments, the Company has calculated the
impact ofa 0.25% change in interest rates.

0.25% p.a. decrease in interest on aforesaid loans will reduce interest
expense by ~ 14.14 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2021.

0.25% p.e. decrease in interest on aforesaid loans will reduce interest
expense by ~ Ill.74lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2020.

0.25% increase in interest rates would have ted to an equal but
opposite effect.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or couuterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and
arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers, investments in debt securities, loans given to related parties and project deposits.
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by requiring customers to pay advances through progress billings before transfer of ownership, therefore substantially
eliminating the Company's credit risk in this respect.
The Company's credit risk with regard to trade receivable has a high degree of risk diversification, duc to the large number of projects ofvnrying sizes and
types with numerous different customer categories in a large number of geographical markets.

Investment in Debt Securities, Loans to Related Parties and Project Deposits
The Company has investments in loans to related parties and project deposits. The settlement of such instruments is linked to the completion of the
respective underlying projects. Such Financial Assets are not impaired, other than provided for in note 5, 12 and 13 as on the reporting date.

Cash and Bank balances
Credit risk from cash and bank balances is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 arc the carrying value of each class of financial assets as
disclosed in notes 5, 6 and 9 to 12.

29 (a) Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through
optimisation of debt and equity balance.

The Company's risk management committee reviews the capital structure of the Company on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the committee
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.

The Company monitors capital using Debt-Equity ratio, which is total debt divided by total equity. For the purposes of the Company's capital management,
the Company considers the following components of its Balance Sheet to be managed capital:
Total Equity includes Debenture redemption reserve, Retained earnings, Share capital and borrowings from parent.
Total Debt includes Long term Borrowings, Current maturities of long-term borrowings, Current borrowings and interest accrued and due on bon-owings.

The gearing ratios were as follows:
(t in Lakhs)

Long-term Borrowings

Current maturities cf'Jong-terrn debts

Current borrowings

Interest Accrued on Borrowings

Total Debt

Tutal Equity

Net debt to equity I"lllio (No, of limes)

31 March 2021

19,996.21

11,294.fiO

20,365.03

1,775.78

53,43t.62

27,104.32

1.97

31 March 2020

29,500.00

10,000.00

21,036.25

4,479.43

65,015.68

24,477.13

2.66
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30 Employee benefits
A Defined benefit plans:

Gratuity (funded)

The Company makes annual contributions to the Tata Value Homes Limited Employees GratuityScheme of Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company
Limited. The scheme provides for lump sum payment to vested employeesat retirement, death while in employmentor on terminationof employmentas
per Company's GratuityScheme. Vesting occurs on completion of five years.

Balance sheet amount
(t in Lalms)

Purnculars Gratuity

Present value of obligation Fall' value of plan assets Net amount

1 Apl'i12020 128.75 75.83 52.92

Current service cost 18.72 - 18.72

Interest expense/(income) 7.14 4.21 2.93
PastServiceCost - - -
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 25.86 4.21 21.65

Remeasurements -
Return on plan assets, exeluding amount included in interest - (3.53) 3.53
cxpcnse/(income)
(Gain) I Loss from change in demographic assumptions 2.26 - 2.26

(Gain) I Loss from change in financial assumptions (6.40) - (6.40)
Experience (gains'[losses (42.93) - (42.93)

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive Income (47.07) (3.53) (43.54)

Employer contributions - - -
Benefit payments . - -

31 March 2021 107.54 76.51 31.03

(~. L khs]on a ,
Particulars Gratuity

Present value of obligation Fair value of plan assets Net amount

I April 2019 88.02 72.59 15.43

Current service cost 23.05 - 23.05

Interest expensel{income) 6.31 5.20 1.11

Past Service Cost -

Total amount recognised in profit and loss 29.36 5.20 24.15

Remeasurernents
Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in interest 4.84 (4.84)
expense/(income)
(Gain) I Loss from change ill demographic assumptions (5.98) - (5.98)

(Gain) I Loss from change in financial assumptions 12.14 - 12.14

Experience (geinsylosses 12.02 - 12.02

Total amount recognised In other comprehensive Income 18.18 4.84 13.34

Employer contributions -
Benefit payments (6.81) (6.81)

31 March 2020 128.75 75.83 52.92
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30 Employee Benefits (Continued)

A Defined benefit plans: (Continued)

Thenet liability disclosed aboverelatesto fundedand unfundedplansare as follows:
(~In Lakhs)

I'articulars

31 Mareh 2021

Presentvalueof funded obligations

Fairvalueof planassets

DcOcit

31 March 2020

Present value of funded obligations

Fair value ofplan assets

Deficit

Major category of plan assets for Gratuity fund are as follows:

The company has invested entireamountof planassets in insurancefund.

Insurer Managed Fund Dctalled Pattern % Invested

Gratuity

107.54

76,51

31.03

128.75

75.83

52.92

Fundsmanaged by Insurer

As at
31 March 2021

100.00%

100.00%

As at
31 March 2020

100.00%

100.00%

Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Asset volatility

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a deficit.
Most of the plan asset investments is in fixed income securities with high grades and in government securities. These are subject to interest rate risk and
the fund manages interest rate risk with derivatives to minimise risk to an acceptable level.

Changes in bond yields

A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the plans' bond holdings.

Life expectancy
The pension and medical plan obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in life expectancy will result in an increase in

the plans' liabilities. This is particularly significant where inflationary increases result in higher sensitivity to changes in life expectancy.

Salary Risk

The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in salary of the

plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

The Company ensures that the investment positions are managed within an asset-liability matching (ALM) framework that has becn developed to
achieve long-term investments that are in line with thc obligations under the employee benefit plans. Within this framework, the Company's ALM

objective is to match assets to the benefit obligations by investing in long-term fixed interest securities with maturities that match the benefit payments
as they fall due and in the appropriate currency.
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30 Employee Benefits (Continued)

A Defined benefit plans: (Continued)

Defined benefit Liability and employer contribution

Expected contributionto post employmentbenefitplans for the year to be ended on 31 March 2022 are ~ 48.81 lakhs

The weightedaverage duration of the defined benefit obligationis 6 years (2020 - 4 years)
(t In Lakhs)

Maturity analysis of Projected benefit obligation: from the fund:

l st following year

2nd followingyear

3rd following year

4th followingyear

5th fullowingyear

Stunorveere 6 to to
More than 10years

B Defined contribution plans:

Benefit (Contribution to)

Provident Fund

Superannuation Fund

Total

Gratuity

31 March 2021

14,52

14.74

19.13

12.32

11.13

44.92

42.75

For the Year Ended
31 Marcil 2021

30.65
1.86

32.51

31 March 2020

24.47

21.60

20.03

20.62

17.33

42.52

24.27

l~ in Lakhs

For the Year Ended
31 March 2020

46.92
2.56

49.48

(i) Superannuation fund

The company has superannuation scheme administrated by LIC, in which the company contributes 15% 011 basic salary. The payments to defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme for eligible employees in the form of superannuation fund are charged as an expense as they fall due. Such
benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made.

(ii) Provident fund

The Company also has certain defined benefit plans. Contributions are made at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The Company is liable
for contributions and any deficiency compared to interest computed based on the rate of interest declared by the Central Government under the
Employees' Provident Fund Scheme, 1952 and recognises, if any, as an expense in the year it is dctcnnined.

The Company's contributions paid I payable during the year towards Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund are charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss or debited to the project costs every year. These funds and the schemes thereunder are recognised by the Income-tax authorities and
administered by trusts.
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30 Employee Benefits (Continued)

C Compensatedabsences

The leave obligations cover the Company's liability for sick and earned leave. The leave obligation is computed by actuary who gives a bifurcation for
current and non-current.

a) Changes in Present Value of Obligation:
(f In Lakhs)

Particulars Compensated absences
For the Year Ended For tilt}Year Ended

31March 2021 31 March2020

Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning

Interest Cost

Service Cost
BenefitsPaid
Actuarial (Gain) I Loss on obligations

Past ServiceCost

Present Value of Obligation as at the end

103,83
5.76

20.23
(5.31)

(34.57)

89.94

111.92
8.02

77.99
(31.40)

10.89

(73.59)

103.83

b) Bifurcation of Present Value of Obhaatlcn as at the end of the year:
(t in Lakhs)

Particulars Compensated absences

For the Year Ended For thc Year Ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Current liability
Non-Current liability

Present Value ofObligatlon as at tile end

c) Expenses Recognised during the year:

89.94

89.94

103.83

103.83

Particulars

Interest Cost

Service Cost

Actuarial Loss I(Gain) recognised

Past Service Cost

Expenses Recognised during the period j year

Compensated absences

For tile Year Ended For the Year Ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

5.76 8.02

20.23 77.99

(34.57) 10.89

(73.59)

(8.58) 23.31
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30 EmployeeBenefits (Continued)

D Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity

The significant actuarialassumptions for were as follows:

Particulars

Gratuity

Discountrate
Rateof returnon planassets
Salarygrowthrate
Retirement age

Mortality Rate

Withdrawal Rates

Maximumgratuity payableper person

Compensated absences

Discounting Rate

RetirementAge

FutureSalaryRise

Mortality Table

Withdrawal Rates

As at
31 March 2021

5.90%

6.00('10

60 years

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)

15.00%

No limit In case of Employees joined
upto 31 March 2019.

MaximumRs. 20 Lakh In case of Employees joined
erter 31 March 2019.

5.90%

60 years

6.00%

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)

15.00%

As at
31 March 2020

5.55%

7.00%

60 years

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012.14)

21.50%

No limit in case of Employees joined
upto31 March 2019.

Maximum Rs. 20 Lakh in case ofEmployees
joined after 31 March 2019.

5.55%

60 years

7.00%

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012.14)

21.50%

Significant actuarial assumptionfor the determination of defmed benefit obligation are rate of discounting, rate of salary increase and rate of employee
turnover. The sensitivityanalysis below have been determined based on reasonablypossible changes of the respectiveassumptions occurringat the end
of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptionsconstant.

(t in I..akhs)

l>articulllrs

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions

Delta effect of+ I% change in rate of discounting

Delta effect of-1% change in rate ofdiscounting

Delta effect of+1 % change in rate of salary increase

Delta effect of-I % change in rate of salary increase

Delta effect of+ 1% change in rate of employee tumover

Delta effect of·1% change in rate ofemployee turnover

Delta effect of+10% change in rate ofmotality

Delta effect of-10% change in rate ofmotality

Gratuity

31 MarchZOZI 31 March 2020

107.54 128.75

(5.89) (5.61)

6.54 6.10

6.47 5.95

(5.94) (5.59)

(0.36) (0.76)

0.37 0.79

0.00 (0.01)

0.00 0.01

The sensitivity analysispresented above may not be representativeof the actual change in the defined benefit obligationas it is unlikely that the change
in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptionsmay be correlated. Furthermore, in presentingthe above sensitivity
analysis, the present valueof the defined benefit obligationhas been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reportingperiod,
which is the same as that applied in calculatingthe defined benefit obligationliabilityrecognisedin the Balance Sheet.
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31 Loans and Investments under Section 186 of the Act

The details of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Act read with the Companies (Meetingsof Board and its Powers)
Rules,2014 are as follows :

A. Details ofiuvestments made by the Company as 01131 March 2021 (including investments made in the previous year)
(~in LlIkbs)

Investment in equity shares

Name of tbe entity

Investment in Other Non-current investments

(III)In Associate

SynergizcrsSustainable Foundation

(il) In joint ventures

Smart Value Homes (Peenya Project) Private Limited

Landkart Builders Pl'ivateLimited

At Duringthe year At
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

1.20 1.20

1.00 1.00

1.00 1.00

1,800.08 1,800.08

1.04 1.04

0.02 0,02

1,804.34 1,804.34

(~in Lakhs)

At
Duringthe year

At
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

6,384.57 6,384.57

2,834.96 27.00 2,807.96

9,219.53 27.00 9,192.53

(t ill Lakll~)

At Loan givenduring Loan refunded At
31 Marc112021 the year during the year 31 March 2020

(30.00) 30.00

11,267.41 11,267.41

3,379.07 113.94 3,265.13

14,646.48 113.94 (30.00) 14,562.54

9%
9%

15%

Rate nf laterest
(p,o.)

THDC Management Services Limited

HLT ResidencyPrivateLimited
LandkartBuilders Private Limited

Name oCtile entity (refer note beluw)

Name ofthe entity

(i) In subsidiary companies

Smart value Homes {Boisar) Private Limited

HLT Residency Private Limited
North Bombay Real Estate Private Limited

Investment in Partnership firms

Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP
SmartValuesHomes(New Project) LLP

B. Details of loans etven by the Company arc as follows:

Note:
Purposeof utilization of loangivento the entities - Generalpurpose loan
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32 Segment reporting
The Companyis engagedonly in the businessof development of propertyand related activities in India. It has no other reportable segments in terms of Indian
Accounting Standard(Ind AS) 108on SegmentReportingspecified underSection133cf theCompanies Act,2013 nndthe relevantprovisions of theCompaniesAct,
2013("the2013Act").

33 Expenditure in foreign currency (on CAsh basis) during the financial year

The entire loss for the YCIll', other comprehensive income, total comprehensive mcome and loss per share ISattributableto owners of the parent.

if In Lnkhs

Partlculan Fertlgn For tile ye.r ended Fortheyearended
Curr.nev 31 Mnroh Z021 )1 M.,clI2Q20

SellillgExpen,e. USO
StutTW.lfo,c -Tminlng USO
Pratt •• ionaIFee. SOD
ProF...ion.l Fee. a"

Earnings per share For the yenr enlld Fortho~r ended
.)1 Man1l2021 31 Man;h2020

Loss after tax - ~ in Lakhs 04.205.7l) (10,859.30)
Number orecunv shares 80,00.00,000 40.00.00,000
Weighted average number of equity shares 40,76.71.233 40,00.00,000
Earnings per share(basic & dilutedl. in ~ * (3,48) (2.71)
Face value er share - in ~ 10 10

•

34

35 Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Basedon the information available wilh the Company, the balance due to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 is ~ Nil (31 March, 2020: ~ Nil) and no interest has been paid or is payable during the year under the terms of the MSMED Act,
2006. The information provided by the Company has been relied upon by the auditors.

(fin bkh,)

Parlleulan Alat
31 Marehl021 "'"31 Marcil 2020

II.Amounts p.yable tosupp~e[S UIlder MSMED ('uppl;....) IIllhe beginning "flheyoor
Prineipnl
Irnerestduethereon

b.r.j'tncnt,",ade10 .upplien; b<:yo,ld lID: appointed dayduring lh. yeor
Principal
Interest du"Ih='OO

C. Amount "flnler",,1 duelind pay.wle furdelay Inpa;menl (whkhhave been paidbutb")lOnd lhe

d,Amounl ofinWCSI ~C¢nlCd ar.d rcnUlinlng unpaid at thoendoryeor

o.Amount "finl"""tremainiog dun andpIIl'l1bln tuluppti~....dilult<>wablo '" doductibte

36 Commitments

Estimated amount of cupita1commitments as at 31 March 2021 ~ Nillakhs (as at:>l March 2020 ~ Nillakhs).

37 Contingent liabilities, not provided for

i Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of suiIs filed by vendors and customers of certain properties constructed/developedby the Company
amounting to ~ 121J7lakhs (As at31 March 2020 ~ 111.521akhs) (inclusive of interest) against which the Companyhas made counterclaims of~ Nil lakhs (As at 31
March 2020 ~ Nillakhs). The Company bused kgal pcairion, does not anticipate anymaterial liability to devolve on it as a result Ihereof.

Future ultimate outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in respect of the above mmters are uncertain as it depends on the final outcome of the mutters
involved.

ii Bank guarantee has been issued for an amount of~ 184.741akhs in favour of "Chenna!Metropolitan Development Authority" ,towards Security Deposit for
construction of Building at one of the project of the Company (As at:>I March 2020 ~ Nil lakhs).

III Bank rjnarantoc has been given as Security deposits for issuance of Non-convertiblc debentures, in favour of"BSE Limited" for an amount of~ 1.95 lakhs (As at:>I
Murch 2020 ~ Nil Iukhs).
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38 Subsequent events
Subsequentto year-end.the Companyhas acquired49% orurc sharecapitalof"Smllrt ValueHomes (PeenyaProject)PrivateLimited", it has becomeIIwhollyowned
subsidiaryof the Company.Consequentto acquisition, the earlier shareholders'agreement,claims and other rights if any, arisingtherefrom,havebeen terminated by
the parties.

39 The Company is actively monitoring the impact of the global health pandemic on its financial condition, liquidity, operations, suppliers, industry, end workforce. TIle
operations1)[ the Companywere impacteddue to the slowdownof work at its projectsites following the nationwide lockdownby the Governmentof India on 23
March 2020. The varioussites were impacteddue to the lockdownfor differentperiodsof lime, dependingon their locationand local regulations. The Companyhas
resumedits operationsin a phased manner as per tile directivesissuedby the Government of India and locnlauthorities. However,sinceearlyMarch2021, Indiahas
witnessed a second waveofCOVID·19 with sudden rise in COVID·19casesacrossthe country.This has again led to imposingIcckdown likerestrictions acrossthe
country, whichis likelyto impact the economicactivitycfthe countryas a wholeand theCompany'soperationsin particular.
The Companyhas used the principlesof prudelice in applyingjudgments, estimatesand assumptions for milkingdetailedassessmentof its liquidityposition for the
nextyearand the recoverability and carryingvalueof itsassets comprisinginvestments, inventory,advances, trade receivables, deferredtaxes,other financial and non­
financialesscts,based on current indicatorsof futuroeconomicconditionsand businessoperations,the Companyexpectsto recoverthe carryingamountscrus assets.
While the Companybos mndethe necessaryprovisionsin the financial statementslindexpectsto recoverthe carrying amount of its assets,it has nlsomadenecessary
arrangements to meet its liquidityneedsand serviceits debtobligation.
The actual impactof the globalhealth pandemicmay be differentfromthat which has been estimated,as the COVID· 19situationevolvesin Indiaand globally.The
Companywill continue10closelymonitoranymaterialchanges to future economicconditions.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Charteredaccountants
Finn's Registration No: 101248W/w·100022

Mumbni
28 June 2021

For and on behalf of the Board (IfDireeters (If
Tala Value Uomes Limiled

~CIN'U45~:;602

Sanlav Dult I!I!1Irwai
DirectQr Director

(j~:~ Dm:~::::~:
Chie{Executive Offlcer ... ( mrmcialOfflcer

DIN: 06604406 ~529

Mrunal Shukla
28 June 2021 Compa/'l~ Se"retarv

Mcmbership No: A31734
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14th Floor, Central B Wing and North eWing,
Nescc IT Park 4, Nesco Center,
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Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400 063

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Tata Value Homes Limited
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

Telephone: +91 2262571000
Fax: +91 2262571010

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tata Value Homes Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the "Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
are hereinafter together referred to as "the Group") and its joint ventures, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit aod loss
(includi ng other com prehensive income), canso Iidatcd sta temen t a f changes in eq uity and conso Iidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of sign ificanr accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as "the consolidated financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the ex.planations given to us, ex.cept for
the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, and
based on the consideration of reports of otber auditors on the separate financial statements of such
subsidiaries and joint ventures as were audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the consolidated state ofaffairs of the Group and its joint ventures as at 31 March 2021, of its consolidated
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The consolidated financial statements include the Group's investment in two joint ventures accounted for
by the equity method which is carried at Rs (56.0 I) crore on the consc.lidared balance sheet as at 31 March
2021 and the Group's share of the joint venture's net loss (and other comprehensive income) of Rs 20.21
crore which is included in the Group's consolidated loss for the year ended 31 March 2021, which is
based on the unaudited financial statements ofsuch joint venture. Consequently, we were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence and were unable to determine whether any adjustments to these
amounts were necessary.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group and its joint ventures in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of t.he Act, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports of the other auditors referred to in
sub paragraph (a) of the "Other Matters" paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our qualified opinion on the consol idated financial statements.

dff

Hegislsfed Office

B S H & Co. (3 pmtne(f,hlp firm with Registmtlon No. BA6'1~23\ converted into 8:3 R do CU LLf'
fa Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Registration No. AAEHl181j Wilt' effect front October 14.2013

141hFloor, Celltral8 Wing and North C Willg Nesen IT Park 4. N(,s\:o
Center Western Eypmss j-lighway Ooreqaon (East), Mumbai· 40006:)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued)

To the Members of Tata Value Homes Limited

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit ofthe consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion On these matters.

Description of Key Audit Matter

Revenue Recognition
See note 17 to the consolidated financial statements
The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in onr audit
Revenues from sale of residential units represents the largest portion of the total Our audit procedures on Revenue recognition included the following:
revenues ofthe Group. - Evaluate the Group's revenue recognition accounting policies, their

application to the customer contracts vis a vis the requirements of the
In accordance with Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the applicable accounting standards;
analysis of whether these contracts comprise one or more performance obligations, - Identification and evaluation of the design and implementation of key
and whether the performance obligations are satisfied over time or at a point in time, controls over existence and recording of revenue recognised for the
are areas requiring critical judgement by the Group. Revenue is recognised upon projects along with the testing of operating effectiveness thereof;
transfer of control of residential and commercial units to customers for an amount - Evaluating the criteria applied by the Group for determining the point in
that reflects the consideration which the Group expects to receive in exchange for time at which revenue is recognised:
those units ana the customer has the significant risks and rewards of ownership of - agree the amount of revenue recognised with the underlying agreements
the asset. with the customers on the sample basis; and

- Test on a sample basis the discounts granted are as per Group policies.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received! accrued.
Revenue is adjusted for estimated cost pending to be incurred by the Group for the

Icompletion of the project.

Considering the significance of revenue to the consolidated financial statements the
same has been considered as a key audit matter

dtt.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued)

To the Members ofTata Value Homes Limited
Key Audit Matters (Continued)

NRV of Inventories
See note 7 to the consolidated financial statements
The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
The Group's inventories comprise of ongoing and completed real estate projects, Our audit procedures included the following:
inventory of the projects which have not yet commenced and development rights. - Evaluate the Group's accounting policies for inventory vis a vis the
As at 31 March 2021, the carrying values of inventories amounts to 542.45 crores. requirements of the applicable accounting standards;

- We evaluated the design and implementation ofcontrols over determination
Inventories are carried at the lower ofthe cost and net realizable value ('NRV'). The of NRV of inventories including the process, methodology and key
determination of the NRV involves estimates based on prevailing market conditions, assumptions on selling price, estimated cost to complete the project and
current prices and expected date of commencement and completion of the project, tested the operating effectiveness thereof;
the estimated future selling price, cost to complete projects and selling costs. - Evaluate the Group's judgement with regards to application of write-down

of inventory units by auditing the key estimates, data inputs and assumptions
Considering significance of the carrying value of inventories to the consolidated adopted in the valuations.
financial statements and the involvement of significant estimation and judgement in - We have tested the NRV of the inventories to its carrying value in books on
such assessment ofNRV, the same has been considered as a key audit matter. sample basis.

~
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INDEPEl'l1)ENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued)

To the Members of Tata Value Homes Limited
Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Investment in and loans to joint ventures
See note 5(a), 5(b) and 5(c) to the consolidated financial statements
The kev audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
The Group has significant investments in and loan to its joint ventures. As at 31 Our procedures in assessing the Holding Company's management's
March 2021, the carrying values of Group's investment in its joint ventures amounts judgement for the impairment assessment included, inter alia, the following:
to 80.95 crores and loans to joint ventures amount to 44.10 crores, - We assessed the Group's valuation methodology applied in determining

the impairment if any of the investments and loans;
The Group evaluates for any indicators of impairment of the investments and loans -Evaluate the design and implementation and tested the operating
exist by reference to the requirements under lnd AS 36 "Impairment of Assets". effectiveness of controls over the Group's process of assessment of I

impairment and approval of forecasts. I
For investments and loans where impairment indicators exist, significant judgments - We obtained and read the valuations used by the Holding Company's
are required to determine the key assumptions used in the discounted cash flow management (including by external valuer where available) for determining
models, such as revenue growth, unit price and discount rates. Considering, the the fair value ('recoverable amount') of its investments and loans;
impairment assessment involves significant assumptions and judgement, the same - We tested the fair value ofthe investment and loans given as mentioned in
has been considered as a key audit matter. the valuation report to the carrying value in books;

- Made inquiries with Holding Company's management to understand key
drivers of the cash flow forecasts, discount rates etc
- Involved our valuation specialist to evaluate the assumptions used by the
Holding Company's management specialists. We read the disclosures made
in the consolidated financial statements regarding such investments.

~
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Col1til1ue(lj

To the Members of Tata Value Homes Limited
Other information

Other Information

The Holding Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company's annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated "financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work donel audit report
of other auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated state ofaffairs, consolidated loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its joint
ventures in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) spcci fied under section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its joint ventures are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that givc a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose
of preparation of the consolidatedfinancial statements by the Management and Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies included iu the Group and of its joint ventures are responsible JDr assessing the ability of
each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint ventures is
responsible IDr overseeing the financial reporting process of each company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued)

To the Members of Tata Value Homes Limited
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Cousolidated Financial Statements

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls based on our audit.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis ofaccounting in preparation ofconsolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and its joint ventures to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financialstatements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continue{lj

To the Members of Tata Value Homes Limited

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or
business activities within the Group and its joint ventures to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
financial information of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we
are the independent auditors, For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements,
which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them, We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion, Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in para (a) of the section titled
'Other Matters' in this audit report,

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports of the
other auditors referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
malters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of 1110st significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements ofthree subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total
assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 286.36 crores as at 31 March 2021, total revenues
(before consolidation adjustments) of Rs 80,93 crores and net cash outflows (before consolidation
adjustments) amounting to Rs, 3,53 crores for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements, The consolidated financial statements also include the Group's
share of net loss (and other comprehensive income) of'Rs, 3,77 for the year ended 3\ March 2021, in
respect of three joint ventures, whose financial statements have not been audited by us, These
financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by
the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect ofthese subsidiaries and joint ventures, and our report in
terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries
and joint ventures is based solely on the audit reports of the other auditors,

7
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued)

To the Members of Tata Value Homes Limited

Other Matters (continued)

(b) As referred to in our Basis for Qualified Opinion Paragraph, the consolidated financial statements
also include the Group's share of net loss (and other comprehensive income) of Rs. 20.21 crores for
the year ended 31 March 2021, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of
two joint ventures, whose financial statements have not been audited by us or by other auditors. These
unaudited financial statements have been furnished to us by Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of this joint venture, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3)of Section 143 of the Act in
so far as it relates to the aforesaid joint venture, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements.
In our opinion and as referred to in our Basis for Qualified Opinion Paragraph the joint venture is
material to the consolidated financial statements.

Our opinion on the consolidated 'financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, except as referred to in our Basis for Qualified Opinion Paragraph, is not modified
in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other
auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of repOIlS of
the other auditors on separate 'financial statements of such subsidiaries and joint ventures as were
audited by other auditors, as noted in the 'Other Matters' paragraph, we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

a) We have sought and except for the matter referred to in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph,
obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the consolidated 'financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors.

c) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation ofthe cor.solidated 'financial statements.

d) Except for the possihle effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated 'financial statements comply with the Ind
AS specified under section 133 of the Act.

8
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued)

To the Members of Tata Value Homes Limited

Report ou Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 31 March 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and joint ventures incorporated in
India, none ofthe directors of the Group companies and its joint ventures incorporated in India is
disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2)
of the Act.

f) The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above.

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and joint ventures incorporated in
India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure
A".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule II
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and joint ventures,
as noted in the 'Other Matters' paragraph:

I. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31
March 2021 on the consolidated financial position of the Group and joint ventures. Refer
Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

11. The Group and its joint ventures did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended 3 I March 2021.

111. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies and joint ventures
incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2021.

IV. The disclosures in the consolidated financial statements regarding holdings as well as
dealings in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December
2016 have not been made in the consolidated financial statements since they do not pertain
to the financial year ended 3 I March 2021.

9
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued)

To the Members of Tata Value Homes Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
reports of the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies and joint ventures incorporated in
India which were not audited by us, except in respect of the joint ventures referred to in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion Paragraph in respect of which we are unable to comment for reasons referred
to therein, the remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company, its subsidiary
companies and joint ventures to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of
the Act. The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies
and joint ventures is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 ofthe Act. The Ministry
of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197( J6) which are required to
be commented upon by us.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Place: Mumbai
Date: 0 I September 2021
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B S R &Co. LLP

Tata Value Homes Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Anditors' report on the consolidated financial statements of
Tata Value Homes Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements uuder Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

Referred to in paragraph A. g) under 'Report ou Other Legal aud Regulatory Requirements'
sectiou of our report of even date

Qualified Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended 31 March 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of Tata Value Homes Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding
Company") and such companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 which are its
subsidiary companies and its joint venture companies, as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company and except for the two joint ventures referred to in our Basis of
qualified Opinion Paragraph, such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary companies
and joint venture companies, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of
such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note").

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The consolidated financial statements include the unaudited financial statements of a joint venture as
referred to in our Basis of Qualified Opinion in our Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial
Statements. Consequently, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness ofthe internal financial control over financial reporting in respect
of aforesaid joint venture.

Managemeut's Responsibility for Internal Fiuancial Controls

The respective Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated. financial statements based on the
criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness ofthe accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as "the Act").
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Tata Value Homes Limited (continued)

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' report on the consolidated fiuancial statements of Tata
Value Homes Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an 0p11110n on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) ofthe Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of the internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors of the relevant subsidiary companies and joint venture companies in terms of their reports
referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning ofInternal Financial controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detai I, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 01" disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements,



B S R &Co. LLP

Tata Value Homes Limited (continued)

Aunexure A to the Independent Auditors' report on the consolidated financial statements of Tata
Value Homes Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021

Inherent Limitations of Internal Finaucial controls with Reference to consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility ofcollusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to
3 subsidiary companies and 4 joint venture companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is
based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-I00022

Place: Mumbai
Date: 01 September 2021
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Consolida ted Balance Sheet
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Tata Value Homes Limited

Conso lidated Statement of Profi t and Loss
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Tala Value Homes Limited

Consolidated Statement of cash flows
for theyearended31 March 2021

(~in Lakhs)

Particulars

A. Cash flow trom Operating Activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:»
Depreciation I Amortisation
Net (gain) I loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Finaneecost
(Reversal)I Provisionfor doubtfuladvances and other receivables
InterestIncomeon reDs
InterestIncome on fixed deposits
InterestIncome on Incometax refunds
Provision for Customer Compensation
ProvisiontorGST liabilities
Impairmentof loonsgiven to joint ventures
Impactot'NRV on inventory

Operating Loss before Working Capital Changes

Adjustments for changes in workingoapitak­
(Increase) I Decrease in trade receivables
Decrease in inventories
DecreaseI (Increase) in other financial assets.other non-current assets and other current assets
(Decrease)in trade payables, other fmanciallinbilities, other liabilitiesand provisions
Cash generated from Operating Activities
DirectTaxes Paid (net)
Net Cnsh flows generated from I (used in) Operating Activities

B. Cash flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including Capital work-in-progress)
Proceedsfrom sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchaseof investments
Loansgranted to joint ventures
Interestreceived
Net Cash flow used In Investing Activities

C. Cash Flow from Flnanclng Activities
Proceeds from issuanceof equity shares
Proceedsfrom borrowings
Repaymentof borrowings
Net (decrease) I increase in working capital borrowings
inter corporate deposits accepted
Intercorporate deposits repaid
Financecosts paid
Net Cash now generated from Financing Activities

Net increase I (decrease) ill Cash and Cash Equivalents (A) +(8) + (C)

Cash and Cash Equivalentsat the beginning of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalentsat the end of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalentsat the end of the year [refer note 8(b)]

A

n

c

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(26,355.06) (8,365.42)

17.87 13.72
(0.86) 0.01

8,726.59 7,760.18
669.19

(6l1.38) (2,485.96)
(0,08) (33.43)

(17.93)
10.31 7.02

97.57
5,820,31

10,671.69 484.42

(1,738.54) (1,852.70)

(677.00) 637.68
11,297,67 13,959.12
3,661.25 (2,117.05)

(8,558.63) (10,427.22)
3,984.75 199.83
(104.27) (264.88)

3,880.48 (65.05)

(10.62) (20.59)
2.42 0.01

(27.00) (2,79)
(3,362.31) (10,019.76)

52.05 278.l5
(3,345.46) (9,764.98)

40,000.00
2,100.00 19,500.00

(10,309.19) (20,000.00)
(671.22) 3,010.75

27,895.00 10,619.00
(47,992.79)
(10,597.53) (7,693.66)

424.27 5,436.09

959.29 (4,393.94)

1,207.20 5.601.14

2,166.49 1,207.20

2,166.49 1,207.20



Tata Val ue Homes Limited

Consolidated Stat ement of cash Ilows
fo r the year elided 3/ Marett 202 1

« in Lak hs)

No tes :

ti l The accom panying notes I to 40 arc an integr al part of the consolidated financia l statements

(ii) The above Statement of cash flows has been prepared under 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Acco unting Standard (IN D AS) 7 - "Statem ent o f cash flow s ''.

Debt reconci liation statem ent in acco rda nce with lND AS 7

Op ening Ba lances

Long term borrowi ngs

Short Tenn Borrowings

C h anges as per S tate men t of cash flows

Long term borrowin gs

Short Term Borrowings

Clo sing Ba lances

Long tenn borrowings

Short Term Borrowings

In terms of our report o f even da te attached

3 ) M ar ch 202 1

82.455.8-1
24,036.24

(28,3 06.98)

(671.22)

54, 148.86

23,365.02

3 1 March 2020

72,336.8 4

2 1,02 5.49

10,119.00

] .010.75

82.455.84

2-t,Q36.24
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Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(~ in lakhs)

Background

Tata Value Homes Limited ("the Parent"), its subsidiaries (collectively called as the "Group") and joint
ventures have main interest in development of real estate. The Group and its joint ventures are into real
estate development and its key activities include project conceptualizing and designing, development,
management and marketing.

1. Basis of Preparation

a. Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. The accounting
policies followed in the preparation of these fmancials statements are the same as those of the previous
year except for the adoption ofInd AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS
17 leases, and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure ofleases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet
lease accounting model for lessees.

All of the Group leases at I April 2019 were either cancellable or short term or had a remaining period
of less than one year from that date. Accordingly, the transition to Ind AS 116 did not have any impact
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as at that date.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board ofDirectors of the Company on 31
August 2021.

b. Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

i. Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the Parent and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Parent:

• has power over the investee;
• is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investec; and
• has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Parent reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Parent has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Parent considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether or not the Parent's voting rights ill an investee are sufficient to give it power,
including:



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(~ in lakhs)

• rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

• any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Parent has, or does not have, the
current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders' meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Parent obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Parent loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
from the date the Parent gains control until the date when the Parent ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Parent and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Parent and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. The Group and its joint ventures present the non-controlling interest
in the Consolidated Balance Sheet within equity, separately from the equity of the Group and its joint
ventures as owners. The excess of the Group and its joint venture's share in the net worth of the
subsidiary on the date ofcontrol acquired is treated as goodwill while a deficit is considered as a capital
reserve on the consolidated financial statement.

On disposal of the subsidiary, attributable amount on goodwill is included in the determination of the
profit or loss and recognised in the Consolidated Statement ofProfit and Loss.

Impairment loss, if any, to the extent the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is charged
off to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as it arises and is not reversed. For impairment
testing, goodwill is allocated to Cash Generating Unit (CGO).

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group and its joint venture's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated in full on consolidation.

ii. Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decision about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statement using equity method of accounting. Under the equity method of accounting, the investment
in a joint venture is initially recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group and its joint venture's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and other
comprehensive income of the joint venture. Dividends received or receivable from a joint venture
reduces the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group and its joint venture's share of a joint
venture exceed Group and its joint venture's interest in the joint venture (which includes any long term
interest that, in substance, form part of the Group and its joint venture's net investment in the joint
venture), the Group and its joint ventures discontinue recognizing its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group and its joint ventures have incurred legal or
constructive obligation or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.

The Group and its joint ventures discontinue the use ofequity method from the date when the investment
ceases to be a joint venture.

~



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(5!' in lakhs)

When a Group and its joint ventures entity transact with a joint venture of the Group and its joint
ventures, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the joint venture are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interest in the joint venture that are not related to
the Group and its joint ventures.

c. Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except
for certain items that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies.

d. Functional and preseutation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Group. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless
otherwise indicated.

2. Significant accounting policies

a. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and are net of
cancellations, value added taxes, service tax, GST, other applicable taxes and amount collected on
behalf of third parties.

i, Revenue from real estate development projects

The Group enters into contracts with customers to sell property that are either completed or under
development.
The sale of completed property constitutes a single performance obligation and the Group
recognizes revenue when the same has been satisfied.

Group recognise revenue when the below mentioned conditions get satisfied;

occupancy certificate for the project is received by the Group
possession is either taken by the customer or offer leiter for possession along with the
invoice for the full amount of consideration is issued to the customer
substantial consideration has been received and the Group is reasonably certain that the
remaining consideration will flow to the entity.
there are no legal claims/ complains been made by the customer

The Group considers whether there are promises in the contract that are separate performance
obligations or are to be delivered even after completing the aforesaid conditions and to which a
portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated and if so the Group allocates the attributable
transaction price and as control is deemed to have passed to the customer recognizes revenue over
time as the related obligations are satisfied.

For contracts relating to the sale of property under development, the Group is responsible for the
overall management of the project and identifies various goods and services to be provided. The
Group accounts for these items as a single performance obligation because it provides a significant

~
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service of integrating the goods and services (the inputs) into the completed property (the
combined output) which the customer has contracted to buy.

ll. Project ManagementlMarketing fees

Revenue from project management/marketing services is recognised in the accounting period in
which services are rendered in accordance with the substance ofthe agreement.

iii. Other Income from Customers

Other income from customers are accounted on accrual basis in accordance with the terms of
agreement/allotment letters.

b. Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has
been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

c. Construction Costs

Construction costs comprise project costs incurred to enable the Group to complete its performance
obligations. These include cost of land and cost of development rights, construction and development
costs, borrowings costs incurred and also include cost of development of common facilities and
amenities.

These costs are allocated to each unit of sale (residential or commercial) on a systematic basis as
construction progress and are expensed when the related revenue in respect of the unit is recognised.

Pending recognition of revenue, the costs are accumulated and disclosed as construction work in
progress/Finished goods within inventory.

d. Income tax

Current tax:
Current tax is the amount oftax payable on the taxable profit for the year.

Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the standalone statement of profit and loss
because of items of income or expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(~ in lakhs)

Deferred tax:
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of the assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profits. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit
may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history ofrecent losses, the Group recognises a deferred tax
asset only to the extent that is has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other
evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be
realized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in standalone Statement ofProfit and Loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
current tax and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment to the future current tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is
reasonable certainty of it being set off against regnlar tax payable within the stipulated statutory period.
MAT credit is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit is written
down to the extent there is no longer reasonable certainty to the effect that the Group will pay regular
tax during such specified period.

e. Leases - as a lessee

Policy applicable before I April 2019

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's
inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or
other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the Statement ofProfit and Loss over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the
Group as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any

~
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incentives received from the lessor) are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease nnless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases.

Policy applicable after 1 April 2019

The Gronp has adopted Ind AS 116 effective from April 1 2019 using modified retrospective approach.
For the purpose of preparation of Financial Information, management has evaluated the impact of
change in accounting policies required due to adoption oflnd AS 116 for year ended March 312020.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified assets, the Group assesses whether: (i) the contact involves the use of an identified asset
(ii) the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of
the lease and (iii) the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

As a lessee, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate ofcosts to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of- use asset or the end ofthe
lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those
of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, ifany, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments,
including in substance fixed payments; The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The Group has used number of practical expedients when applying Ind AS
116: - Short-term leases, leases oflow-value assets and single discount rate.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term. The
Group applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar end date

f. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, Cash comprises cash on hand and
demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of
three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank

8tf
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overdrafts. Bank overdraft and cash credit are disclosed under current borrowings in financial liability
in the balance sheet.

g. Inventories

Construction costs comprise project costs incurred to enable the Group to complete its performance
obligations. These include cost of land and cost ofdevelopment rights, construction and development
costs, borrowings costs incurred and also include cost of development of common facilities and
amenities.

Inventories comprises of cost of construction material, finished residential or commercial properties
and costs ofprojects under construction/development (construction work-in-progress). Inventories are
valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of construction material is determined on
a weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course ofbusiness less estimated costs
of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

h. Financial Assets

Classification
The Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics ofthe financial asset.

Initial recognition and measurement
The Group recognises financial assets when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the financial assets are classified in three categories:

• Debt instruments at amortised cost
• Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss
• Equity investments

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b. Contractual terms ofthe asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance income in the Standalone statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the Standalone statement ofprofit and loss.
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Debt instruments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Debt instruments included in the fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) category are measured at
fair value with all changes recognised in the Standalone statement of profit and loss.

Equity iuvestments
All equity investments other than investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate are measured
at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other
equity instruments, the Group decides to classify the same either as at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCn or FVTPL. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by­
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to the Standalone statement of profit and loss, even on sale of such
investments.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Standalone statement ofprofit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part ofa financial asset) is primarily derecognised when:

a. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
b. the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
c. the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,

but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group applies 'simplified approach' measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the
following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, and bank balance.

b. Trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit loss at each reporting date,
right from its initial recognition.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification
The Group classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case ofloans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

<Ifi!-
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Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Standalone
statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
transactions costs. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Standalone statement of
profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Standalone
statement ofprofit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Equity Instruments
Equity instruments are recognised at the value of the proceeds, net of direct costs of the capital issue.

i. Property, plant and equipment

Recognition & Measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises:

its purchase price, includes non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and
rebates.
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
the iuitial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located.

If significant parts of an item ofproperty, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) ofproperty, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss
on disposal of an item ofproperty, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Capital work-in-progress in respect of assets which are not ready for their intended use are carried at
costs, comprising of direct costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

SUbsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefit associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

8ft
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Disposals or retirement
Any gains or losses arising on the disposals or retirement ofan item ofproperty, plant and equipment is
determined as difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

j. Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided using the written down value method using the useful life as follows:
Assets Useful life
Buildings 60 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Electrical Fittings 10 years
Motor Vehicles 8 years
Cellular Phones 2.5 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised over lease ofthe estimated useful life ofthe asset or the lease period.
The Lease period where the Group is lessee includes the periods where the Group has the unilateral right
to renew the lease and intends to do.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

k. Capital Work-in Progress

Capital expenditure on assets not owned by the Group is reflected as a distinct item in Capital Work-in
Progress till the period ofcompletion and thereafter in the Property, plant and equipment.

I. Intangible assets

Intangible assets purchased is stated at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Amortisation methods andperiods
The Group amortises cost of software over a period of 3 years on a straight-line basis.

m. Impairment ofproperty, plant & equipment and intangible assets

The carrying amounts of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indications exist, the recover able amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

An impairment loss is recognised in the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss wherever the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of the asset's fair

Sbt.
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value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using appropriate discount factor. When there is an indication that an
impairment loss recognised for the asset in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have
decreased such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

n. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest, other costs incurred and exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Borrowing costs,
allocated to and utilised for qualifying construction project / assets, pertaining to the period from
commencement of activities relating to construction / development of the qualifying construction project /
assets up to the date of substantial completion ofproject / capitalisation of such asset are added to the cost
ofconstruction project / assets. Capitalisation ofborrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement
ofProfit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity on the qualifying construction
project / assets is interrupted. A qualifying construction project / asset is an asset that necessarily takes
substantial time or more to get ready for its intended use or sale and includes the real estate properties
developed by the Group.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their expenditure on
qualifying construction project / assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

o. Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not require an outflow ofresources embodying economic benefits or the amount
of such obligation carmot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
in respect ofwhich likelihood ofoutflow ofresources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision
or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are not disclosed in the financial statements unless an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.
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p. Employee benefits

i. Post-employment obligations

The Group operates the following post-employment schemes:

(a) Defined benefit plan

The Group's obligation towards gratuity to employees, post-retirement medical benefits and ex­
directors pension obligations is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling and the return on plan asset, is
reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in the retained earnings and not reclassified to
profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in the standalone Statement of Profit or Loss in the
period of a plan amendment. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net balance of the defmed benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is
recognised as employee benefit expense in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

(b) Defined contribution plan

The Group's contributions to Provident fund, Superannuation Fund and employee's state insurance
scheme are considered as defmed contribution plans. The Group is liable for contributions and
any deficiency compared to interest computed based on the rate of interest declared by the Central
Government under the Employees' Provident Fuod Scheme, 1952 and recognises, if any, as an
expense in the year it is determined. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is available.

ii. Other Long-term employee benefit obligations
The Group's obligation towards other long-term employee benefits in the form of compensated
absences and long service awards are based on actuary valuation. The valuation is carried out using the
Project Unit Credit Method as per Ind AS 19 to determine the Present Value ofBenefit Obligations and
the related Current Service Cost and, where applicable, Past Service Cost.

iii. Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service
are recognized in respect ofemployees' services up to the end ofthe reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

q. Dividends to equity shareholders
Dividend to equity shareholders is recognised as a liability and deducted from shareholders' equity, in the
period in which the shareholders have the right to receive the dividend which in the case of interim
dividends are when these are declared by the Board ofDirectors ofthe Parent ofthe Group and when these
are approved in the Annual General Meeting of the Parent of the Group in any other case.

r. Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of the Parent of the Group. The CODM, who is responsible for
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allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the
Managing Director & CEO of the Parent of the Group.

s. Foreign Currency Transactions
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in Consolidated Statement ofProfit and Loss.

t. Operating cycle
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current based on operating cycle
determined in accordance with the guidance as set out in the Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.
The operating cycle of the Group is determined to be 12 months.

u. Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures as at date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts ofthe revenues and expenses for the years presented. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

a) Critical Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

i. Discount rate used to determine the carrying amount of the Group's defined benefit obligation:
In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management
considers the interest rates of govermnent bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of
the post-employment benefit obligation.

ii. Contingences and commitments:
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigations and other
claims against the Group. Where the potential liabilities have a low probability of crystallising
or are very difficult to quantify reliably, the Group treats them as contingent liabilities. Such
liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the financial statements. Although
there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, the Group does
not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on financial position or profitability.

iii. Classification of entities as joint ventures:

The below entities are limited liability entities whose legal form confers separation between the
parties to the joint arrangement and the Group itself. Furthermore, there is no contractual
arrangement or any other facts and circumstances that indicate that the parties to the joint
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arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangement.
Accordingly, these entities are classified as joint ventures of the Group.
I. Smart Value Homes (Peenya project) Private Limited
2. Smart Value Homes (New Project) LLP
3. Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP
4. Land Kart Builders Private Limited
5. HL promoters Private Limited

The assessment of control is made since the remaining share in the respective entities is held by
one unrelated partner. Also, that in case of these entities, neither of the parties have the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities unilaterally as relevant activities require consent of both
parties. Hence the management has concluded that the Group does not have unilateral control
over these entities.

b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

i. Impairment for doubtful recoverable, advances and financial assets (Refer note 8 (c) and 9):
The Group makes impairment for doubtful recoverable, advances and financial assets based on
an assessment of the recoverability. The identification of doubtful debts requires use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the other receivables and advances and impairment
expenses in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

11. Valuation of deferred tax assets (refer note 6)
The Group review the carrying amount ofdeferred tax assets at the end ofeach reporting period.

iii. Provision for customer compensation (refer note 15)
Provision is made for estimated compensation claims to be paid to customers in respect ofdelay
in handing over possession of flats. These claims are expected to be settled in the next financial
year. Management makes an estimate of the provision based on expected time of delivery and
taking into consideration past experiences.

IV. Net realisable value of inventory (refer note 7)
Management makes an estimate of the net realisable value of inventory based on expected
realisation from inventory taking into consideration past experiences/valuation reports.

~
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3 Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Office Equipments Office Furniture
Information

Electrical Fittings Total
Technology Hardware

Year ended 31 March 2021

Gross carrying amount

Balance as at 1 April 2020 69.89 33.10 73.24 0.68 176.91

Additions - - 10.62 - 10.62

Disposals (13.57) (5.54) (14.19) - (33.30)

Balance as at 31 March 2021 [A] 56.32 27.56 69.67 0.68 154.23

Accumulated depreciation

Balanceas at 1 April 2020 57.11 25.74 52.48 0.54 135.87

Depreciation expenses during the year 2.82 1.79 13.01 0.04 17.66

Disposals (12.88) (5.18) (13.68) - (31.74)

Balance as at 31 March 20211BI 47.05 22.35 5\.81 0.58 121.79

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2021 (A-B] 9.27 5.21 17.86 0.10 32.44

Year ended 31 March 2020

Gross carrying amount

Balance as at I Apri12019 67.99 33.10 55.06 0.68 156.83

Additions 1.90 - 18.69 - 20.59

Disposals - - (0.51) - (0.51)

Balance as at 31 March 2020 Ie] 69.89 33.10 73.24 0.68 176.91

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Balance as at 1 Apri12019 52.32 23.07 46.76 0.49 122.64

Depreciation expenses during the year 4.79 2.67 6.21 0.05 13.72

Disposals - - (0.49) - (0.49)

Balance as at 31 March 2020 ID} 57.11 25.74 52.48 0.54 135.87

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2020 [C-D} 12.78 7.36 20.76 0.14 41.04

~
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4 Intangible assets

Particulars Computer software

Year ended 31 March 2021

Gross carrying amount

Balanceas at 1 April 2020 0.21

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

Balance as at 31 Mareh 2021 [AI 0.21

Accumulated amortisation

Balanceas at 1 April2020

Amortisationexpenses duringthe year 0.21

Disposals

Balance as at 31 March 2021181 0.21

Net carrying amount as at 31 Marcil 2021 (A~BI

Year ended 31 March 2020

Gross carrying amount

Balanceas at 1 Apri12019 0.21

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

Balance as at 31 Mareh 2020 [C] 0.21

Accumulated amertlsatlon and Impairment

Bnlrmcc as at 1 April 2019 -
Amortisation expenses during the year

Disposals

Transfers

Balance as at 31 March 2020 [DI -
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2D20 Ie-D) D.21
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5 Financial assets

5(a) Investments N Non-current-nnquoted

(A) Fully paid-up unquoted equity instruments

III joint ventures measured
(carryingamountdeterminedusing the equitymethodof accounting)
{formovement refernote36}

Smart ValueHomes(Peenyaproject)PrivateLimited
1,275,000 (As at 31 March 2020: 1,275,000) equity shares of~ toeach fully paid­
up.

(D) Investment in Partnership firms
(Measuredat cost less impairment)

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March2020

221.08

Arvind andSmart ValueHomesLLP
- Fixed capital
- AdditionalCapital
- CurrentCapital

Smart Value Homes New Project LLP
- Fixed capital
M CurrentCapital

5(b) Investments ~ Non-current- unquoted

0.50 0,50

5,969.94 6,038.59

0.51 0,51
2,124.25 2,797.45

8,095.20 9,058.13

(A) Investment in equity instruments at cost (fully paid-up)
In Associa te
Synergizers Sustainable Foundation
ISO(As at 31 March 2020: 150) equity shares of~ 10 each

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof
Aggregate amount ofunquoted investments

5(c) Loans M Non-current
(Unsecured, considered good)

Loans and Inter-Corporate Deposits to related parties (refer note 30.2)

0.02

8,095.22

8,095.22

4AIO.74

4,410.74

0.02

9,058.15

9,058.15

3,733.71

3,733.71



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
as at 3JMarch 2021

(~ in Lakhs)
As at

31 March 2021

5 Financial assets (Continued)

5(d) Other financial assets - Non-current
(Unsecured, considered good)

Asat
31 March 2020

SecurityDeposits
• relatedparties (refer note 30.2)
~ others

Balancewith bank in fixed deposits, withmaturitybeyond 12months
(refernote 5.1)

0.07
142.53

&51

0.07
140.62

140.69
Note

5A Fixed deposits placedwith lDB! Bank are under lien in favour of AssistantCommissionerof Commercial Taxes, Bangelorefor the disputedamount
related to assessmentorder for VAT (AY2017-18)on behalfcfone of the group company.

6 Income Tax Asset

- AdvanceIncome-Tax (net of provisions) 1,016.68
-----,-,.

1,016.68

921.05

921.05
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Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
as at 3/ March 2021

(~ in Lakhs)

7 Inventories

Construction Materials
Construction work-in-progress
Finished Goods

Asat
31 March 2021

161.86
40,655.27
13,428.42

54,245.55

As at
31 March 2020

508.27
58,323.37
16,493.18

75,324.82

Notes:

7.1 Disclosurewith respect to inventories which are expected to be recoveredafter more than twelvemonths are not provided as it is practicallynot feasible
to disclose the same considering the nature of the industry in which the Group operates.

7.2 Construction work-in-progressrepresents materials at site and unbilled costs on the projects. Based 011 projections and estimates by the managementof
the Group of the expected revenues and costs to completion, there are no provision for losses to completion and/ or write off of costs carried to
inventories, other than already provided.. In the opinion of the management, the net realisable value of the construction work-in-progress will not be
lower than the costs so included therein.

7.3 The cost of inventoriesrecognised as an expense during the year in respectof continuing operationswas ~ 13,642.35 lakhs (for the year ended 31 March
2020 ~ 16,262.741akhs)

8(a) Trade receivables

(Unsecured, considered good)
~ from related parties (refer note 30.2)
~ Others

8(b) Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with Banks ~ in Current Accounts #
Cash on Hand

# Includes balanceswith banks ~ in RERA specified accounts, which shall be used only for specified
purposes as defined under Real Estate (Regulationand Development) Act, 2016.

As at
31 March 2021

8,797.58
237.90

9,035.48

2,166.49

2,166.49

761.68

As at
31 March 2020

8,120.58
237.90

8,358.48

1,207.05
0.15

1,207.20

697.37



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidatcd financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021

(~ in Lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

S(c) Loans ~ current

(Unsecured, considered good)
Advanceto employees
Loansand Inter-Corporate Deposits to relatedparties(refernote 30.2)

0.02
20,170.18

1.35
22,745.80

(Unsecured, considered doubtful)
Loansand Inter-Corporate Deposits to relatedparties(refer note 30.2)
Less: Provisionfor doubtfulloans

5,820.31
(5,820.31)

1,005.27
(1,005.27)

1,005.27

____-"(1"',0"'0"'5."'27"') -""'==
InterestAccrued
Less:Provision for AccruedInterest

20,170.20 22,747.15

8(d) Other financial assets ~ current

(Unsecured, considered good)

Depositwith others 15.38 27.05

15.38 27.05

9 Other Current Assets

(Unsecured, considered good)

Prepaidexpenses
Balanceswith government authorities
Deposit withGovernment Authorities
Advanceto Vendors
• relatedparties (refer note 30.2)

- others

41.59 76.81

406.07 937.74
0.45 0.45

20.60 46.27
1,234.60 4,300.71

(Unsecured, considered doubtful)
Advanceto Vendors

-others
Less: Provisionfur impairmentof advances

2,615.19
(2,615.19)

3,284.38
(3,284.38)

1,703.31 5,361.98



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continned)
as at 31 March2021

(e in Lakhs)

10 Equity share capital and other equity

10(a) Equity share capital

Particulars

Alllhoriscd

1,000,000,000 (As at 31 March 2020 : 400,000,000) Ordinary Shares of~ 10/· each

Issued, Subscribed and rully Pnid-up

800,000,000 (As at 31 March 2020 : 400,000,000) Ordinary Shares on to/_each

Asal

31 March 2021

1,00,000.00

80,000.00

80,000.00

ASllt

31 Mnrch 2020

40,000.00

40,000.00

40,000.00

10.1 Reconciliation of number of Ordinary Shares and amount Outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Year:

Particulul'S JU nl31 March 2021 As III 31 Marcil 2020

Number or Shares fill J.llklls Number OfSllares fin Lekhs

At theBeginningof theYear 40,00,00,000 40,000.00 40,00,00,000 40,000.00

Issued during the year on a rights basis 40,00,00,000 40,000.00

Oulshmding at the End oftbe Year 80,00,00,000 80,000.00 40,00,00,000 40,000,00

10.2 The Ordinary Shares rank pari-passu, having voting rights and are subject to preferences and restrictions as per Companies Act, 2013. The shareholders
of Ordinary shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Parent after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their
shareholdings, at theevent of liquidation.

10.3 Shares held by Parent and its subsidiary:

800,000,000 (A~ at 31 March 2020: 400,000,000) Ordinary shares are held by the Holding Company, Tala Housing Development Company Limited
(Jointly with its nominees)

IDA Details of Ordinary Shares held by Shareholders holding more than 5% of Ordinary Shares in the Parent:

------------------
Particulars As al31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Tata Housing DevelopmentCompany Limited (Jointly with its nominees)
(OrdinarySharesof~ 10each)

10(b) Other equity

Particulars

Debenture Redemption Reserve

Retained earnings

Other comprehensive income

Number OrShlu'es

80,00,00,000

% Holding

100.00%

Number or Shares

40,OO,01J,OOO

As at 31 March 2021

(81,595.68)

46.58

% Holding

100.00%

As al31 Marcil 2020

1,111.96

(51,601.48)

8.01



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to tile consolidated financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021

(~in Lakhs)

10 Equity share capital and other equity (Con/inued)

lO{b) Other equity (Continuef!)
~ in Lekh

Parfleulars As at 31 Marcil 2021 Asat31 Maych2020

Debenture Redemption Reserve

Openingbalance 1,111.96 1,111.96

(Less) :Transferred to Retainedearnings (1,111.96)

Closing Balance - 1,111.96

Retained earnings

Openingbalance (51,601.48) (32,941.73)

Add:TransferredfromDebenture RedemptionReserve 1,111.96 -
Less:Lossfor the year (31.106.16) (18,659.15)

Cosing Balance (81,595.68) (51,601.48)

Other comprehensive income

Openingbalance 8.01 17.19

Remeasurementaof post-employmentbenefit obligations 38.57 (9.18)

Closing Balance 46,58 8.01

-(81,549.10) (50,481.51)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Retained earnings

Retained earningsare the profits that the Company has earnedtill date, less any transfersto general reserve, debentureredemption reserve, dividends or
other distributions paid to shareholders.



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021

« in Lakhs)

11 Borrowings

Particulars As nt

31 March 2021
As at

31 Marcb 2020

Secured- at amortised cost:

(a) Workingcapital termloan

Unsecured- at "mortised cost:

(0) Debentures

(c) Inter-Corporate Deposits
InterCorporateDepositfrom related party
(refernote 30.2)

Long-term

496.21

19,500.00

22,858.05

42,854.26

Current maturities of
long-term debts

1,294.60

10,000,00

11,294.60

Long-term

29,500.00

42,955.84

72,455.84

Current maturities 0

long-term debts

10,000.00

10,000.00

11.1 Securityand termsofrepaymentin respectof the aboveborrowingsare detailed in note 33 to the consolidated financialstatements.



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continned)
as at 31 March2021

(~ in Lakhs)

Particulars

12 Trade Payables - Non-current

Trade payablesdueto Micro, Smalland MediumEnterprises
Retentionmoneypayable

13(a) Other financialliahilites - Non-current

Interestaccruedbut not due on borrowings
Securityand otherdepositspayable

13(b) Non-current Provisions

As at
31 March 2021

405.S0

405.80

3,764.49
36.06

As at
31 March2020

322.76

322.76

1,456.77
84.70

1,541.47

Provision for Employee Benefits (refer note 29)
- Gratuity(net) 18.54

-------------
18.54



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated flnancial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021

(~ in Lakhs)

14(a) Current borrewlngs

Secured - at amortised cost
Loansrepayable on demandfrom banks
(includes cashcredits,workingcapitaldemandloans and short-term loans)

[Note:Securitydiclosure in respectof the securedborrowings are
detailed in note 33]

14(b) Trade Payables

Trade payables due to Micro, Smalland MediumEnterprises
Tradepayables other than acceptancesdue to other thanMicro,Smalland MediumEnterprises
~ relatedparties (refer note 30.2)
-others

Retentionmonies payable

14(c) Other financial liabilities

As at
31 March 2021

23,365.02

23,365.02

107.52
3,725.53

622.38

4,455.43

Asal
31 March2020

24,036.24

24,036.24

106.02
5,991.53

817.12

6,914.67

Current maturitiesof long-tenn debts (refernotes II and 31(a))
Payable tojoint venturecompanies
Interestaccruedon borrowings
Employees relatedpayables
Earnestmoneydeposits
Securityand other depositspayable

11,294.60 10,000.00
13,738.79 10,120.02

1,775.78 5,064.35
19.24 12.65
6.00 6.00

373.81 297.23

27,208.22 25,500.25



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March2021

(z in Lakhs)

15 Provisions

As at
31 March 2021

Asat
31 March2020

Provision for Employee Benefits(refernote29)
- Gratuity
- Compensatedabsences

Provision for Customercompensation
Provision for GST liabilities

16 Other Current Liabilities

31.04 60.54
104.66 115.18
148.46 136.50
97.57 97.57

381.73 409.79

Revenuereceivedin advance
Advancesreceivedpendingallotmentofflats
Statutory dues payable:

- Provident fund
- Goodsand servicetax
- Tax deductedat source

6 Current tax liabilities

Provisionfor tax

2,179.66
27.57

5.63
59.24

332.24

2,604.34

8,621.55
26.53

3.67
51.72

224.42

8,927.89

18.46

18.46



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to tile consolidated financial statements (Continned)
for theyear ended31 March2021

(~in Lakhs)

17 Revenue from Operations

Sale of properties

Sale of services
M Project & society managementand marketingcharges

Other operating revenues
- Sale of materials
M Otherincome from customers

18 Other Income

Year Ended YearEnded
31 Marcb 2021 31 March2020

13,327.75 16,647.91

63,38 559.25

137.74
802.35 1,035.61

14,331.22 18,242.77

Interest income on financial assetsat amortised cost
Intereston delayedpaymentby customers
Interest on Income-tax refund
ScrapSales
SundryBalances Written-back
Miscellaneous Income
Net Gainon sale of Property, plant and equipment

19 Employee Benefit Expenses (refer note 29)

920.86

63.12

17.93
25.24

670.62

0.86

1,698.63

2,803.79
13.47
2.29
2,66

81.97

2,904.18

Salaries
Contributionto Provident and Other Funds
SIaffWe1fareExpenses

1,478.67 1,706.41
64.50 82.54
11.36 24.46

---------~ -_._-------
1,554.53 1,813.41

Less: Apportionment to projects 252.92

1,301.61

313.96

1,499.45



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continned)
for theyear ended31 March2021

(~ inLakhs)

20 Finance Cost

Interest expense on financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss

- Interest on Borrowings
~ Interest on Others

Year Ended
31 March 2021

8,816.29
800.39

9,616.68

YearEnded
31 March2020

8,702.37
307.75

9,010.12

Less: Apportionment toconstruction work in progress 890.09 1,249.94

""",.,.==",8,",72~6:...5~9 7.760.18
Note:Thecapitalisation rateusedto determine theamountof borrowing coststo be capitalised is the weighted average interest rateapplicable 10 the
Company'sgeneral borrowings whichis 8.12%, (for theyearended 31March2020: 8.43%)

21 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Depreciationon property, plantand equipment
Amortisationof intangibleassets

17.66
0.21

17.87

13.72

13.72



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended31 March2021

('{ in Lakhs)

Year Ended
31 March 2021

YearEnded
31 March 2020

22 Other Expenses

Professional Fees 177.20 119.94
Travelling Expenses 2.53 15.23

Rent 24.76 31.53
RepairsandMaintenance -Others 885.26 1.171.50
Electricity Expenses 9.55 6,04
Advertisement 0.26
Insurance 58.76 50.08
RatesandTaxes 2.11 0.05
Directors'Sitting Fees to independentand non-executive Directors 3.20 160
Payable to Statutory Auditors
As Auditor
-Audit Fees 16.75 14.75
In Other Capacity
- In OtherCapacity 0.76 0,07

- Reimbursement of Expenses 0.56 0.22

Payableto Auditorsof Subsidiaries 3.70 180
Expenditureon CorporateSocial Responsibility 5.65 25.00
Customer Compensation 0.25 105.35

Other expenses 149.48 150.73
Selling Expenses
• Brokerage 205.05 132.36
- Advertisement andothers 648.35 891.83

Provisionfor CustomerCompensation 10.31 7.02
Provisionfor GST liabilities 97.57
Provisionfor doubtfuladvancesand other receivables 669.t9

ImpactofNRV on inventory 10,671.69 484.42

12.876.18 3,976.28

~



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended31 March 2021

(zmLakhs)

23 Financial risk management

The Group's business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit risk. The Group'ssenior management
has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management fi:amework The Group has constituted a Risk
ManagementCommittee,which is responsiblefor developingand monitoringthe Group'srisk managementpolicies.The Group's risk management policies
are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limitsand controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
Risk managementpolicies and systemsare reviewedregularly to reflect changes in market conditionsand the Group'sactivities.

The Risk Management Committeeof the Group is supported by the Finance department that providesassurance that the Group's financial risk activitiesare
governed by appropriate policies and proceduresand that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordancewith the Group'spoliciesand
risk objectives. TIle Finance departmentactivitiesare designed to:
~ protect the Group's financialresults and position fiom financial risks
- maintain market risks within acceptableparameters,while optimisingreturns; and
- protect theGroup's financial investments,while maximising returns.

A} Management of liquidi.ty risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group wilt face in meeting its obligations associated with its fmancial liabilities. The Group's approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, management
considers both normal and snessed conditions.

Maturities of financialliabilities
The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows as at the Balance
sheet date:

As at 31 March 2021 Caning Amount Less than 1 year 1-3 Years

Borrowings 77,513.88 36,217.41 20,677.52

Trade payables 4,861,23 4,455.43 405.80

Other financialliabilities 19,714.17 15,913.62 3,800.55

As at 31 March 2020 Carrtng Amount Less than 1 year 1~3 Years

Borrowings 1,06,492.08 60,482.31 59,115.17

Trude payables 7,237.43 6,914.67 322.76

OUter fjnancial liabtlities 13,486.74 13,402.04 84.70

3-5 Years

3-5Years

Tolal

56,894.93

4,861.23

19,714.17

Total

1,19,597.48

7,237.43

13,486.74

B) Management of market risk

The Group's size and operations result in it being exposed to the followingmarket risks that arise from its usc of financial instruments:
• interest rate risk
• currency risk
The above risks may affect the Group's incomeand expenses, or the value of its financial instruments. The objective ofthe Group's managementof market
risk is to maintain this risk within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns. The Group's exposure to, and management of, these risks is explained
below:

Particulars

Fixed rate instruments

Debentures - Non-Convertible Redeemable

Inter Corporate Deposits

Commercial papers

Working Capital Demandloan fromBanks

Total

Variable-rate Instruments

Loans repayable on demandfrom banks

Total

As at As at

31 Marcil 2021 31 March 2020

29,500.00 39,500.00

22,858,05 42,955.84

19,223.57 16,540.83

71,58t.62 98-;996:67

5,657.99 7,495.41

5,657.99 7,495.41



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended31 March 2021

(~ in Lakhs)

23 Financial risk management (Continued)

B} Management of market risk (Continued)

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF RISK

(1)Interest rate risk

MANAGEMENT POLICY SENSITIVITY TO RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk thai the future cash
flows of a financial inslniment will fluctuate
becauseof changesin market interest rates.
The Group is mainlyexposed to interest rate risk
due to its variable interest rate borrowings. The
interest rate risk arises due to uncertainties about
the future market interest rate of these
investments.

The Group's fixed rate borrowings are carried at
amortised cost, They are therefore not subject to
interest rate risk as defmed in lnd AS 107, since
neither the carrying amount nor the future cash
flows will fluctuate because of a change in market
interest rates.

As at 31 March 2021, variable rate borrowings of
"{ 5,657.99 lakhs (31 March 2020: ~ 7,495.41
lakhs) are exposed to interest rate risk.

The Group's strategyis to mitigateinterest rate risk by ensuringa As an estimation of the approximate impact of the interest rate
proper mix ofborrowings at risk, with respect to fmancial instruments, the Group has
fixed and variable interest rates. calculated the impact ofa 0.25% change iu interest rates.
The Group's interest rate risk is monitored by the management
and treasury team on a monthly basis. Management analyses the 0.25% p.a. decrease in interest on aforesaid Icaus would reduce
Group's interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Various interest expense by ~ 14.14 lnkhs for financial year ended 31
scenarios are simulated, taking into consideration reflnauchtg, March 2021.
renewal of existing positions and alternative financing sources.
Based on these scenarios, the Group calculates the impact on 0.25% p.a. decrease in interest on aforesaid loans would reduce
profit and loss of a defined interest rate Sllm. The scenarios are interest expense by ~ 18,74 jakhs for financial year ended 31
run only for liabilities that represent the major Interest-bearing March 2020.
positions. The simulatioll is done on a monthly basis to verify that
the maximum potential loss is within the limits set by A 0.25% increase in interest rates would have led to an equal but
management. opposite effect.

C) Management of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financialloss to the Groupif a customeror counterpartyto a financial instrumentfailsto meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Group'sreceivables fromcustomers, investments in debt securities, loans givento relatedpattiesandprojectdeposits.

The carryingamountof financial assets represents the maximum creditexposure.

Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by requiring customers to pay advances through progress billings before transfer of ownership, therefore substantially
eliminatingthe Group's credit risk in this respect.

The Group'scredit risk with regard to trade receivable has a high degree of risk diversification, due to the largenumber of projects of varying sizes and
types withnumerousdifferentcustomercategoriesin a largenumberof geographicalmarkets.

Investment in Debt Securities, Loans to Related Parties and Project Deposits
The Group has investments in compulsorily convertible debentures I optionally convertibledebentures, loans to related parties and project deposits. The
settlementof such instruments is linked to the completionof the respectiveunderlying projects.Such FinancialAssets IDe not impairedas on the reporting
date.

Cash and Dank balances
Credit riskfromcashand bank balancesis managedby the Group'streasurydepartmentin accordance with the Group's policy.

The Group's maximumexposureto credit risk as at 31 March2021 and 31 March2020 is the carryingvalueof each class of financial assetsas disclosedin
notes 5(b) to 5(d) and 9(a) to 9(Q.

ff!f--
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(~in Lakhs)

24 Capital Management

Risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through
optimisationof debtand equitybalance.

The Group'srisk management committee reviews the capital structureof the Group on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review,the committeeconsiders
the cost of capitaland the risks associated with each class of capital.

The Group monitors capital using Debt-Equity ratio, which is total debt divided by total equity. For the purposes of the Group's capital management, it
considers the following components of its BalanceSheet to be managedcapital:
Total Equity includesDebentureredemption reserve,Retainedearnings,Sharecapitaland borrowings from parent
Total Debt includes Long term Borrowings, Current maturitiesof long-termborrowings, Currentborrowingsand interestaccruedand due on borrowings,

Long-term Borrowings

Current maturities of long-term debts

Currentborrowings

Total debt

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt (net off cash and bank balances)

Total Eqnity

Net debt to equity ratto (No. ef ttmes)

3J Marc1l2021

19,996.2J

11,294.60

23,365.02

54,655.83

2,166.49

52,489,34

21,308.95

2.46

31 March 2020

29,500.00

10,000,00

24,036.24

63,536.24

1,207.20

62,329,04

32,474.33

1.92

In the longrun, the Group's strategyis to maintaina gearingratio ofless than 2,
In order to achievethis overallobjective,theGroup's capital management, amongstother things,aims to ensure that it meets financial covenantsattachedto
the borrowings that define the capitalstructurerequirements.
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25 Fail' value measurements

Financial Instruments by category

Fall' Value

FVTPL

Can'ying amcunt as Ill'31 Marcil 2021

Amortised cost Total Levell Levell Level3 Total

Current Non- Current
eurrenr

Non- Current
eurreut

Non­
current

Flnllnclnlllsscts

Investments

• in Partnershipfirm 8,095.20 8,OIlS.20 8,095.20 8,095.20

Tradereceivables 9,035.48 9,035.48 9,035.48 9,035.48

Cashand bankbalances 2,166.49 2,166.49 2,166.49 2,166.49

Loans 20,170.20 4,410.74 20,170.20 4,410.74 24,580.94 24,530,94

Otherfinancial assets 15.38 151.11 15.38 151.11 166.49 166.49

Total fiRaDe"" assets 31,387.55 12,657,05 31,387,55 12,657.05 32,676.14 11,368.46 44,044.60

Financlaillabllltics

Borrowings 23,365.02 42,854.26 23,365.02 42,854.26 66,219.28 66,219,28

Trade Payables 4,455.43 405,80 4,455.43 405.80 4,861.23 4,861.23

Otherfinancial liabilities 27,208,22 3,800.55 27,208.22 3,800.55 31,008.77 31,008.77

Total flaanelal liabllltles 55,028.67 47,060.61 55,028.67 47,060,61 1,02,089.28 1,02,089.Z8

Financial Instruments by catcgory

Carrying amount as at 31 March 20Z0 Fair Value

FVTPL Amortised cost Tolal Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total

CIUTeDt NOn- Current Non- Current Non-

current enrreut current

Financial assets

Investments

- in Partnership finn 8,837.05 8,837.05 8,837.05 8,837.05

Trade receivables 8,358.48 8,358.48 8,358.48 8,358.48

Cash and bankbalances 1,207.20 1,207.20 1,207.20 1,207.20

Lo= 22,747.15 3,733.71 22,747.15 3,733.71 26,480.86 26,480.86

Other financialassets 27.05 140.69 27.05 140.69 167.74 167.74

'rcrat financial assets 32,339.88 12,711.45 32,339.88 12,711.45 35,317.91 9,733.42 4S,051.33

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 24,036.24 72,45S.84 24,036.24 72,45S.84 %,492.08 96,492,08

Trade Payables 6,914.67 322.76 6,914.67 322.76 7,237.43 7,237.43

Other financial liabilities 25,SOO.2S 1,541.47 25,5orUS I,S41.47 27,041.72 27,041.72

Total flaauclel liahllltles 56,4S1.l6 74,320.07 56,4S1.16 74,320.07 1,30,771.23 1,30,771.23

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determinIng the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair
value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the
inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An
explanation ofeach level follows underneath the table.

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation
technique, The hierarachy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities (level I measurements) and lowest priority
to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The categories used are as follows:

Levell: Level I hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the-counter derivatives) is detennined
using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. Considering that all
significant inputs required to fair value such instruments are observable, these arc included in level 2.

Level 3: Ifone or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument Is included in level 3.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, inter corporate deposits, current Investments, contractually reimbursable expenses, cash and cash equivalents and
other bank balances, current trade payables and current borrowings are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.
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(~ in Lakhs)

26 Earnings Per Share

Partleulurs

Loss for the year attributableto owners of the Parent - (~ in lakhs)

Number ofequity shares

Weighted averagemunber of equityshares

Weighted averagenumber of Ordararyshares for dilated EPS

Earningsper shareattributableto the ownersof theParent (basic and diluted}. (~)

Face ValuePer Share - (~)

For the year ended
31 March,2021

(3J,IO(jJ6)

80,00,00,000

40,76,71,233

40,76,71,233

(7.63)

to

For the yearended
11 March, 2020

(18,659.75)

40,00,00,000

40,00,00,000

40,00,00,000

(4.66)

10

"The entireloss for the year,othercomprehensive income,total comprehensive income and loss per share is attributable to ownersof theparent.

27 Segment information

Presently, the Groupis engagedonly in the businessof development of propertyandrelatedactivities in India.It has no otherreportable segments in terms of
IndianAccounting Standard(Ind AS) 108on SegmentReportingspecifiedunderSection 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act,2013 (''the 2013Act").
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(e in Lakhs)

28 Contingent liabilities and commitments

(i) Contingent liabilities

(a) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts in respect of suits filed by owners and customers of certain
properties constructed/deveioped by the Group amounting to ~ 121.37 iakhs (As at 31 March 2020 ~ 111.52 lakhs)
(inclusive of interest) against which the Group has made counter claims oH Nillakhs (As at 31 March 2020 ~ Nillakhs).
The Group, based on past experience, does not anticipate any rnaterialliability to devolve on it as a result thereof.

(b) Bank guarantee has been issued for an amount ofRs. 184.741akhs in favour of "Chennai Metropolitan Development
Authority". towards Security Deposit for construction of Building at Kuthambakkam (Santorini), one ofthe project of the
holding company ofthe group, in normal course of business.

(c) Bank Guarantee has been given as Security deposits for issuance of Non-convertible debentures, in favour ofnBSE
Limited" for an amount on 1.95 lakhs (As at 31 March 2020 ~ Nil Iakhs).

(d) Demands raised by tax authorities ~ 18.571akhs (As at 31 March 2020 ~ 18.571akhs)

(il) Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for: Tangible assets - ~ Nil
lakhs (As at 31 March 2020 ~ Nii lakhs) and for Intangible assets - Nil (As at 3 L March 2020 ~ Nil lakhs]

rnt
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29 Employee benefits

A Defined benefit plans:

i Gratuity (funded)

The Parent Companyof the Groupmakesannual contributionsto the Tata ValueHomesLimitedEmployeesGratuitySchemeofKotak Mahindra Life
Insurance Company Limited. The scheme provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on
terminationof employmentas per Company's GratuityScheme.Vestingoccurs on completion of live years.

Balance sheet amount

Particulars

1 April 2020

Currentservicecost

Interestexpensefincome)

Past Servicecos

Total amount reeegnlsed In profit and loss

Remeasuremente

Returnon planassets,excluding amountincluded in interest
expenseqincome)
(Gain) I Loss fromchangein demographic assumptions

(Gain) I Loss fromchange in financial assumptions

Experience (gainsjllosses

Total amount recognised In nthcr comprchcnslve lucome

Employercontributions

Benefitpayments

3J March 2021

Particulars

I April 2019

Currentservice cost

InlerestOXpcnsel(hlcome)

Past ServiceCost

Temlamount recognised in profit and loss

gemeasuremeuts

Rcturnon planassets,excluding amountincluded in interest
expenselfiucome)
(Gain) I Lossfromchangein financial assumptions

Experience (gains)llosses

Total amount recognlscdIn OtilCl' compl-elleDsivc income

Employer contributions

Benefitpayments

3l Mal'Cll2020

(f in Lnkhs)

Gratuity

Present value of Fall' value of pjen assets Net amenut
obligation

136.37 75.83 60,54

29.64 29.64

7.14 4.21 2.93

36.78 4.21 32.57

(353) 353

2.26 2.26

(6.40) (6.40)

(42.93) (42.93)

(47.07) (3.53) (43.54)

126.08 76.51 49,57

('f in Llll{lIs)

Grnlllily

Present value of ["ail'value ofplllll assets Net amount
obli~ation

94.22 72,59 21.63

24.47 24.47

6.31 5.20 1.11

30.78 5.20 2557

(5.98) 4.84 (10.82)

12.14 12.14

12.02 12.02

18.18 4,84 13.34--
(6,81) (6.81)

136.37 75.S3
-----~0-:54-
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29 Employee Benefits (Continued)

A Defined benefit plans: (Continued)

The net liabilitydisclosed above relates to funded and unfundedplans are as follows:
(t In Lakhs)

Parliculllrs

31 Mareh 2021

Presentvalueof fundedobligations

Fairvalueof planassets

Deficit

31 Mllreh 2020

Presentvalueoffuncledobligations

Pairvalueof planassets

Deficit

Major category of plan assets (01" Gratuity fund are as follows:

The companyhas invested entireamount of plan assets in insurance fund.

Gratuity

126.08

76.51

49.57

136.37

15,83

60.54

Insurer Managed Fund Detailed Pattern

Fundsmanaged by Insurer

Asa!
31 March 2021

100.00%

100,00%

% Invested

"""31 March202Q

[00.00%

100.00%

Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number ofrisks, the most significant ofwhich are detailed below:

Asset volatility

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a
deficit. Most of the plan asset investments is in fixed income securities with high grades and in government securities. These are subject to interest
rate risk and the fund manages interest rate risk with derivatives to minimise risk to an acceptable level.

Changes in bond yields

A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the plans' bond holdings.

Life expectancy
The pension and medical plan obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in life expectancy will result in an increase in
the plans' liabilities. This is particularly significant where inflationary increases result in higher sensitivity to changes in life expectancy.

Salary Risk
The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in salary of
the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

The Company ensures that the investment positions are managed within an asset-liability matching (ALM) framework that has been developed to
achieve long-term investments that arc in line with the obligations under the employee benefit plans. Within this framework, the Company's ALM
objective is to match assets to the benefit obligations by investing in long-term fixed interest securities with maturities that match the benefit payments
as they fall due and in the appropriate currency.
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29 Employee Benefits (Continued)

A Defined benefit plans: (Continued)

Defined benefit Liability and employer contribution

Expected contributionto post employmentbenefit plans for the year to be ended on 31 March2022 are ~ 48.81 lakhs

The weightedaveragedurationof the defined benefit obligation is 6 years(2020- 4 years)
____________________________-'<f in Lnklls)

Maturity annlyslsef Prejected benefit obligation: from the fuml:

Gratuity

31 Marth 2021 31 March2020

Ist following year

2nd following year

3rd fullowing year

4th following year

5th following year

Sumofyenrs 6 to 10

Morethan 10years

14.52

14.74

19.13

12.32

11.13

44.92

42.75

24.47

21.60

20.03

20.62

17.33

42,52

24.27

B Defined contribution plans:
(f in Lal(hs

Benefit (Contribution to)

Provident Fund

Superannuation Fund

For tile veee Endetl
31 Mlln:h 2021

36.78

1.86

For the Year Ended
31 March2020

52.16

2.56

'rerat 38.64 54.72

(i) Superannuation fund

The company has superannuation scheme administrated by UC, in which the company contributes 15% on basic salary. The payments to defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme for eligible employees in the form of superannuation fund are charged as an expense as they fall due. Such
benefits are classified as DefinedContribution Schemesas the Companydoes not carryany furtherobligations,apart from the contributionsmade.

(ii) Provident fund

The Companyalso has certain defined benefit plans. Contributions are made at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The Company is
liable for contributionsand any deficiency compared to interest computed based on the rate of interest declared by the Central Governmentunder the
Employees' Provident FundScheme, 1952 and recognises,if any, as an expensein the year it is determined.

The Company's contributionspaid / payable during the year towards Provident Fund and SuperannuationFund are charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss or debited to the project costs every year, These funds and the schemes thereunder are recognised by the Income-tax authorities and
administeredby trusts.

C Compensated absences

The leave obligationscover the Company's liability for sick and earned leave.111e leave obligation is computed by actuarywho gives a bifurcationfor
current and non-current.

a) Changes in Present Value of Obligation:
(f in Lakhs)

Particulars Compensated absences

Fol' tile YearEnded For the Year Ended
31 March 2021 31 MElfCh2020

Present Value of Obligation as at me beginning

Interest Cost

Service Cost

Benefits Paid

Actuarial (Gain)! Losson obligations

Past Service Cost

103.83

<76

20.23

(5.31)

(34.57)

111.92

g.02

77.99

(31.40)

10.89

(73.59)

103.8389.94
l'resentVaIUl,lllfObligation as at tlleelld -======~~:..::=======~~--------
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b) Bifurcation of Present Value of Obllgetlcn as at the end ofthc year:
(t in Lakhs)

PRI't1culnrs Compensated absences

FOI'tile Year Ended For the Year Ended
31 Mm'eli 2021 31 March2020

Currentliability

Non-Curreut Iiebility

Present Value or Obligation as lit the end

c) Expenses Recognised during the year:

89.94

89.94

103.83

103.83

(f ill Lakhs)

Particulars Compensated absences

110l' tile Year-Enderl For the YearEnded
31 March20I1 31 March2020

InterestCost

ServiceCosl

Actuarial Loss/(Oain)recognised

PastServiceCost

ExpensesRecogniseddudng the year

D Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity

The significant actuarial assumptions for were as follows:

Particulars

Gratuity

5.76

20.23

(34.51)

(8.58)

Au'
31 Marcll2021

8.02

77.99

10,89

(73.59)

23.31

As at
31 Mareh2020

Discount rate

Rate of returnon planassets

Salarygrowthrate

Retirement age

MortalityRate

Withdrawal Rates

Maximum gratuitypayableper person

Compensated absences

DiscountingRate

Retirement Age

FutureSalaryRise

Mortality Table

Withdrawal Rates

5.90%

6.00%

60 years

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (:W12-14)

15.00%

No limit in case of EmployeesJoilled
npto 31 MUI'\:h2019.

Maxlmum as.20 Lakh In case of Employeesjoined
after 31 March 2019.

5.90%

60 years

6.00%

Indian Assured Lives MOl'tallty (2012-14)

15.00%

5.55%

7.00%

60yellls

Indian Assured LivesMortality(2012-14)

21.50%

No limitincase of Employees joined
upto 31 March2019.

Maximum Rs.20 Lakhin caseof Employees joined
after31 March2019.

555%

60 years

7.00%

IndianAssuredLivesMortality(2012-14)

2UO%

Significant actuarial assumption for the determination of defined benefit obligation are rote of discounting, rate of salary increase and rate of employee
turnover. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the
end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

(f in Laklls)

Gratuity

Particulars 31 March 2021 3( March2020

Projectedbenefit obligation on current assumptions

Deltaeffectof+1 % changeInrate of discounting

Deltaeffectof -I% changein rateof discounting

Deltaeffect of+ 1% changein rete of salary increase

Delta effect or -1% change in rate of salaryincrease

Deltaeffectof +1% changein rateof employee turnover

Deltaeffectof -1% changein rate of employee turnover

Deltaeffect of+10% changein rate of motality

Deltaeffi:ct of" 10% changeIn rate of'motality

107.54 128.75

(5.89) (5.61)

6.54 6.10

6.47 5.95

(5.94) (559)

(0.36) (0.76)

0.37 0.79

0.00 (0.01)

0.00 om

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above
sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the Balance Sheet.

~
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30 Related Party Transactions

As per Indian Accounting Standard on "Related PartyDisclosures" (Ind AS~24) specified underSection 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
relevant provisions of theCompanies Act,2013("the2013Act")are as follows:

30.1 List of Related Parties and Relationships

Sr. No. Relnted Pal'ly

Ultimate Holding Company

Tala Sons PrivateLimited

IIoldillg Compnny

Tate HousingDevelopment Company Limited

Subsidiary COlnpllnie.,

SmartValuesHomes (Boisar)PrivateLimited

lILT ResidencyPrivateLimited

North BombayRealEstatePrivate Limited

4 FellowSubsidiarycompanieswith whomtransactions are entered

Tala AlGGeneral Insurance Company Limited

Tata CcnsultencyServicesLimited

InfinitiRetailLimited

Ecofhst ServicesLimited

Tam Capital ForexLimited

TI-IDe ManagementServicesLimited

Teta Communications Limited

TataTeleservicee Limited

Tata Teleservices(Maharashtra)Limited

Associates Company wlth whom transactions are entered

Titan CompanyLimited

Trent Limited

SynergizersSustainableFoundation

ConneqtBusinessSolutionsLimited

6 Joint Venture - Companies with whom treesaeucns arc entered
HL PromotersPrivateLimited

SmartValuesHomes{Pecnya Project) Private Limited

LandkartBuildersPrivateLimited(w.e.f. 18 July 2019)

Fellow Joint venture- Companies with wlimn transadimls are entered

Ardent PropertiesPrivateLimited

Joinl Venture- Limited Liability Pnrtncrship witll whom tninslidions lire entered

Arvindand SmallValueHomesLLP

SmartValuesHomes(NewProject) LLP

9 Key Management Persanuel

Bhuvesh Madeka - ChiefExecutiveOfficer

Nipun Aggarwal, Director

RenuBasu, Director

KamleshMansukhlal Parekh,Director(w.e.f 10November2020 }

SandhyaShaileshKudtarkar,Director (w.e.f. 10November2020 )
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30.3 Transactions and balances with related parties:

1 Key Management' Personnel

a. Transactions
~ in Laklas)

31 Marcil 2021 31 March 2020Particulars

Others

DirectorsSittingFees

Total----
3.20

3.20

1.60

1.60

2 Related Parties
The Group's materialrelated party transactions and outstanding balancesare with its joint-ventures with whom the Group routinely
enters into transactions in theordinary course of business.

a. Transactions
('f in LaldlS)

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(I) EXPENSES

Receiving of Services

Fellow subsi.diaries

Tata Communications Limited

Certification Fees

Fellow subsidlaries

EcoflrstServicesLimited

Insurance Premium IJaid

Fellow subshlfarles

Tata AlC General Insurance Company Limited

Repairs and Maintenance - Others

Fellow subsldiarlcs

Tala Consultancy Services Limited

THDC Management Services Limited

Administrative and Other EJ(peuses

Fellow subsidiaries

Tata 'Icleservlces Limited

TamTelcserviccs (Maharashtra) Limited

FellowAssociates

TitanCompanyLimited

Seiling Expenses

Fellow Associatr.a

Conneqt Business Solutions Limited

(II) INCOME

Sale of Services

Joint ventures

SmartVajuesHomes[Peenya Project) Private Limited

HL Promoters Private Limited

9.19

6.57

27.52

19.71

59.27

6.66

3.10

39.25

32.93

152.97

9:76

3.85

32.40

8.06

262.24

2.67

2.50

5.04

44.35

396.05

93.13

--"---------"-------
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30.3 Transactions and balances with related parties:

(III) REIMBURSEMENT TRANSACTIONS

Expenses incurred on behalf of Related Party

Joint ventures

HI. Promoters Private Limited

SmartValue Homcs(New Project) LLP

Expenses incurred by Related Parly 011 our hchnlf

Holding Company

Tara Housing Development Company Limited

Joint ventures

Smart Values Homes (Peenya Project) PrivateLimited

(IV) OTHER INCOME

Interest Income on Loan and Inter Corpernte l)ellosits

Fellow subsldtm-les

THOC Management Services Ltd

Joint ventures

LandKart Builders PrivateLimited

HI. Promoters Private Limited

Interest on Project Management Pees

Joint ventures

Smart Values Homes (Peeuya Project) Private Limited

Claim Reeelved

Fellow subsidinl'ies

TataAlG GeneralInsurance Company Limited-

(V) FINANCE COSTS

Interest Expense on Inter Cerpcrarc Dcpcslrs

Holding Company

Tatn Housing Development ComPIIJlY Limited

Associate Company

Titan Company Limited

(VI) INVESTMENTS AND GUARANTEES

Investment made

Joint ventures

Smart Values Homes (New Project) LLP

Laud Kart Builders Private Limited

Associates

SynergizersSustainable Foundation

67.01

25.35

2.63

608.74

309.40

0.78

4,175.33

278.42

27.00

5.75

0.16

0.13

31.64

2.70

508.34

1,974.92

284.13

9.00

3,745.99

1.73

1.04

0.02

._-----------------_._----
b. Outstanding Balances arising from sale/purchase of goods and services:

------------------p",C,".c"c,.;-.-,,-,--·..··------------,--
(f in Lakhs)

31 March 2021 31 Marc!t2020

(A) ASSETS

Outstanding Receivables

Holding Company

Tala Housing Development Company Limited

,loint ventures

HL Promoters PrivateLimited

Fellow subsidiaries

THDC Management. Services Limited

Joint ventures

Arvindand Smart Value Homes LLP

3,904.18

1.95

96.35

0.21

3,529.61

1.95

96.35
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30.3 Transactions and balances with related parties:

LandKart Builders Private Limited

Smart Values Homes (Peenya Project) Private Limited

Interest accrued

Jefnt venrures

Smart Value Homes(New Project) LLP

Investment on Current Capital Contribution

Joint ventures

Smart Value Homes(New Project) LLl'

170.96

4,679.56

1,005.27

2,834.94

706.03

4,255.30

1,005.27

Deposit

Fellow subsldlaries

'rete 'leleservicesLtd

Tatn Teleservices (Maharashlra) Ltd

Advances

Fdlow subsidiaries

Smart Value Homes (Peenya Project) Pvt Ltd

Joint ventures

Smart Value Homes (Peenya Project) Pvt Ltd

Fellow Joint ventures

Titan Company Limited

0,04 0,04

0.03 0,03

18.54 42.06

0.13

2.06 4.07

(B)PAYABLES

Interest Accrued but not due

Holding Company

Tate Housing Development Company Limited 3,78'1.55 4,033.38

Outstanding Payable

Holding Company

Tara Housing Development Company Limited

Fellow subsidiaries

Tatu AIO General Insurance Company Limited

Tate Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited

Tata Teleservices Limited

THDe Management Services Limited

Fellow Associates

Conneqt Business Solution Limited

TitanCompany Limited

96.05 50.91

0.29 2.02

0.72 0.27

0.04 0.11

1.19 37.64

9.23 14.39

0.68

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

3 Loans to I from related parties
leo given
Particula"·''''------------

Loans to {fellowsubsidiaries (rUDe Management Services Limited)

lIeginning of the year

Loanadvanced

Loan repayment received

Interest charged (net ofTDS)

Eud of the year

33.66

(36.10)

2.44

31.10

2.56

33.66
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30.3 Transactlons and balances with related parties:

ICD given
31 March2020

3,733.71

113.94

31 Mal'ch 2021

594.33

4,439.97

(1,761.85)

563.09 461.26
··~--4.-4io:74;---~3.~73"'3.71

Particulars

Loans to Joint Venture (LllndKal't Buildel'S Private Limited)

Beginning of the year

Loan advanced

Loanrepayment received

Interest charged (net oCIDS)

End of the year

leD given
Particulars

Loans to Joint Ventnre (HI. Promoters Private Limited)

Beginning of the year

Loan advanced

End of the year

31 March 2021

18,799.86

3,278.36

22,0'18.22

31 March 2020

1l,457.86

7,342.00

18,799.86

3J March 202t 31 March2020

3,912.27 2,134.84

1,777.43
---------------

3,912.27 3,912.27
--------------------------

Interest 011 ICD given
Particulars

Interest accrued on Loans to Joint Venture (HI. Promoters Private Limited)

Beginning of the year

Interest charged (net oflUS)

Eud of the year
----

5,000.00

(5,000.00)
------------1

--------------_._._----_._--_.._---
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

leD from fellow associates
Particulars

Loena fl'om Fellow Assoetates (Titan COIDIIanyLtd.)

Beginning of the year

Loan received

Loenrepeyrucnts made

End of the year

leD from Holding Company
Particulars

Loans from Holding Company {Tate Housing Devdolnnellt Company Limited)

Ueghllling of the year

Loan received

Loan repaymentsmade

End of the year

J 1 March 2021

42,955.84

26,007.84

(46,105.63)

22,858.05

3\ March 2020

32,336.84

47,499.00

(36,880.00)

42,955.84
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(~ in Lakhs)

31 Details of current borrowings:

Particulars

Leans repayable on demand from banks

S - STL 1 (referNote 1 below)

S - STL 2 (referNote 2 below)

As at

31 Mllrch ann

20,365.02

3,000.00

23,365.02

Asat
31 March2020

21,036.24

3,000.00

24,036.24

Note
1 Loans repayable on demand from a bank availed by a Parent (S-STL 1) arc secured by Parent's mortgage of Land, Building (both present & future) situated at

Kuthambakkam, Taluka Poonamallee and District Thiruvallur and at Kezhakottiayur Village, Tal Chengapattu, Dis! M Kancheepnram in the State of Tamil Nadu.
Hypothecation charge on Parent's construction work-in-progress, construction materials, book debts, Current assets, both present and future and money receivable of
Project at Kutharnbakkam and Mambakkam in the State of Tamil Nadu.

2 loans repayable on demand from a bank availed by a Subsidiary (S-STL 2) are secured against equitable mortgage of Land bearing S. No. 333,334/1, Village
Panchali, Tal & District Palghar, Mehareehtra and hypothecation ofStocks and receivables of the subsidiary.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
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31a Details of Long-term borrowings:

As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Leug-rerm Current Long-term Current
maturities of maturities 0

long-term long-term

debts debts

Secured- at emornseu cost:

Working capital term loan 496.21 1,294.60

Unsecured:

Debentures - Non-Convertible Redeemable

1,000,8.35% Debentures of~ 1,000,000 each 10,000.00

(Due forredemptionon 15June 2020)

1,000,8.40% Debentures of~ 1,000,000 each 10,000.00 10,000,00

(Due for redemptionon 30 April 2021)

1,950,7.20% Debentures of~ 1,000,000 each 19,500.00 19,500.00

(Original Interestratewas 9.35%. It was re-setted@7.20%w.e.f. 26
March2021.)
(Due for redemptionon 23 September2022)

Intel' corporate deposits

Inter Corporate Deposit from related party (refer note 30.2) 22,803.05 42,955.84

42,799.26 11,294.60 72,455.84 10,000.00



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021

32 Acquisition of a subsidiary
On 21 May 2021, Parent Companyofthe Group acquiredadditional49% share capitalof Smart ValueHomes(PeenyaProject)
Private Limited.As a result, it has became wholly owned subsidiarycompanyof Parent of the Group.

A Consideration

IConsideration

B Indicative Purchase Price Allocation

Rs. in Lakbs

3,490 I

Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Amount Amount

a Value of identified assets acquired
I Property, plant and equipments -

ii Other non-current assets-IncomeTax assets 250

iii Current Assets
-Cashand cashequivalents 170
-Tradereceivables 200
-Inventories 31,400
-Othercurrentassets 1,570 33,340

Total Value of identified Assets acquired (a) 33,590

b Value of Liabilities assumed
i CurrentLiabilities

-Provisions 330
-Tradepayables 6,040
ROther current liabilities 2,890
-Other financial liabilities 790
-IncomcTax liabilities 160
-DeferredTax 1,080 11,290

ii Non-CurrentLiabilities
-Borrowings 21,760
-Provisions - 21,760

Total value of liabilities assumed (b) 33,050

c Net Assets (n-b) 540



Measurement affair values
The valuation techniques used for measuring the fair values of material assets acquiredand liabilitiesassumedwere as follows:

Assets considered
Property,Plant and
Equipment ("PPE")

Inventory

Net Working
Capital other than
Inventory(i.e.,
Debtors and other
current assets/
liabilities)

Project Borrowings

Valuation Method
Book Value

Income Method
(Under the Income Method,the valuation is
based on expected cash flow from sale of
asset as reduced by the cost incurred for
bringing such asset into saleable condition).

Book Value

Book Value

Remarks
Companydoes not have any significant material PPE.
Therefore, the net book value of the PPE as on :;lst
March, 2021, have been consideredto be the PPE.

Inventoryof Companyare the key to the business and
significantamount of business value is attributable to
value of the inventory.Therefore, the same have been
valuedby using IncomeMethod.

As per management, the currentmarket price of the
debtors, creditorsand other current assets/liabilities
would approximatethe book values. Hence the same has
been considered at book values as at theValuation Date,
i.e. 31 March 2021.

As per management, the fair value of the loan would
approximate the book value as on 31 March 2021

Goodwill
Goodwill arising from the acquisition has been recognisedas follows

Consideration

Net Assetstaken over at fair value on the valuation date

Goodwill

Note
A

c

(A - c)

Rs. in Lakhs
Amount

3,490

540

2,950
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33 Assets pledged as Security

The carrying amounts of financialandnon-financial assetspledgedas security for non-current andcurrentborrowingsare disclosed
below:

Particulars

(A) Current

Refer
Note

As at
31 March 2021

Asat l
31 March2020

Financial assets

Elrst charge

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Other financialassets

Non-financial assets

First charge

Inventories

Total current assets pledged as security

(8) Non-current

9(a) 9,035.48 8,358,48

9(b) 1,404.81 509.83

9(d) 15.38 27.05

54,245.55 75,324.82

64,701.22 &4,220.18

Non financial assets

Property, plantand equipment

Total non-currents assets pledged as secUlity

Total assets pledged as security

32.44

32.44

64,733.66

41.04

41.04

84,261.22
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34 For Disclosures mandated by Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013,by way of additional information, refer below:

a) As at and for the year elided 31 March 2lJ21

Name of the cnmy

I
As at

I
For the year ended

I
For the year cllded I For Iheyear ended

31 March 2021 Jl Mareh 2021 J I MIIl'eh 2021 31 March 2021

Net assets Share In Profit I (Ioss) Share In Other Sllafc In total
Comprehensive IncomeI (IllS/;) Comprehensive Income!(lllIIS)

As%o[ Amount As%of Amount As % olOther Amount As % ollolal Amount
consolidated (f Inlnkhs) consolltlaletl (filllllkhs) Comprehensive (f illlakl15) comprehellllve (lIn laldl!)

net assets prontor loss Income Illcnme!(loss)

Parent 373.13 27,104.32 43.65 (14,205.71) ll2.89 43.53 43.57 (14,162.18)

Subsidiaries

Indian

Smart Value Homes (Bolsar) PrivateLimited (57.67) (4,189.55) 6.11 (1,988.63) (12.89) (4.97) 6.13 (1,993.60)

HLT ResidencyPrivate Limited (2IS.45) (IS,650.69) 50.24 (16,349.37) 50.30 (16,349.37)

North Bombay Real Estate PrivateLimited -
TOTAL 100.00 7,264.08 100.00 (32,543.71) 100.00 38,56 (32,505,15)

a) Adjustments arising out of consolidation (1,620.49) 35,139.16 (31.93) 35,107.23

b) Joint Ventures (as ner equity method)

Indian

Arvind and Smart ValueHomes LLP 5,970.44 (68.50) (68.50)

HL Promoters PrivateLimited (8,249.41) 320.28 7.14 327.42

Smart Value Homes (New PfOject) LLP 2,124,76 (699.72) (699.72)

Smart Value Homes (PeenyaProject}PrivateLimited (2,1l5.40) (755.72) (755.72)

Landkart BuildersPrivate Limited (3,37H8) (1,391.79) (13.77) (1,4nS.S6)



Tata Value Homes Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
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(f in Lakhs)

34 For Disclosures mandated by Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013, by way of additional information, refer below:

b) As at nnd for tje year ended 31 March 2020

Name orthe enilly I As at I For the Yellr ended I For theyearended I For tileYellr ended
31 March2020 31 March 2020 31 Mardi 2020 31 March202{}

Net assets Slmre In Proll! I (loss) Share III Other Share In totat
Comprclltll.'llve IncomeI (loss) ComprehensivelucumeJ(loss)

As%ol Amount As%of Amount As % orOlher Amount As % alloti'll Amllunl
consoUdalednet (f in lokhs) consoUdllted (~in laklls) Comprehensive (~ inlRl,hs) comprehensive (fin lakhs)

assets prontor rcss Income Income!(loss)

Parent (548.81) 1,266.50 94,38 (10,859.30) 118.15 (10.84) W,40 (10,870.14)

Sllbslillarlcs

Indian
SmartValuoHomes(Doism)PrivateLimited 951.57 (2,195.95) 4.46 (513.42) (18.15) 1.67 4,44 (511.76)

HLT Residency PrivateLimited (302,76) 698.68 l.IS (132.80) US (132.80)

North BombayRealEstatePrivateLimited

TOTAL 100.00 (230.77) 100.00 (11,505.52) 100.00 (9.17) 100,00 (11,SI4,70)

a) Adjustments arising cut ofoo!lSolidatloll 1,292,66 14,1l8.92 6.17 14,125,10

bl Jclnt Ventures (as ner equity methgd)

Indian

Arvindand SmartValueHomesLLP 6,039.09 (68,50) (68,50)

HL PromotersPrivateLimited (8,490,27) 322.32 322,32

SmartValueHomes(NewPrCljccl) ILl' 2,797,96 (699,72) (699.72)

Smart ValueHomes(PeenyaProject)Private Limited 221.08 (775,71) 3.00 (772.71)
Landkart BuildersPrivateLimited (1,629.75) (1,391,79) (1,391.79)

'---
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35 Interests in other entities

(a) Subsidiaries

The group's subsidiaries at 31 March2021 are set out below. Unless otherwisestated, they have share capitalconsisting solely of equityshares thatare helddirectlyby the
group. The countryof incorporation or registration is also theirprincipalplaceof business.

Name of entity l'laeeof buslnessl
Countryor

Incorporatlon

Ownership Interest held by tile group Ownership Interest held by the 110n­
controlling Interest

Principal
aetlvUles

Smart ValueHomes (Boisar) PrivateLimited

HLTResidency PrivateLimited

NorthBombayReal EstatePrivateLimited

India

India

India

31 March 2021

%

100

100

100

31 Marth 2020

%

100

100

100

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

% %

Realestate& alliedactivities

Realestate& alliedacliviliee

Realestate& alliedactivities

(b) Interests in Joint Ventures

Set out beloware thejoint ventureof the Groupas at 3l March,2021 which, in the opinionof the management <Irematerial to the Group.The entities listedbelow haveshare
capitalconsisting solelyof equityshareswhichare helddirectlyby the Group.The countryof incorporation is also theirprinciple place of business andproportion of ownership
interestis the same as theproportion of votingrights held.

Nnme or entity

Smart ValueHomes (Peenyaproject)PrivateLimited

"L PromotersPrivateLimited

Arvindand Smart Value HomesLLP

Smart Value Homes(New Projcct) lLP

LandkartBuildersPvt.Ltd. (w_e.f. 18 July2019)

Platt of business! % of ownership Relationship Accounting Carrying amount ('t' 111101111,)
tountryof Interest method 31 Man:h 2021 31 March2020

Incorporallon 31 Man:h 2021

India 51.00% Joint Venture Equity (2,115.40) 221.08

India 51.00% Joint veetnre Equity (8,249.41) (8,490.27)

India 50.00% Joint Venture Equity 5,970.44 6.039.09

Irnlia 51.00% Joint venture Equity 2,124.76 2,797.96

India 51.00% JointVenture EquilY (3,373.98) (1,629.75)

(1) Commitments and conttugeat liabilities In respect of jolnt ventures

31 Moreh 2021 31 Marcil2020

Commitments

Commitments(shareofille Group)

Comingentliebtlities

Contlngentllabilities (shareof the Group)

Total commitments and eoatlngeet IInhllllles

33.92

33.92

31.82

31.82
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35 Interests in other entities (Continued)

(b) Interests in Joint Ventures (Colltil1l,ed)

(Ii) Summarised financial Information for joint ventures

The tablesbelowprovidesummarised financial information for thosejoint ventures that are material to the Group.The information disclosed reflects the amounts presentedin
thefinancial statements of the relevant joint venturesand not the Parent's share of these amounts. Theyhavebeenamendedto reflectadjustments madeby theentitywhenusing
the equitymethod, including fairvalueadjustments madeat thetimeof acquisition andmodifications for differences in accounting policies.

Divi<1end

l'ota[

Profit!

Other

Total I

Interest

D'P"
jnteres

Incom

Summ

Summarl$ell balance sheet Arvlud and Smart Valne Humes LU' Smarl Value Homes (Nell'Projeef) HL I'romoters Private Limited Smart Value Homes (Peenya
LLP Project) Private Llmlted

31 Marcil 2021 31 March2020 31 Marcil 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March2020

Current assets

Cash & cashequivalents 15.00 33.07 1.00 0.35 514.00 390.D7 165.10 37.80

Other assets 12,flOO.OO 12.851.91 2,591.00 3.942.30 19,294.00 32,343.11 2fl,900.70 29.345.00

Total current assets 12,flI5.00 [2.890.98 2,59fl.00 3.942.65 19,fl08.00 32.733.B4 29,065.80 29,382.80

Totailion-eurreni assets flO.OO 204.32 0.01 39.00 34.72 256.40 248.00

Current liabilities

Finanoialliabilkies(excludingtrade payebles) 39.00 40.00 1,034.74 1,034.74 65.00 60.43 22.514.30 21,119.00

Other Liabilities 279.00 329.00 26.84 25.56 7,433.01 22,399.86 9,420.70 9,928.00

Total eurrent Ilabllltles 31fl.00 369.00 1,061.58 1,060.30 7,498.01 22,460.29 31,935.00 31,047.00

NOll-current Ilablllties

Financialliabilities(excludingtrade paynbles) 26,248.00 24,974.34 38.00 38.10

Other Liabilities 1.00 38.00 52.[4 349.30 350.90

Totatnon-carrenr lIablllties 1.00 26,286.00 25,026.48 38730 389.00

Net assets 12,577.00 12,725.30 1,536.42 2,882.36 (13,937.01) (14,718.21) (3,000.10) (1,805.20)

--
-r-r-r-'-

Reelillclllathm to carrying amounts Arvlnd and Smart Valne Hllmes LLP Smart Value Homes (Nell'Project) HI. Promoters Private Limited Smart Value Homes (Pecnya
LLP Project) Private Llmltcd

31 March 2021 31 Mnrch2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 Marcli 2021 31 March2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Opening net assets 12,725.30 12,753.flI 2,8fl2.36 2,882.70 (14,7Ifl.2I) (5,582.21) (1,805.20) 6,389.20

Profit/floss) fbr theyear (137.30) (28.fl5) (1,372.94) (2.07) 767.63 (9,129.09) (1,194.90) (8,187.70)

Ind AS 115impact(net oftax) (H.OO)

Capital infusedI (withdrawn)during theyear 27.00 1.73

Other comprehensiveincome ". 13.57 (6.91) (6.70)

Closing net assets 12,577.00 12,725.30 1.536.42 2,882.36 (13,937.(1) (l4,718,21) (3,000.10) (1,805.20)

Group's share in % 50% 50% 51% 51% 51% 51% 51% 51%

Group's share 6,294.00 6,362.65 783.76 [,470.00 (1,107.88) (7,506.29) (1.530.05) (921.1[)

Additionalinvestment by the Group 1,341.00 1,327.96

ConsolidationEiiiminaliollS (323.56) (323.56) (1,141.53) (983.98) (585.35) 1,142.19

Carrying amlllmt 5,970.44 6,039.09 2,124.76 2,797.96 (8,249.41) (8,490.21) (2,115.40) 221.08

arlsed statement ef profit aUllloss Arvlml and Smart Valne Domes LLP SOlari Value Homes (NewProjed) DL Promoters Private LImited Smart Value Homes (Peenya
LLP Project) Private t.lmlted

31 March 2021 3I March 2020 31 Mardi 2021 31 March2020 31 Mardi 2021 31 Mareh2020 31 March 2021 31 March2020

ncome 75.GG 377.94 12,177.GO 49.GO 3,lG4.00 6,937.40

incomc 3.0G 5.54 48.00 21.80

dation andamortisation 1.00 0.85 4.00 2.26 3.00 1.60

t expense 5.00 0.82 1,135.00 541.00

e tax expensel(credit) H5.00 (14.95) 0.66 2.00 (1.35) 492.20

(Loss) for theyeer (137.30) (28.85) (1,372.94) (2.07) 767.63 (9,129.09) (1,194.90) (8,[87.70)

comprehensive incomel(Loss) 0.34 13.57 (6.91) (6.70)

comprehensive Ineome/(Lllss) (137.30) (28.51) (1,372.94) (2.07) 781.20 (9,136.00) (1,194.90) (8,194.40)

s received
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35 Interests In other entitles (Contillued)

(b) Interests in Joint Ventures (Contillned)

(ii) Summarised nnanetat tmormenon for [otnt ventures

The tables below provide summarisedfinancial informationfor those joint ventures that arc material 10the Group.
The infonnationdisclosedreflects the amountspresented in the financialstatementscf'the relevantjoint venturesand
not the Parent's share of 1110so amounts. They have been amended to reflect adjustments made by the entity when
using the equity method, including Iair value adjustments made at the time of acquisition and modifications for
differences in accounting policies.

SUnimllrill~d bnlaa(e sheel Laodkart Builders PVI.Ltd

31 Marcil 2021 31 MarelI211!0

Cummt assels

Cash& coshllIui",deJlts 1,529.00 4'}O,SI

Otherassets 53,866.00 42,540.19

TOIaI curl'l.'ntals«s 55,395.00 43,031.00

l'otaIIlOll-tU~nt aSief! 185.00 155.00

Current liabilities

Financlnliiahlllll.. (excluding tradepayablcs) 3,863.00 2,244.00

Oll'erLiabiHt;ea 7,193.00 6,194.00

Tntul currellllinblUlics 11,656.00 8,438.00

Non-eon'cnt liabllltlc.s

Fillancialliabilitiea (excluding tradepuJlllbl....) 26,108.00 22,340.00

OtherLiabilities 22,874.00 15,310.00

Tolal nen-eurrenr liabilities 49,582.00 37,650.00

Net assets (5,658.00) (2.902.00)

Recnnelilatlou10csrrylng amounts Landkart Builders Pvl. Lid

31 Mare112021 31 Marth 2020

Opeuingnet IlSset. (2,902.00) (677.00)

Profit/(Loss) for tbeyear (2,729.00) (2,513.00)

CapitalinfusedI (witlldrawll) (luring IlLe year 288.00

OtheL' mrnprel,eosi"" Income {27.01l)

ClosingIidasseis (5,658.011) (2,902.00)

Group'sshare in % 51% 51%

Group'sshare (2,887.98) (1,144.79)

Addilional investmcnl by lheGroup 1.04

G<.>odwlll (486.00) (4&6.00)

Carrying amounl (3,373.98) (1,629.75)

-
Summarised statement ofprolltand loss Landkart lhilldcrs 1'1'1. Lid

JIMa.'Ch2021 31 Marth2020

TOlallncome n.oo
Interestincome 1.00 11.00

Depreciation audamortisation 15.110 14.00

Interestexpense 94.00 42.00

Incometax cxpensa/(ercrlit) 232.00

Profit/(Loss) for tbeyenr (2,729.00) (2,513.00)

OtherCOlnprehcnsive income/CLoss) (27.00)

Total comprcilCllSlvo illcomcl(Loss) (2,756.00) (2,513.00)

Dividcm1s received
-
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36 Loans and Investments under Section 186of the Act

The details of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Act read with the Companies (Meetings of Boardand its Powers) Rules, 2014
are as follows:

A. Details of Investments made by the Omup as on 31 Much 2021 (IncludlnRinvestments mode in the previous year)

Investment in equity shares

Nameof the cnllty

(I) In joint ventu"Cs

SmartValueHumes(Peenya project)PrivateLimited

HL PfQlI1O)!ers Private Limited

LandkartBuildersPrivateLimited

(II)In Assoclatc

Synergizers Sustainable FOUllda!i(lll

InvestmentIn Other Non-currentInvestments

Asnt
31 MQ.'eh2021

0.02

0.02

Dllrlng the yellf

(221.08)

(22l.118)

A!lRI

31March 2020

221.08

0.02

221.10

Nam~ oft ..e ~ntlly

In Jointventures

ArvindandSttlllrt ValueHomes LLP
SmartValueHomes NewProjeclLLP

B. Detailserteans atvenby Groupare as follows:

Asat During tile year Aent
31 Marcb2021 31 Marcil 2020

5,970.44 (68.65) 6,039.09

Z.124.76 (673.2(1) 2,797.96

8,695.20 (741.S5) 8,837.(15

Nameof the enllty (ref~l' Note)

THDCManngOOIcut ServicesPrivate Limited

Landkarl Builders PrivateLimited

Rate of Inter~s1 (p ....)

9.0ew.
15.00%

As at Lcnn glv~n llnrllig tlte 1.0111Ir~ralld~d durIng Asat
31 March 2021 year thcy~al' n Mareb 2020

(30.00) 30.00

3,379.07 113.94 3,265.13

3,379.07 113.94 (30.00) 3,295.13

Note:

Purpose of utilization ofloan given to theentities- General purpose loan
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37 Micro. Small and Medium Enterorises
Based on the information available with the Group, the balance due to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 is ~ Nil (31 March 2020 : ~ Nil) and no interest has been paid or is payable during the year under the terms of tile MSMED
Act, 2006. The information provided by the Group has been relied uponby the auditors.

Particulars

a. Amountspayableto suppliersunderMSMED(suppliers)as on J I March2021

Principal

Interestdue thereon

b. Payments made to suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year

Principal

Interestdue thereon

c. Amountof interestdue and payablefor delay in payment(whichhave been paid but beyond the appointedday duringthe year)
but without addingthe interestunderMSMED

d. Amountof interestaccruedlindremainingunpaidas on 31 March2021

e. Amountof interestremainingdue and payableto suppliersdisallowableas deductibleexpenditureunder IncomeTax ACI, 1961

As at

31 Mnrch 2021

As a!

31 March 2020

38 The Company is actively monitoring the impact ofthe global health pandemicon its financial condition, liquidity, operations,suppliers, industry,and workforce,
The operations of the Companywere impacted due to the slowdown of workat its project sites following the nationwide lockdownby the Governmentof Indiaon
23 March 2020. The various sites were impacted due to the lockdown for different periods of time, depending on their location and local regulations. The
Company has resumed its operations in a phased manner as per the directives issued by the Government of India and local authorities. However, since early
March 2021, India has witnessed a second wave ofCOVlD-19 with sudden rise in COVlD-19 cases across the country.This has again led to imposinglockdown
like restrictionsacross the country, which is likelyto impact the economicactivity of the country as a whole and the Company's operations in particular.
The Company has used the principles of prudence in applying judgments, estimates and assumptions for making detailed assessment of its liquidity position for
the next year and the recovcrabilityand carrying value of its assets comprising investments, inventory,advances, trade receivables,deferred taxes, other financial
and non-financialassets, based on current indicatorsof future economic conditionsand business operations, the Companyexpects to recoverthe carrying amounts
of its assets.
While the Company has made the necessary provisions in the financial statements and expects to recover the carrying amount of its assets, it has also made
necessary arrangementsto meet its liquidity needs and service its debt obligation.
The actual impactof the global health pandemic may be different from that which has been estimated, as the COVID R 19 situation evolves in India and globally.
The Companywill continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

39 Notes reproducedfromjoint ventures standalone flnancials
Name oftke entitv

Joint Venture
Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP

Smart Value Homes (New Project) LLP

Note as ncr standalone flnanctals

Phase 1 : Finished Goodsas at31 March 2021 ofRs 1,932.94 lakba represents cost(including
capitalisaton ofiuterestandoverheads overtheyears) of unsold units. Despite nonmovement ofsuch
stock tor4 years, themanagement hasreasonable beJiefthat theultimate realizable value would be
more thansuchcostandtherefore docsnotneedanyprovision towards impairnment invalue.
Phase 2: Work-in-progress as at 31 March 2021 represents initial costoflandacquired in2012 forRs.
10,253 lakhs for development. Despite thedelay [nproject implementation, inview oftheappreciarion
inthevalue of land. themanagement hasreasonable beliefthattheultimate realizable value would be
more than suchcost andtherefore docsnotneed any provision towards impairment invalue.

Thepartners of theLLParc under advanced discussion regarding exitofoneof thepartner group and
determining thesettlement terms between them. TheDeed of Settlement hasnotyetbeen executed as
ondaleofsigning theseaccounts however it hasbeen settled mutually among thattheLandowner
partners shall bring in Rs.3,100lakhsandrepayadvance Rs.62 lakhs fortheentire existing inventory
of'Rs. 3,853 lukhs outofwhich Rs.625lakhs is tobe paidback toTataValue Homes Limited, hence
thebalance RS.l ,345lakhs being thedifference between thecapital contribution (Rs.2,508lakha] and
tileexisting inventory (Rs3,853 lekhs) hasbeenimpaired inthecurrent financial year.
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-10 No material eve nts have occu rred after the balance sheet date and upto the approval of the financial statements other than the acquisition referred to in note 32 10
the financials statements
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Statement pursuant to first pro viso to sub-sect ion fJ I of sect ion 129 of the Companies Act, 2013, read wi th rule S of Companies (Accoun tsl Rule s, 2014 In the prescr ibed Form AOC-l
Stiltement tontillnlng salient features of the fl nandal statement of Subsidiari es I nsscdete t om panles l Joint Ventures

Part A: Subsidiaries

"'L' U 'C~ '

Report ing period for

the subsidiary EKth ange rate u on thl'!
Profi t

S,. The date since wh en concern ed, if Reporting last date of th e relevant Share Reserves & Tot al Total Provision Profit afte r Proposed % 0'
Name of t he subsidiary Invest ments Turnover befo re

No. subsidl,lIV was atqUlred diff erent fro m the currency fi nancial year in case of Capita l Surplus Assets lia bili t ies for taKat ion tu at lon dividend shafeho lding •
ta xenc n

holding tompany's ' orelgn subsidiar ies

reporti ng per iod

1 Tltl Vllue Homes limited 08 Se tember 2009 N.A IN' 'NR 800.00 -S28.95 857.87 586.82 110.22 70.95 -143.73 0.33 -144.06 l OOJJO""
2 Smart Value Hom es (60 isar) Private limited 24 Augus t 2012 N.A ' NR IN, 0.01 -41.91 86.36 128.26 63.01 -19.80 0.09 -19.89 100.00%

3 Hl T Residenty Private Limited 03 Julv20 13 N.A 'NR IN' 0.01 -156.49 200.03 356.51 10.70 -161.25 2.22 -163.47 100.00%

4 Nort h Bomba Real Estate Privat e Limi ted 05 March 20 14 N.A IN' IN' 0.01 -0.01 100.00%

. "" of share holding of t he Company and it s subsidiaries

NJ>lU
1 Share Capital Issued - No. of share s: 800 ,000,000 . Tala Housing Developme nt Company Limited. (100%)

2 Names of sccscenes YAlichare yet to commence ccereeoos: Nooe

3 A1llhe subsroanes have financial year ended - 31s1March. 2021

4 Figures below Rs. 50.000 are denoted by '"

~o.l c...2

North BombolYReal Estate Pnvate limi ted hes be,,"n filed lor remoVollof tompaOlYWith M .C.A on 17.07.2019

For imd on beha lf of the Board of Directors of

Tatil Value Home s limited

( IN : U45400MH2009PlC19S60S

~
Sllnj ll)' Dutt
Director
UJN:0525 1670

.- N~VI!,£J
NillllllA jtjtllrwlI1

Director
DI N: 0!I,()lJ4151J

ri~
UlmHsh M lId fkll ~.

e!l;,l£ U!CII/;, -eOfficer

Ml.lmb ol i

1 September 2021

}~
.'\ l r unal Shllkla

Company Sr!crelUry

....t emberstnp No. A3 173.\



Part B: Associa te s and Joint Ventures

Sta te me nt pursua nt to Sect ion 129(3) of the Companies Act. 2013 re la ted to Associa te Companies and Joint Ventures

Shares of the Associate I Jo int Ventures held by th e Profit I Loss fo r the yea r

Dat e on which th e Company as on March 31, 202 1 Networth
Associat e or Joint No of sha res held Amount of Extent of Description of Rea son why th e

attributab le to
Name of the ent ity

Lates t audited balance by the compa ny in investme nt in holdi ng how the re is Associate I Joint
sha reholding as perVen ture was Repo rting currency

sheet date ass oc ia te I jo int assoc iate I jo int (" significant Vent ure Is no t
associated or lat est ba lance

venture ' venture" (~cro re s) percentage) ' influence con solidated Considered in Not Conside red
acquired shee t (III: crores)

Consol idation (III: In Consolidation
cro res ) /"l:cror es )

B. Joint Vent ures
1 Arvind and Smart Value Home s LLP 31st March 2021 25 April20 11 IN' NA 50%

Joint venture - By
62.88 0.69 10.69

2 HLPromoters Private lim ited 31st March 202 1 03 July 20 13 IN' 4.080.000 408 51% (71.79) 3.20 3.17
3 Smart Value Homes [New Project) LLP 22 March 20 15 51%

virtue of
17.00 16.73)31st March 202 1 IN' NA

shareholding
7.84

Unaudited 31st March 21

4 Smart Value Homes (Pee nya Project}Private lim ited
19 March 2013 1.275.000 18.00 51% inte rest and

17.76 fl2.64IN' legal agreem ent
(16.97)

5 Landkart Builder Pvt Ltd Unaudited 31s t March 21 18 Ju ly 2019 IN' 10,410 0,01 51% 28.86) 13.92 16.76
6 S ner n e rs Suistatnable Foundation 31st March 202 1 15 Ma 2012 IN' NA 50% 1.72 0.01

• Number of shares. amount of investmentand extent of holding by the Company and its subsidIaries
Note :
Figures below Rs 50.000 are denoted by'"

IJha\' t'~h l\Iad rk a
ChidE{<!crlt ;1't'Ojli c..r

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tat l Value Homes Limited
CIN : U45400MH2009PLC195605

~u:n--
Sanja~' DUll
Director

DIN: 05251t,70

(j~~
..-: .

Mumbai
1 September 2021

~~,.o
:\'ipun " l:garwal

Director

DI N : Oll O~41 5~

~
Mrulla l Shukl a

Company s.:cn:ra l'y

Membership No. A] 17] 4




